
  
 
 

TENTATIVE AGENDA & MEETING NOTICE 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

TUESDAY, DECEMBER 17, 2019 
5:30 P.M. 

WATAUGA COUNTY ADMINISTRATION BUILDING 
COMMISSIONERS' BOARD ROOM 

 
 
 

TIME # TOPIC PRESENTER PAGE 
     

5:30 1  CALL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER   
 2  APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

December 3, 2019, Regular Meeting  
December 3, 2019, Closed Session  

 1 

 3  APPROVAL OF THE DECEMBER 17, 2019, AGENDA  13 
5:35 4  NORTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE OPIOID 

AWARENESS PRESENTATION 
MS. HOLLY JONES 15 

5:40 5  PRESENTATION OF FY 2019 AUDIT MR. TRAVIS KEEVER 29 
5:45 6  APPALACHIAN STATE REQUEST TO BUILD STRUCTURE ON 

LEASED LANDFILL PROPERTY 
MR. JEREMY FERRELL 163 

5:50 7  BID AWARD FOR WIRELESS NETWORK SYSTEM AT THE NEW 
COMMUNITY RECREATION CENTER 

MR. DREW EGGERS 179 

5:55 8  TAX MATTERS 
A. Monthly Collections Report 
B. Refunds & Releases 

MR. LARRY WARREN  
183 
185 

6:00 9  PROPOSED CONTRACT FOR DESIGN BUILD SERVICES FOR THE 
ADMINISTRATION AND COURTHOUSE ROOFS 

MR. ROBERT MARSH 193 

6:05 10  PROPOSED AMENDMENT TO AUDIT CONTRACT MS. MISTY WATSON 195 
6:10 11  MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

A. Cove Creek Preservation and Development (CCP&D) 
Request to Remove Trees at Old Cove Creek School 

B. Request to Surplus Turner Property House 
C. Sheriff’s Office Vehicle Purchase Request 
D. Boards and Commissions 
E. Announcements  

MR. DERON GEOUQUE  
201 

 
205 
207 
213 
217 

6:15 12  PUBLIC COMMENT  219 
7:15 13  BREAK  219 
7:20 14  CLOSED SESSION 

Attorney/Client Matters – G. S. 143-318.11(a)(3) 
 219 

7:30 15  ADJOURN   
 



AGENDA ITEM 2: 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 
December 3, 2019, Regular Meeting  
December 3, 2019, Closed Session 
 
 

 

 

  

121719 BCC Meeting

1



MINUTES 
 

WATAUGA COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
TUESDAY, DECEMBER 3, 2019 

 
 

The Watauga County Board of Commissioners held a regular meeting, as scheduled, on Tuesday, 
December 3, 2019, at 8:30 A.M. in the Commissioners' Board Room of the Watauga County 
Administration Building, Boone, North Carolina. 
 
 PRESENT: John Welch, Chairman 

Billy Kennedy, Vice-Chairman 
Larry Turnbow, Commissioner 
Charlie Wallin, Commissioner 
Perry Yates, Commissioner 
Anthony di Santi, County Attorney 
Deron Geouque, County Manager 
Anita J. Fogle, Clerk to the Board 

 
County Manager Geouque called the meeting to order at 8:37 A.M. 

BOARD ORGANIZATIONAL MATTERS 
County Manager Geouque called for the election of the Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the 
Watauga County Board of Commissioners. 

A. Election of Officers 
County Manager Geouque called for nominations for Chairman of the Watauga County Board of 
Commissioners. 
 
Vice-Chairman Kennedy, seconded by Commissioner Yates, moved to nominate Commissioner 
Welch for Chairman. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 
Commissioner Turnbow, seconded by Commissioner Wallin, moved to nominate Commissioner 
Kennedy for Vice-Chairman. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 
The meeting was then turned over to Chairman Welch. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
Chairman Welch called for additions and/or corrections to the November 19, 2019, regular 
meeting and closed session minutes. 

DRAFT 
121719 BCC Meeting

2



 
Vice-Chairman Kennedy, seconded by Commissioner Turnbow, moved to approve the 
November 19, 2019, regular meeting minutes as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 
Vice-Chairman Kennedy, seconded by Commissioner Turnbow, moved to approve the 
November 19, 2019, closed session minutes as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

BOARD ORGANIZATIONAL MATTERS (CONTINUED) 

B. Staff Appointments 
Commissioner Turnbow, seconded by Vice-Chairman Kennedy, moved to reappoint Deron 
Geouque as the County Manager. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 
Commissioner Turnbow, seconded by Vice-Chairman Kennedy, moved to reappoint Anita Fogle 
as Clerk to the Board. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 
Commissioner Turnbow, seconded by Vice-Chairman Kennedy, moved to reappoint both 
Monica Harrison and Tammy Adams as Substitute Clerks to the Board. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 
 
Commissioner Turnbow, seconded by Vice-Chairman Kennedy, moved to reappoint di Santi, 
Watson, Capua, Wilson, & Garrett as the Law Firm representing Watauga County as legal 
counsel including the Watauga County Department of Social Services and the Child Support 
Enforcement Offices with rates to remain as current and to authorize di Santi Watson, Capua, 
Wilson, & Garrett, Social Services Attorney, to hire outside council when they have a conflict. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 
[Clerk’s Note:  The current rate for legal services by the County Attorney is $125.00 per hour.] 

121719 BCC Meeting

3



C. Fidelity Bonds 
The following individual fidelity bonds were presented for approval: 
 

Position Bond Amount Statutory Requirement 
 

Finance Director $50,000 No less than $50,000, per NCGS 159-29 
 

Deputy Finance Director $50,000 
(County Manager) 

 
Tax Collector $50,000 Amount considered reasonable 

  by BCC, NCGS 105-349-c 
 

Register of Deeds $50,000 At least $10,000 but no more 
  than $50,000, NCGS 161-4 
 

Sheriff $25,000 Amount considered reasonable by BCC, 
  but no more than $25,000 max, NCGS 162-8 
 
Vice-Chairman Kennedy, seconded by Commissioner Turnbow, moved to approve the individual 
fidelity bonds as presented and to approve the Finance Director, County Manager, and Chairman 
of the Board of Commissioners as the authorized signers for disbursements on all County 
accounts and to approve additional signers and Deputy Finance Officers, on the Inmate 
Commissary account only, as Randy Greene, James Sharpe, Barry Trivette, and Michael Brown 
and to approved the official depositories of the County as  First National Bank and BB&T. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

D. Commissioner Appointments to Boards & Commissions  
Chairman Welch presented the attached list of current Commissioner Board appointments: 
 

Board/Commission Member 

Appalachian District Health Department Yates 

Appalachian Theatre Board of Trustees Ex-Officio Member Wallin or Welch 

AppalCART Authority Wallin 

Blue Ridge Resource Conservation & Development Area Turnbow 

Caldwell Community College &Technical Institute - Watauga Advisory Board Welch 

Children’s Council Turnbow 

Child Protection Team Kennedy 

121719 BCC Meeting

4



Cooperative Extension Advisory Leadership Board Yates 

Economic Development Commission (EDC) Turnbow 

Educational Planning Committee (2 appointees) Wallin & Welch 

EMS Advisory Committee Yates 

High Country Council of Governments 
   Executive Board 
   Rural Transportation Advisory Committee 

Turnbow 

Juvenile Crime Prevention Council (JCPC) Welch 

Humane Society Turnbow 

Library Board Kennedy 

Motor Vehicle Valuation Review Committee Welch 

New River Service Authority Board Wallin 

Northwest Regional Housing Authority (five-year term expires Dec. 12, 2019) Pat Vines 

POA Advisory Committee (Home & Community Care Block Grant) Yates  

Sheriff’s Office Liaison  Kennedy &Turnbow 

Vaya County Commissioner Advisory Board Wallin 

Social Services Advisory Board Wallin 

Watauga County Fire Commission Yates 

Watauga County Personnel Advisory Committee Welch 

Watauga County Recreation Commission Welch 

Watauga Medical Center Board of Trustees Kennedy 

Watauga Opportunities, Inc. Turnbow 

Workforce Development Board (WDB) Chairman 

 

Vice-Chairman Kennedy, seconded by Commissioner Yates, moved to accept the appointments 
as currently seated including the reappointment of Pat Vines to a five-year term as the Northwest 
Regional Housing Authority representative. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

E. Regular Meeting Schedule 
Chairman Welch stated that the Board of Commissioners’ regular meetings were currently 
scheduled for the first Tuesday of each month at 8:30 A.M. and the third Tuesday of each month 
at 5:30 P.M. 

121719 BCC Meeting

5



 
Commissioner Yates, seconded by Commissioner Turnbow, moved to retain the regular meeting 
schedule for the Watauga County Board of Commissioners as follows:  the first Tuesday of each 
month at 8:30 A.M. and the third Tuesday of each month at 5:30 P.M. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
Chairman Welch called for additions and/or corrections to the December 3, 2019, agenda. 
 
County Manager Geouque requested to add a proposed resolution establishing the Register of 
Deeds’ salary. 
 
Commissioner Wallin, seconded by Commissioner Turnbow, moved to approve the 
December 3, 2019, agenda as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

PROPOSED RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING THE REGISTER OF DEEDS’ SALARY 
County Manager Geouque stated that, per Statute, for the filing period for 2020 elections, the 
Board must establish the salary for the Register of Deeds in order for filing fees to be 
determined.  The entry level salary on the County’s current pay plan is $60,629 and is the 
amount listed in the proposed resolution. 
 
Vice-Chairman Kennedy, seconded by Commissioner Yates, moved to adopt the resolution 
establishing the Register of Deeds Salary as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

SANITATION MATTERS 

A. Bid Award Request for Motor Grader 
Mr. Rex Buck, Operations Services Director, presented a bid for one (1) new Leeboy Motor 
Grader in the amount of $187,652 from Ascendum Machinery which includes an eight foot front 
blade.  The motor grader will be utilized for maintenance of roads to county cell towers and ball 
field maintenance and repair.  County Manager Geouque stated that adequate funds were 
available in the current Sanitation budget to cover the expense. 
 
 
 

121719 BCC Meeting

6



Commissioner Turnbow, seconded by Commissioner Wallin, moved to authorize the purchase of 
one (1) new Leeboy Motor Grader in the amount of $187,652 from Ascendum Machinery. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

B. Bid Award Request for Tub Grinder 
Mr. Rex Buck presented a bid for one (1) new DuraTech Model 2009 Tub Grinder in the amount 
of $231,383.22 from Public Works Equipment, Inc.  County Manager Geouque stated that 
adequate funds were available in the current Sanitation budget to cover the expense.   
 
Vice-Chairman Kennedy, seconded by Commissioner Turnbow, moved to authorize the purchase 
of one (1) new DuraTech Model 2009 Tub Grinder in the amount of $231,383.22 from Public 
Works Equipment, Inc.  
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

C. Bid Award Request for Container Delivery Truck 
Mr. Rex Buck presented a bid for the purchase of one (1) new Container Delivery Truck in the 
amount of $115,866.19 from CES, Inc.  County Manager Geouque stated that adequate funds 
were available in the current Sanitation budget to cover the expense.   
 
Commissioner Wallin, seconded by Commissioner Turnbow, moved to authorize the purchase of 
one (1) Container Delivery Truck in the amount of $115,866.19 from CES, Inc. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

BUDGET AMENDMENTS 
Ms. Misty Watson, Finance Director, reviewed the following budget amendments: 
 

Account # Description Debit Credit 
103311-312013 TDA Donation – Rocky Knob Playground  $40,079 
104288-451000 Capital Outlay – Equipment $72,408  
103311-312014 Grant – Rocky Knob Playground  $32,329 
    

The amendment recognized acceptance of a donation from the Watauga County District U 
Tourism Development Authority and a grant from GameTime as part of the 2019 NCRPA 
Statewide Training and Funding Initiative and for replacement of the Rocky Knob Playground. 
 

103300-349606 Soil and Water Grant  $18,001 
104960-449917 Soil and Water Grant – Resource Institute $18,001  
    

The amendment recognized the acceptance of the Division of Water Resources pass-through 
funds.  No match is required. 
 

121719 BCC Meeting

7



 

103991-399100 Fund Balance Appropriated  $375,000 
104199-457008 Capital Outlay – Valle Landing Property $375,000  
    

The amendment recognized the purchase of the Valle Landing property from fund balance as 
approved by the Board at the June 4, 2019, Board Meeting. 
 

103991-399100 Fund Balance Appropriated  $367,129 
104199-469150 Watauga County Humane Society Loan $367,129  
    

The amendment shows funds used to pay off the Watauga County Humane Society loan for 
refinancing through Watauga County as approved at the November 19, 2019, Board Meeting. 
 
Commissioner Yates, seconded by Commissioner Turnbow, moved to approve the budget 
amendments as presented by Ms. Watson. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

PROPOSED PROCLAMATION IN SUPPORT OF NATIONAL RADON ACTION MONTH 
IN WATAUGA COUNTY 
Chairman Welch presented a proposed proclamation in support of National Radon Action Month 
in Watauga County as requested by Mr. Phillip Ray Gibson, North Carolina Radon Program 
Coordinator with the Division of Health Service Regulation, Radiation Protection Section, of the 
North Carolina Department of Health and Human Services. 
 
Commissioner Yates, seconded by Commissioner Wallin, moved to adopt the proclamation 
supporting National Radon Action Month in Watauga County. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
A.  Presentation of the North Carolina Recreation and Parks Association (NCRPA) Healthy 
Plan and Recreation Initiative Grant 
 

County Manager Geouque stated that at the November 19, 2019, Board of Commissioners 
meeting, Ms. Michelle Wells, Executive Director of the NC Recreation and Parks Association 
(NCRPA), presented the County with the NCRPA Healthy Plan and Recreation Initiative Grant 
for new playground equipment.  The $70,000 grant required a fifty percent (50%) match that will 
be provided by the Watauga County Tourism Development Authority (TDA).  Board approval 
was required to accept the grant from the North Carolina Recreation and Parks Association in the 
amount of $70,000 and authorize staff to purchase the new equipment.  However, during the 
presentation of the grant no formal authorization was given. 
 

121719 BCC Meeting

8



Vice-Chairman Kennedy, seconded by Commissioner Turnbow, moved to formally accept the 
NCRPA Healthy Plan and Recreation Initiative grant and to authorize staff to purchase the new 
playground equipment. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

B. Proposed Forest Service Lease 
County Manager Geouque presented the proposed Forest Service lease with a three (3) year term 
from December 1, 2019, to November 30, 2022.     
 
Property owned by the County may be leased or rented for such terms and upon such conditions 
as the Board may determine, for up to ten (10) years.  Property may be rented or leased only 
pursuant to a resolution of the Board authorizing the execution of the lease or rental agreement 
adopted at a regular Board meeting upon 10 days' public notice.  Notice shall be given by 
publication describing the property to be leased or rented, stating the annual rental or lease 
payments, and announcing the Board's intent to authorize the lease or rental at its next regular 
meeting.  
 
County Manager Geouque stated that the notice requirement has been met.  The County Manager 
stated that Board approval, contingent upon County Attorney review, is required to approve the 
lease and completion of PO-28 Lease proposal form.  County Attorney di Santi stated that he had 
reviewed the lease which is worded the same as the current lease. 
 
County Manager Geouque stated that in the near future the Forest Service would be requesting to 
rent office space from the Cooperative Extension Building.  He stated that he had offered for the 
State to move a new office trailer onto the property currently being lease.  The State, however, 
planned to continue to use that for connex boxes and vehicles. 
 
Commissioner Turnbow, seconded by Commissioner Yates, moved to approve the lease as 
presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

C. January’s Meeting Schedule 
County Manager Geouque stated that the Board has traditionally cancelled one of the meetings in 
either December or January depending on how the holidays have fallen.  Due to where Christmas 
and New Year’s fall during the week, staff would recommend the Board cancel the first meeting 
in January as there would be insufficient time to prepare the Board packets for that meeting.  
Historically, December and the first weeks in January have few issues requiring Board action. 
 
Vice-Chairman Kennedy, seconded by Commissioner Yates, moved to cancel the January 7, 
2020, Board meeting. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

121719 BCC Meeting

9



D. Boards and Commissions 
County Manager Geouque presented the following for consideration: 
 

Watauga County Planning Board 
The four year At-large Planning Board term of Mr. Jamie Hodges will expire in December.  Mr. 
Hodges does not wish to be reappointed.  Volunteer Applications from Mr. David Hill, Mr. 
Chuck Phillips, and Ms. Kimmy Tiedemann are included for consideration as second readings. 
 
Commissioner Turnbow, seconded by Vice-Chairman Kennedy, moved to appoint Ms. Kimmy 
Tiedemann to serve as an At-large Planning Board member for a four year term ending in 
December 2023. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

E. Announcements 
County Manager Geouque announced the following: 
 

• The Annual Employee Christmas Lunch will be held at Dan’l Boone Inn on Tuesday, 
December 10, 2019, from 11:30 A.M. to 2:00 P.M.  The first lunch group will begin at 
11:30 A.M. and the second lunch group will begin at 1:00 P.M. 

 

• The Register of Deeds, Clerk of Court, and Tax Office invites you to join them for 
holiday breakfast on Friday, December 13, 2019, from 8:30 to 10:00 A.M. in the hallway 
between the Clerk of Court and Register of Deeds offices.  

PUBLIC COMMENT 
There was no public comment. 

CLOSED SESSION 
At 9:00 A.M., Commissioner Wallin, seconded by Commissioner Turnbow,  moved to enter 
Closed Session to discuss Attorney/Client Matters, per G. S. 143-318.11(a)(3) and Land 
Acquisition, per G. S. 143-318.11(a)(5)(i). 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 
Commissioner Yates, seconded by Commissioner Turnbow, moved to resume the open meeting 
at 9:37 A.M. 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

POSSIBLE ACTION AFTER CLOSED SESSION 
There was no action after Closed Session. 

121719 BCC Meeting

10



ADJOURN 
Commissioner Wallin, seconded by Commissioner Turnbow, moved to adjourn the meeting at 
9:37 A.M. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 
John Welch, Chairman 
 
ATTEST: 
Anita J. Fogle, Clerk to the Board 

 

121719 BCC Meeting

11



Blank Page 
 
 

121719 BCC Meeting

12



AGENDA ITEM 3: 

APPROVAL OF THE DECEMBER 17, 2019, AGENDA 
 
 
 
  

121719 BCC Meeting

13



Blank Page 
 
 

121719 BCC Meeting

14



AGENDA ITEM 4: 

NORTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE OPIOID AWARENESS PRESENTATION 

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Ms. Holly Jones, North Carolina Department of Justice, will present the opioid awareness 
campaign.  The presentation is for information only; therefore no action is required. 
 
  

121719 BCC Meeting

15



THE MORE POWERFUL NC  
OPIOID AWARENESS CAMPAIGN  

 
Holly Jones 
Community Partnership & Outreach Coordinator 
North Carolina Department of Justice       

121719 BCC Meeting

16



121719 BCC Meeting

17

Poisoning death rates are higher than traffic crash death rates in N.C. 

c: 
0 

:p ... 

40.0 

35.0 

30.0 

"3 25.0 
0. 
0 
0. 

0 
0 
0 
0 • 20.0 
·o 
.-4 
'-
ti 
a. 
~ 15.0 .... 
II) 

IJ 
0 

10 .0 

5 .0 

a - T~c~nsition f rom IC0-8 to ICD"9 
~ -Transition from ICD-9' to ICD-10 

a 

1989 - Pain added as s t h Vital Sign 

Year 

Tech nica l Notes: Rates are per 100,000 resident s, age-adjust ed to the 2000 U.S. Standard Population 

Source: Death f iles, 1968-2016, CDC W ONDER 

Analysis. by Injury Epidemiology and Surveillance Unit 

NCDHHS, Division of Public Healt h 1 Core Overdose Slides 1 January 2019 

p: 
I 
I 

- Motor Vehicle Traffic 
(Unintentional ) 

- Poisoning {All Intents) 

Nort11 C rolt ~" 
Injury & V1olence 

PREVENT I 0 N erench 

5 



121719 BCC Meeting

18

Illicit opioids* were involv·ed in approximately 80% of 
unintentional opioid overdose deaths in 2017 

2,000 

• Heroin and/or Otner Synthetic Narcotics 

""0 VI ·- ..... 
0 c 

• Commonly Prescribed Opioids AND Heroin and/or Other Synthetic Narcotics 
· - Q) g--o 
""iii 

VI 

c ~ 

1,500 
• Commonly Prescribed Opioids 

0 u ..... 
c z 
Q) 

"' ..... 
c L 
c ..... 

Cll 
::::l Q) 

1,000 

500 

~ "0 
0 Q) ..... VI 
Q) 0 ..n ""'0 
E ._ 

Q) 
:I > z 0 

0 

*Heroin and/ or Other Synthet ic Narcotics (mainly illicit ly manufactured fentanyl and fentanyl analogues) 

Technical Notes: Cases w it h only an Opium (T40.0) or only Other and Unspecif ied Narcotics (T40 .6) code are excluded; 

Unintent ional medication and drug poisoning: X40-X44 and any m ent ion ofT40.2 (other Op ioids), T40.3 (Methadone},T40.4 

(Other synthetic opioid) and/ or T40.6 father/unspecified narcotics); Lim ited to N.C. residents 
Source: Death s-N .C. State Center for Health Stati.stics, Vital Statistics, 1999-2017 

Analysis. by Injury Epidemiology and Surveillance Unit 

NCDHHS, Division of Public Health 1 Core Overdose Slides 1 January 2019 

Nort11 C rolt ~" 
Inju ry & V1olence 

PREVENT I 0 N erench 

19 



Prevention, Treatment and 
Enforcement 
•Reduce over-prescribing of opioids 
• STOP Act 
Law Enforcement Task Force 
• Synthetic Opioid Control Act 
• HOPE Act 

•Raise public awareness and encourage action 
• More Powerful NC campaign 

 
 

121719 BCC Meeting

19



More Powerful NC: 
The Need 
•Wide variation in awareness & 
understanding 

•Little guidance on how to take action 
to address the challenge 

 

121719 BCC Meeting

20



More Powerful NC: 
Coalition Partners 
•DOJ, DHHS, DPI, DOI 

•Atrium Health, BCBS-NC 

•UNC Health Care Labcorp, Carolina 
Hurricanes and others 

 

121719 BCC Meeting

21



More Powerful NC: 
Anthem Video 

 

 

121719 BCC Meeting

22



More Powerful NC: 
Website Content 
 

 

•Get Help 

•Get Involved 

•Get the Facts 

 

121719 BCC Meeting

23

https://www.morepowerfulnc.org/


More Powerful NC: 
Key messages 
•Take back unneeded drugs 

•Talk to your health care provider 

•Talk to your family 

121719 BCC Meeting

24



More Powerful NC: 
Take Action Now 

 

 

•Take the pledge 

•Become a partner 

•Pass a resolution 

•Link to site 

121719 BCC Meeting

25



Other County Partnerships 
•Pretrial release 
•Upcoming Regional Summits 

121719 BCC Meeting

26



QUESTIONS? 

121719 BCC Meeting

27



Blank Page 
 
 

121719 BCC Meeting

28



AGENDA ITEM 5: 

PRESENTATION OF FY 2019 AUDIT 

MANAGER’S COMMENTS:   
 
Mr. Travis Keever, Gould Killiam CPA Group, P.A. and Ms. Misty Watson, Finance Director, 
will present the Fiscal Year 2019 County audit.  The County’s financial position remains strong 
due to the direction provided by the Commissioners and through execution of that direction by 
County staff. Below are some of the financial highlights: 
 
 The total assets of the County exceeded its liabilities at the close of the fiscal year by 

$155,261,296. 
 
 The County’s unassigned fund balance for the general fund was $20,786,602 at the end of the 

year, representing 40.1% of total General Fund expenditures. This is an increase of $649,173 
in the unassigned fund balance from the previous year.  

 
 The current year collection rate for property taxes was 99.01% which was an increase from 

last year’s 98.83%. The County is still well above the statewide average of 98.24% for 
entities of similar populations in fiscal year 2017-18.  

 
 Outstanding debt principal increased by $14,607,639. Total outstanding debt principal at 

June 30, 2019 is $49,604,027. Watauga County’s legal debt limit is $688,841,459 so the 
County continues to be well below the state limits.  
 

 S&P updated their review of the County’s financials and reaffirmed the County’s stable 
outlook and credit rating at AA. 

  
The audit is presented for information only; however, staff is requesting the Board to assign 
$400,000 of health insurance savings from fiscal year 2019 for future plans of becoming fully 
self-insured. 
 
 
 
  

121719 BCC Meeting

29



Watauga County
North Carolina

The following communication was prepared as part of our audit, has consequential limitations, 
and is intended solely for the information and use of those charged with governance (e.g., 
Governing Board and Audit Committee) and, if appropriate, management of the Government and 
is not intended and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

AUDIT WRAP UP
December 13, 2019

121719 BCC Meeting

30



December 13, 2019 

To the Board of County Commissioners 
Watauga County, North Carolina 

Professional standards require us to communicate with you regarding matters related to the audit, 
that are, in our professional judgment, significant and relevant to your responsibilities in overseeing 
the financial reporting process. On March 21, 2019, we presented in the engagement letter an 
overview of our plan for the audit of the financial statements of the Watauga County (the County) as 
of and for the year ended June 30, 2019, including a summary of our overall objectives for the audit, 
and the nature, scope, and timing of the planned audit work. 

This communication is intended to elaborate on the significant findings from our audit, including our 
views on the qualitative aspects of the County’s accounting practices and policies, management’s 
judgments and estimates, financial statement disclosures, and other required matters. 

We are pleased to be of service to the County and look forward to meeting with you to discuss our 
audit findings, as well as other matters that may be of interest to you, and to answer any questions 
you might have. 

Respectfully, 

Asheville, North Carolina 

 

 

    
    

    
    

   A
n I

nd
ep

en
de

nt
 M

em
be

r o
f t

he
 B

DO
 A

llia
nc

e 

100 Coxe Avenue   |   Asheville, NC 28801   |   P 828.258.0363   |   F 828.252.0528   |   www.gk-cpa.com 
  

121719 BCC Meeting

31



Discussion Outline

Page
Status of Our Audit ............................................................................................................... 1

Results of Our Audit .............................................................................................................. 2

Internal Control over Financial Reporting ..................................................................................... 4

Other Required Communications ............................................................................................... 5

Independence Communication .................................................................................................. 6

Significant Accounting & Reporting Matters .................................................................................. 6

Appendix A – Cybersecurity: Governments at Risk 

121719 BCC Meeting

32



1
AUDIT WRAP-UP – JUNE 30, 2019 

Status of Our Audit
We have completed our audit of the financial statements as of and for the year ended June 30, 2019. Our audit 
was conducted in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and 
Government Auditing Standards. This audit of the financial statements does not relieve management or those 
charged with governance of their responsibilities. 

�� The objective of our audit was to obtain reasonable - not absolute - assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free from material misstatements. 

�� The scope of the work performed was substantially the same as that described to you in our earlier audit 
planning communications.  

�� We have issued an unmodified opinion on the financial statements and released our report dated December 
13, 2019. 

�� Our responsibility for other information in documents contained in the County’s audited financial 
statements (e.g. management’s discussion and analysis, budgetary comparisons, schedules of pension 
amounts) does not extend beyond the financial information identified in the audit report, and we are not 
required to perform procedures to corroborate such other information. However, in accordance with 
professional standards, we have read the information included by the County and considered whether such 
information, or the manner of its presentation, was materially inconsistent with its presentation in the 
financial statements. Our responsibility also includes calling to management’s attention any information 
that we believe is a material misstatement of fact. We have not identified any material inconsistencies or 
concluded there are any material misstatements of facts in the other information that management has 
chosen not to correct.  

�� All records and information requested by us were freely available for our inspection. 

�� Management’s cooperation was excellent. We received full access to all information that we requested 
while performing our audit, and we acknowledge the full cooperation extended to us by all levels Watauga 
County’s personnel throughout the course of our work. 

121719 BCC Meeting

33



Results of Our Audit 

2
AUDIT WRAP-UP – JUNE 30, 2019 

QUALITATIVE ASPECTS OF ACCOUNTING PRACTICES 

The following summarizes the more significant required communications related to our audit concerning the 
County’s accounting practices, policies, and estimates: 

The County’s significant accounting practices and policies are those included in Note 1 to the financial 
statements. These accounting practices and policies are appropriate, comply with generally accepted 
accounting principles and industry practice, were consistently applied, and are adequately described within
Note 1 to the financial statements. 

�� A summary of recently issued accounting pronouncements is included in the Significant Accounting and 
Reporting Matters section of this report. 

�� The County implemented GASB No. 88 for the year ended June 30, 2019. The implementation of this 
statement was required by the standard setting board to improve the information that is disclosed in notes 
to financial statements related to debt, including direct borrowings and direct placements. This statement 
clarifies which liabilities should be included when disclosing information related to debt. 

�� The application of existing accounting policy was not changed during the fiscal year. 

�� We noted no transactions entered into by the County during the fiscal year for which there is a lack of 
authoritative guidance or consensus. 

�� All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial statements in the proper period.

Significant estimates are those that require management’s most difficult, subjective, or complex judgments, 
often as a result of the need to make estimates about the effects of matters that are inherently uncertain.  

Significant accounting estimates include: 

Depreciation methods as described in the Notes to the financial statements 

Allowances for uncollectible receivables, which are based upon management’s judgments and the aging 
of receivables that may by uncollectible 

Pension obligations, which are based on actuarial assumptions and methods, as well as the allocation of 
the overall plan data between the plan participants 

Other post-employment benefits obligations, which are based on actuarial assumptions and methods 

Liability for landfill post-closure care costs, which are based on estimates of future costs 

�� Management did not make any significant changes to the processes or significant assumptions used to 
develop the significant accounting estimates in FY 2019. 

�� We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the significant estimates in determining 
that they are reasonable in relation to financial statements taken a whole. 

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear. 

CORRECTED AND UNCORRECTED MISSTATEMENTS 

We have proposed two adjustments which have been made by management. We do not consider any of our 
proposed adjustments to be material audit adjustments, but rather adjustments made in the normal course of 
closing the books at the end of the year. A list of all audit adjustments is available upon request. 

121719 BCC Meeting

34



Results of Our Audit 

3
AUDIT WRAP-UP – JUNE 30, 2019 

There were also a small number of  uncorrected misstatements (or passed adjustments).  These passed 
adjustments were related to an overstatement of the compensated absence liability.  We concur with 
management’s assessment that the effects of not recording these adjustments are, both individually and in the 
aggregate, immaterial to the financial statements taken as a whole, considering both qualitative and 
quantitative factors. The proposed adjustments do not potentially cause future-period financial statements to 
be materially misstated. �

121719 BCC Meeting

35



Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

4
AUDIT WRAP-UP – JUNE 30, 2019 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Watauga County’s internal 
control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the 
purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion 
on the effectiveness of the County’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the County’s internal control. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described above and was not designed to 
identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. 

We are required to communicate, in writing, to those charged with governance all material weaknesses and 
significant deficiencies that have been identified in the County’s internal controls over financial reporting. The 
definitions of control deficiency, significant deficiency and material weakness follow: 

Category Definition

Deficiency in Internal 
Control 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a 
control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of 
performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct 
misstatements on a timely basis. 

Significant Deficiency 
A deficiency or combination of deficiencies in internal control that is less 
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by 
those charged with governance. 

Material Weakness 

A deficiency or combination of deficiencies in internal control, such that 
there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the 
Government’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and 
corrected on a timely basis. 

In conjunction with our audit, we noted no deficiencies that we consider to be material weaknesses.

121719 BCC Meeting

36



5
AUDIT WRAP-UP – JUNE 30, 2019 

Other Required Communications 
Following is a summary of other required items, along with specific discussion points as they pertain to the 
County:

Requirement Discussion Points 

Significant changes to planned 
audit strategy or significant risks 
initially identified 

There were no significant changes to the planned audit strategy or 
significant risks initially identified and previously communicated to 
those charged with governance.

Obtain information from those 
charged with governance relevant 
to the audit 

There were no matters noted relevant to the audit, including, but not 
limited to: violations or possible violations of laws or regulations; risk 
of material misstatements, including fraud risks; or tips or complaints 
regarding the Government’s financial reporting that we were made 
aware of as a result of our inquiry of those charged with governance.

If applicable, nature and extent of 
specialized skills or knowledge 
needed related to significant risks 

There were no specialized skills or knowledge needed, outside of the 
core engagement team, to perform the planned audit procedures or 
evaluate audit results related to significant risks.

Consultations with other 
accountants 

We are not aware of any consultations about accounting or auditing 
matters between management and other independent public 
accountants. Nor are we aware of opinions obtained by management 
from other independent public accountants on the application of 
generally accepted accounting principles. 

Disagreements with management 

There were no disagreements with management about matters, 
whether or not satisfactorily resolved, that individually or in aggregate 
could be significant to the Government’s financial statements or to our 
auditor’s report.

Significant difficulties 
encountered during the audit 

There were no significant difficulties encountered during the audit. 

If applicable, other matters 
significant to the oversight of the 
Government’s financial reporting 
process, including complaints or 
concerns regarding accounting or 
auditing matters 

There are no other matters that we consider significant to the oversight 
of the Government’s financial reporting process that have not been 
previously communicated.   

Representations requested from 
management 

Please refer to the management representation letter obtained from 
management. 

121719 BCC Meeting

37



6
AUDIT WRAP-UP – JUNE 30, 2019 

Independence Communication 
Our engagement letter to you dated March 21, 2019 describes our responsibilities in accordance with 
professional standards with regard to independence and the performance of our services. This letter 
also stipulates the responsibilities of the County with respect to independence as agreed to by the 
County. Please refer to that letter for further information. 

Significant Accounting & Reporting Matters 
The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has recently issued a new standard which may 
have a significant effect on the County’s future financial reporting.  

Recently issued statement is as follows: 

•� GASB No. 87 “Leases” -- This Statement requires recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities 
for leases that previously were classified as operating leases and recognized as inflows of resources 
or outflows of resources based on the payment provisions of the contract requirements. This new 
requirement increases the usefulness of governmental financial statements. It establishes a single 
model for lease accounting based on the foundational principle that leases are financings of the 
right to use an underlying asset. Under this Statement, a lessee is required to recognize a lease 
liability and an intangible right-to-use lease asset, and a lessor is required to recognize a lease 
receivable and a deferred inflow of resources, thereby enhancing the relevance and consistency of 
information about governmental leasing activities. The new standard brings governmental GAAP in 
line with GAAP for private and public companies, effective for years ending after December 31, 
2020.  

Other significant matters: 

Cybersecurity is an important risk consideration for the County’s governing board and management. As 
part of our audit, we discussed the County’s cybersecurity responses with management to determine if 
any significant unaddressed risks would cause material damages to the County. We were pleased to 
note that the County management has shown an openness to addressing these risks and a willingness to 
take a proactive approach in designing a cybersecurity plan to protect the County and its residents 
from a cyber-attack. While no measures can 100% prevent such an event, procedures should be in place 
to quickly identify and respond to limit the County’s damages. Please see Appendix A for more 
information. 

121719 BCC Meeting

38



7
AUDIT WRAP-UP – JUNE 30, 2019 

Appendix A 

121719 BCC Meeting

39

tkeever_GOULDK
Rectangle



CYBERSECURITY:  
GOVERNMENTS AT RISK 

Cyber�a�acks, network breaches, and informa�on security incidents are nega�vely 
impac�ng government agencies and corpora�ons worldwide, regardless of size. 
Cyber criminals, or hackers, are becoming more sophis�cated in their methods, 
and the frequency of breaches is increasing across all industries and government 
sectors. Stories of ransomware and other cyber�a�acks on governments large and 
small are becoming common�place, around the country and in your back yard. 
Thus, cybersecurity is now an organiza�onal risk management impera�ve for all 
governmental agencies. So, the real ques�on is: how can your government 
e�ciently and cost�e�ec�vely plan and implement a holis�c cybersecurity risk 
management program both proac�vely (iden�fy risks, analyze risks, and mi�gate 
risks) and reac�vely (detect incidents, respond to incidents, and recover from 
incidents)? 

 
What are the poten�al cybersecurity legal risks and liabili�es? 

There are numerous poten�al legal risks and signi�cant poten�al adverse �nancial 
liabili�es if your government does not take an appropriate holis�c approach to 
cybersecurity risk management, such as: 

�� Data ransomed and/or permanently lost leading to cost to recover/recreate 
data;  

�� Sensi�ve customer informa�on such as payment informa�on or PPI stolen, 
crea�ng a liability for any damages; 

�� Banking informa�on hacked and used to send fraudulent payments and steal 
government’s funds; 

�� Email phishing schemes used to manipulate employees clicking harmful links or 
sending fraudulent payments and steal government’s funds. 

 

Form more informa�on regarding cybersecurity risk management, 
please contact: 
  Dan Mullinix  Tonya Thompson  Travis Keever 
  Assurance Partner  Assurance Manager  Assurance Manager 
  dmullinix@gk�cpa.com �hompson@gk�cpa.com tkeever@gk�cpa.com 

121719 BCC Meeting

40



5 STEPS TO MITIGATE 
CYBERSECURITY RISK 

Conduct a cyber risk assessment. In 
order to understand how to mi�gate 
risk, you must determine the current 
state of your cyber risk pro�le. And 
performing a cyber risk assessment is far 
less expensive than the cost of reac�ng 
to a breach, which can not only cause 
reputa�onal harm, but can also result in 
regulatory issues for not having been 
prepared. By conduc�ng a risk 
assessment and gap analysis, you can 
quickly assess your government’s 
current policies and opera�ons, iden�fy 
holes, and priori�ze your remedia�on 
ini�a�ves. 

Take an inventory of your sensi�ve 
informa�on. Informa�on is o	en an 
organiza�on’s most valuable asset. And 
today, more than ever before, that 
informa�on is at risk. The increased 
threat of cybera�acks in recent years, 
along with the crea�on of new data 
privacy regula�ons, only emphasize the 
need for governments to develop and 
implement strong policies to achieve 
compliance and mi�gate informa�on�
related risks. Understanding what 
informa�on your organiza�on has, 
where it resides, and  its purpose, are 
key in iden�fying the highest risk areas 
and developing a mi�ga�on strategy. 

Develop and implement an incident 
response plan. A rapid response during 
a data breach can make all the 
di�erence. Governments should develop 
and test a comprehensive incident 
response plan that not only outlines an 
immediate ac�on plan, but considers 
your processes, communica�ons and 

crisis management plans, as well as the 
roles and responsibili�es of individuals 
throughout the organiza�on in order to 
manage the impact of a breach. 

Iden�fy a senior�level employee or 
quali�ed third party to lead your 
government’s cybersecurity program. 
Cybersecurity isn’t just an IT issue; it is an 
en�ty�wide risk management issue that 
cuts across an organiza�on’s opera�onal 
func�ons and includes legal, compliance, 
and risk management. And with the 
increase in cyber threats, many new 
regula�ons and guidelines require or 
recommend that a speci�c, senior�level 
individual, such as a Chief Informa�on 
Security O�cer, be designated and be 
required to cer�fy compliance annually.  
One thing to note: even if your �rm 
chooses to outsource its IT func�on, the 
risk is not transferred to the outsourced 
company, it’s s�ll owned by your 
government—making a wri�en cyber risk 
management program (and the proper 
oversight) cri�cal.  

Examine your insurance policies to 
ensure adequate cyber coverage 
levels. Cyber insurance may be purchased 
as a stand�alone policy or included as 
addi�onal coverage under a general 
liability policy. However, the coverage 
levels and terms can vary greatly. Evaluate 
your current policies and levels of 
coverage—par�cularly if cyber coverage is 
added to another policy form—to ensure 
your government is properly protected 
from poten�al losses from a cyber 
incident. 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

121719 BCC Meeting

41



CYBERSECURITY:  
TOP TEN TRENDS FOR 2019  

1) Blurring of Cyber Threat Actors. The FBI/DHS and other law enforcement and intelligence agencies are all 
repor�ng the increased collabora�on between na�on�state cyber�a�ack groups and organized criminal cyber�
a�ack groups worldwide, especially in China, Russia, Iran, and North Korea. 

2) Rise of Business Email Compromise (BEC) A�acks. Rapid growth of social engineering based cyber spoo�ng 
a�acks on companies globally, typically focused on the payment of invoices to wrongful suppliers. 

3) Growth of Spear�Phishing Email A�acks. Increased number of spear�phishing a�acks targe�ng senior company 
execu�ves especially CEOs, CFOs, and Controllers for unauthorized electronic transfer of funds. 

4) Expansion of Ransomware A�acks. Over the past year there has been a 350% increase in the number of 
ransomware a�acks globally, with an ever increasing focus on the healthcare industry. 

5) Exploita�on of Supply Chain Network based Cyber�A�acks. Signi�cant increase in the number of cyber data 
breaches resul�ng from ini�al unauthorized access via third�party vendors network connec�ons to prime 
contractors. 

6) Recogni�on that Regulatory Compliance with Cybersecurity Industry Standards Does Not Ensure Real 
Data Security. Many companies who have invested in ensuring compliance with various industry standards for 
cybersecurity (i.e. PCI�DSS, NYDFS, HIPAA, ISO 27001, etc.) have experienced cyber data breaches. Thus, realizing 
that regulatory compliance with general informa�on security requirements does not guarantee a company will not 
su�er a major cyber data breach. 

7) Higher Cost of Cyber Data Breaches = Higher Cyber Liability Insurance Premiums. As the average cost of a 
cyber data breach has increased every year for the past �ve years, so has the average cost of cyber liability 
insurance premiums. 

8) Increasingly Complex Cybersecurity Regulatory Landscape. Throughout the U.S. and interna�onally 
regulators at the mul��na�onal, federal, state, and local levels are con�nually enac�ng new government 
regula�ons intended to protect consumers’ personally iden��able informa�on (PII), protected health informa�on 
(PHI) via Electronic Health Records (EHR), and payment card informa�on (PCI). All ul�mately have a cost associated 
with compliance, which is passed on to the consumers. 

9) Shortage of Experienced Cybersecurity Professionals. There is a global shortage of experienced, trained, and 
cer��ed cybersecurity professionals to meet the ever increasing demand for cybersecurity advisory services and 
managed security services worldwide. 

10) Cyber�A�ack Fa�gue/Burn�out is A�ec�ng Cybersecurity Investments. As a result of con�nuous news 
reports of massive cyber�a�acks and data breaches interna�onally, more and more companies are becoming 
increasingly apathe�c to the poten�al impact on their respec�ve company, o	en assuming merely purchasing 
more cyber liability insurance is su�cient, rather than inves�ng in trying to prevent an a�ack. 

 

121719 BCC Meeting

42



CYBERSECURITY:  
KEY RECOMMENDATIONS 

1) Conduct Email Threat Assessments. Given the increasing number of cybera�acks via email systems, companies 
are increasingly looking to conduct periodic email threat assessments, especially to detect malware that made it 
through their an��virus so	ware and �rewalls which have previously gone undetected. 

2) Perform Network & Endpoint Threat Assessments. Due to the signi�cant increase in spear�phishing a�acks, 
organiza�ons should periodically test the cyber awareness and suscep�bility of their employees to cyber�a�acks 
via engaging cer��ed ethical hackers who can conduct social engineering�based spear�phishing exercises.  

3) Conduct Spear�Phishing Campaigns. Due to the signi�cant increase in spear�phishing a�acks, organiza�ons 
should periodically test the cyber awareness and suscep�bility of their employees to cyber�a�acks via engaging 
cer��ed ethical hackers who can conduct social engineering�based spear�phishing exercises.  

4) Perform Vulnerability Assessments & Penetra�on Tes�ng. Most organiza�ons either internally conduct or 
hire an independent �rm to perform some form of vulnerability assessments, via computer malware scanning 
so	ware, and penetra�on tes�ng to discover poten�al external vulnerabili�es to cyber�a�acks. It is important to 
conduct these tests at least once a year but, twice or quarterly is be�er given the constant evolu�on of cyber�
a�acks.  

5) Implement E�ec�ve and Timely So�ware Patch Management Program. The most signi�cant cyber data 
breaches in the past two years all resulted from organiza�ons not implemen�ng an e�ec�ve and �mely so	ware 
patch management program of Microso	 and Cisco so	ware.  

6) Establish a Cybersecurity Awareness/Educa�on Program. The cost e�ec�ve means to improve cybersecurity 
is to create a human �rewall by providing quality cybersecurity educa�onal programs for all of your employees 
from the top of the company to the bo�om.  

7) Conduct Cybersecurity Risk Assessments. It is important to independently verify that an organiza�on’s 
cybersecurity policies, plans, and procedures are su�cient to adequately protect the organiza�on’s digital assets 
and to ensure regulatory compliance with the appropriate industry cybersecurity standards.  

8) Implement an Incident Response (IR) Program. It is cri�cal that every organiza�on has a well thought through 
and periodically tested incident response (IR) program, including: policies, plan, process, procedures, standard 
forms, and periodic exercises and/or simula�ons.  

9) Shortage of Experienced Cybersecurity Professionals. There is a global shortage of experienced, trained, and 
cer��ed cybersecurity professionals to meet the ever increasing demand for cybersecurity advisory services and 
managed security services worldwide. 

10) Cyber�A�ack Fa�gue/Burn�out is A�ec�ng Cybersecurity Investments. As a result of con�nuous news 
reports of massive cyber�a�acks and data breaches interna�onally, more and more companies are becoming 
increasingly apathe�c to the poten�al impact on their respec�ve company, o	en assuming merely purchasing 
more cyber liability insurance is su�cient, rather than inves�ng in trying to prevent an a�ack. 

121719 BCC Meeting

43



WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

121719 BCC Meeting

44



Billy Kennedy, Vice Chairman Larry Turnbow

Charlie Wallin Perry Yates

Deron T. Geouque County Manager

Misty Watson Finance Director

COUNTY OFFICIALS

John Welch, Chairman

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

121719 BCC Meeting

45



Page
Independent Auditor's Report 1-3

Management's Discussion and Analysis 4-10

Basic Financial Statements:

Government-wide Financial Statements:
Exhibit

A Statement of Net Position 11

B Statement of Activities 12-13

Fund Financial Statements:

C Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds and Reconciliation of the Governmental
Funds Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Position 14

D-1 Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - 
Governmental Funds 15

D-2 Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities 16

E Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget
and Actual - General Fund 17

F Statement of Net Position - Proprietary Fund 18

G Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position - 
Proprietary Fund 19

H Statement of Cash Flows - Proprietary Fund 20

I Statement of Fiduciary Net Position - Fiduciary Funds 21

J Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position - Fiduciary Funds 22

Notes to the Financial Statements 23-57

Required Supplemental Financial Data:
Schedule

1 Schedule of Changes in the Net Pension Liability-Law Enforcement 
Officers' Special Separation Allowance Irrevocable Trust (LEOSSA) 58

2 59

3 60

4 61

5 62

6 63Schedule of Investment Returns (OPEB)

Watauga County, North Carolina
Table of Contents

June 30, 2019

Schedule of the Net Pension Liability (LEOSSA)

Schedule of County's Contributions (LEOSSA)

Schedule of Changes in the OPEB Liability and Related Ratios (OPEB)

Schedule of County's Contributions (OPEB)

121719 BCC Meeting

46



Watauga County, North Carolina
Table of Contents

June 30, 2019
7 Schedule of County's Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability (Asset) (LGERS) 64

8 Schedule of County's Contributions (LGERS) 65

9 Schedule of County's Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability (Asset) (RODSPF) 66

10 Schedule of County's Contributions (RODSPF) 67

Combining and Individual Fund Schedules:
Schedule

1 Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - 
General Fund - Budget and Actual 68-72

2 Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - 73
Capital Projects Fund - Budget and Actual

3 Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - 
Recreation Center Project Fund - Budget and Actual 74

4 Combing Balance Sheets - Nonmajor Governmental Funds 75

5 Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - 
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 76

Schedules of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund 
Balances - Budget and Actual:

6 Federal Equitable Sharing Fund 77

7 State Substance Abuse Tax Fund 78

8 Emergency Telephone System Fund 79

9 Fire District Funds 80

10 Occupancy Tax Fund 81

11 Solid Waste Fund 82

12 Combining Schedule of Fiduciary Net Position - Pension Trust Funds 83

13 Combining Schedule of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position - Pension Trust Funds 84

14 Combining Schedule of Changes in Assets and Liabilities - Agency Funds 85

Other Schedules:

15 Schedule of Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable 86

16 Analysis of Current Tax Levy - County-Wide Levy 87

17-A Secondary Market Disclosures 88

17-B Ten Largest Taxpayers 89

18 Analysis of Current Tax Levy - Fire Districts 90

121719 BCC Meeting

47



Watauga County, North Carolina
Table of Contents

June 30, 2019

Compliance Section:

91-92

93-94

95-96

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 97-102

Corrective Action Plan 105

Schedule of Prior Year Findings 106

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards 105-107

Reporting on Compliance and Internal Control over Financial Reporting Based
on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with
Government Auditing Standards

Report on Compliance with Requirements Applicable to Each Major Federal
Program and Internal Control over Compliance in Accordance with OMB
Uniform Guidance and the State Single Audit Implementation Act

Report on Compliance with Requirements Applicable to Each Major State
Program and Internal Control over Compliance in Accordance with OMB
Uniform Guidance and the State Single Audit Implementation Act

121719 BCC Meeting

48



FINANCIAL SECTION

121719 BCC Meeting

49



Independent Auditors’ Report 
�
���������	�

���������
��������	������������	�������
�
��������	��
����		����������	���
�
������������������������
�������������������
����������������
����������������������������������
������������ �����
����� ����� ��� ���� ���������� ��
����� ���� ����
����� ����������� 	������ ������
	����������������� ���� ������������������� ��! "#����� ���� ������������� ��� ���� �������� �����
�����
$��������������������
����������	����%���������������������
�����������������������������������&��
�
�	����	���������	��������������
����		����������	���
�
'����
��� ��� ����������� ���� ���� ����������� ��� ����� ����������� ��� ������ �������� �����
���� ��
����������$�����������������������������������������������(�����)���������*
�����+��������������
���� ������� �
���
�������� ��� 
�������� ��� ������� ������� �������� ��� ���� ����������� ��� �����
����������� ��� �������� �����
���� ����� ���� ����� ���
�
��������
�������
���� $������� ���� ��� ������ ���
�����&�
�
���������������	���������
�
,��� �������������� ��� ��� �-������ ������� �� ������ �������� �����
���� ������ �� ���� �����&�������� ���
�����������������������
�������*����	*./&��/������������������
����$������������������������������
$�������������������������������������������������������������������������������
�����������������
*����	*./����������������������������������������������������&������������������������������������
$���������������������������������������������(�����)���������*
������������������������������������
�������������������������Government Auditing Standards�� ��������������	�
���������0��������� ����
(�����)�����&�/����������������1����������$���������������
���������������������������������������
������$������������������������
����������������
�
��������
�������
��&��/����������������
�������
*����	*./�$������������������������$����Government Auditing Standards&�/����������������
����
���������������	�����2��������(�/�����
�2������
���*���������$���������������������������$����
Government Auditing Standards&��
�
*������� ��������������
������������������������������������������������
����������������������
���� �������� �����
���&� /��� ����������� ��������� ������ �� ���� ��������%� ����
���� �������� ����
������
�������������3����
��������
�������
�����������������������
�����$����������������������������&�
4�
�3������������3�������
������������������������������������������������������������%�������������
���������������������������������������
�������������������������������������������������������������
���������
��������������� ���� ����������������-������������������ �������������������� ���������%��
������� ������&� *����������� $�� �-������ �� ����� �����&� *� ������ ����� �������� ���������� ����
��������������� ��� ��������� ��������� ����� ��� ���� ������������� ��� ���������� ��������� ����
�����

�������
����
�������$������������������������������������������������������������
���&�
�

1

 

    
    

    
    

   A
n I

nd
ep

en
de

nt
 M

em
be

r o
f t

he
 B

DO
 A

llia
nc

e 

100 Coxe Avenue   |   Asheville, NC 28801   |   P 828.258.0363   |   F 828.252.0528   |   www.gk-cpa.com 
  

121719 BCC Meeting

50



�
�

�

����������������������������������$������������������������������������������������������������������
����������������&�
�
���	��	��
�
4������������������������������������������������
�������������������������������������������
��������
�����������������������������������������������������
���������������������������������������������������

�����������������������������
�������������
����������������	������������	������������������
� ��! "#��������������������������������������������������������$���$����������������������������
���� ���������� ��
������� ���� ���� ������� ���� ���� ���� ����� ���� ����� �� ����������$���� ���������
����������������������������������(�����)���������*
�����&�
�
��
����������
�
Required Supplementary Information 

*������������������������������������������(�����)���������*
��������1��������������'����
��%��
2��������� ���*������� �������� 5�" �� ����6�$�7�����
���,�������%�)�������)���������*���$����
4����������� /����%�� )��������� ��� ����	������ �� �������� 8����� 6�������������� 8����� 6���������� ���
	����%�� 	������������ �� ������ 9:� �������� ; �� �������������� ���� ,����� 8���� 7
����
��� ���������
)��������� ��� <����� 8��������� 	������ �� ���� ,87�� 6��������� ��� .������� .������� 	����%��
	������������ ��� 4����
��� .������ �� ������ ;"� �������� ;��� �������������� ���� 6����� 0����
���
7
�������%�.�����
���)����
%��)����������������8������������)����������������8�����6������������
	����%��	��������������������;5���������;9�����������������������.�����������2����%�)�����
�����
8����� <��� )�������� ��� ���� 	����%�� 8������������ )����� ��� ���� 8����� *����� ��� 	����%��
	������������ �� ������ ;;� �������� ;=�� �������������� ��� ��������� ��� ������
��� ���� ������ ��������
�����
���&� )���� ����
������ ��������� ��� �� ����� ��� ���� ������ �������� �����
����� ��� ��1������ ��� ����
0����
�����*��������)���������������$���������������������������������������������������������
����������� ���������� �������������
���� ��������������������������������
����������������������-�&�
�������������������������
�������������������������1������������
����������
�����������������$����
�������� ��������� ��������� ��������� �� ����(�����)������ ���*
�������$����� ��������� ��� �1������� ���

����
��� ������ ���� 
������� ��� ��������� ���� ����
����� ��� ��
������ ���� ����
����� ����
���������� $���� 
����
��%�� ��������� ��� ���� �1�������� ���� ������ �������� �����
����� ��� ������
3�$������$����������������������������������������������������
���&�����������-��������������
��� �������� ��� ��������� �� ���� ����
����� �������� ���� ��
����� ����������� ��� ��� �������� ��� $����
����������������������-������������������������������������&�

Supplementary and Other Information 
�
,���������$����������������������������������
�����������������������������
����������������������
��
������ ���� ������ �������� �����
���� ��� �������� 	������ ������ 	������&� /��� ��
����� ���
�������������������
����������������������������������������������$���������������
������)��������
���7-�������������<������� ���)�����*$����� ��� ��1���������/�����!�U.S. Code of Federal Regulations 
(CFR)� 8���� !  �� Uniform Administration Requirements, Cost Principals, and Audit Requirements for 
Federal Awards��������������������������������������������������������������1������������������������
�������������
���&��
�
/��� ��
����� ��� ���������� ���� �������� �����
����� ���������� ����������� ������ ����������� ��� ����
��������� ��� �-���������� ��� �������� ��� ������ �$����� ���� ���� �������������� ��� 
����
��� ��� $����
�����������
����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
�������������
���&�)��������
���������������������������������������������������������������������

2

121719 BCC Meeting

51



�
�

�

��������������������������
����������������������������������������������
�������������������
����� ����
����� ��������� ��� ���� ��������� ��������� ��� ������ �������� ����� ��� �������� ���� ������
�������� �����
���� ��� ��� ���� ������ �������� �����
���� ���
�������� ��������� ���������� ����������� ��
����������$��������������������������������������� �� ����(�����)���������*
�����&� 4������������
���� ��
����� ��� ���������� ���� �������� �����
����� ���������� ����������� ������ ����������� ��� ����
�������������-�������������������������������$������������������������������
�������������������������������
�����������������������
������3�������$����&�
�
��
����������	��������������Government Auditing Standards�

4�����������$����Government Auditing Standards,�$������������������������������������2���
����"���
! "#�������������������������������	����%�����������������������������������������������������
���������
�������$��������������������������$��������������������������������������
�������������

������&�/����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
��������������
�������������������������������������������������������������������������������
�����������������������������
������&�*�����������$���-�������������&�/������������������������
����������������������
��� ������������$����Government Auditing Standards� ��������������������
	����%�������������������������������������������
������&�
�
�
�
�
*����������������	�������
2���
����"���! "#�

3

121719 BCC Meeting

52



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION     
AND ANALYSIS

121719 BCC Meeting

53



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

4 

Watauga County
Year Ended June 30, 2019
As management of Watauga County, we offer readers of Watauga County’s financial statements this narrative overview and 
analysis of the financial activities of the County for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019.  We encourage users to read the 
information presented here in conjunction with additional information we have furnished in the County's financial statements and 
notes which follow this narrative.

Financial Highlights

� The assets and deferred outflows of the County exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows at the close of the fiscal 
year by $155,261,296. 

� The County’s total net position increased by $10,495,380 primarily due to an increase in cash assets from revenues,
particularly sales tax, exceeding budget coupled with operating expenditures below expected levels. 

� The County’s unassigned fund balance for the General Fund was $20,786,602 at the end of the year, representing 
40.1% of total General Fund expenditures. This is an increase of $649,173 in unassigned fund balance over the 
previous year. 

� Total County debt increased by $14,607,639 in outstanding principal. The increase was a result of financing for a 
community recreation center.

� The County: 
o Completed paving of the Industrial Field
o Received donated land for the Middlefork Greenway    
o Began a river access project at Guy Ford
o Began a Tower project to enhance emergency communications
o Continued a project to build a new recreation and community center that has been in the making for more than

3 decades
� S&P Global Ratings reaffirmed the County’s credit rating at AA and the County’s financial stability. 
� For the fifth year, the County was able to allocate funds to the Capital Projects Fund as part of the original budget 

ordinance denoting a continued rebound from the recession.

Overview of the Financial Statements
This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to Watauga County’s basic financial statements.  The 
County’s basic financial statements consist of three components, 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial 
statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. 

The basic financial statements present two different views of the County's finances through the use of government-wide 
statements and fund financial statements.  In addition to the basic financial statements, this report contains other supplemental 
information that will enhance the reader's understanding of the financial condition of Watauga County.    

Required Components of Annual Financial Report
Figure 1 

121719 BCC Meeting

54



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

5 

Basic Financial Statements
The first two statements (Exhibits A and B) in the basic financial statements are the Government-wide Financial Statements.
They provide both short and long-term information about the County’s financial status.

The next statements (Exhibits C through J) are Fund Financial Statements. These statements focus on the activities of the 
individual parts of the County's government. These statements provide more detail than the government-wide statements. There 
are four parts to the fund financial statements: 1) the governmental fund statements, 2) the budgetary comparison statements 3) 
the proprietary fund statements and 4) the fiduciary fund statements.  

The next sections of the basic financial statements are the notes. The notes to the financial statements explain in detail some of 
the data contained in those statements.  Directly following the notes is the supplemental information. This section first contains 
required supplemental information about the County's pension plans and the other postemployment benefits plan, followed by 
additional supplemental information. This supplemental information is provided to show details about the County’s individual
funds. Budgetary information required by the General Statutes also can be found in this part of the statements.

Government-wide Financial Statements
The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide the reader with a broad overview of the County’s finances, 
similar in format to a financial statement of a private-sector business.  The government-wide statements provide short and long-
term information about the County’s financial status as a whole.

The two government-wide statements report the County’s net position and how the net position has changed.  Net position is the 
difference between the County’s total assets and deferred outflows of resources and total liabilities and deferred inflows of 
resources.  Measuring net position is one way to gauge the County’s financial condition.

Government-wide financial statements may be divided into as many as three categories: 1) governmental activities, 2) business-
type activities, and 3) component units.  The governmental activities include most of the County's basic services such as public
safety, parks and recreation, and general administration.  Property taxes and state and federal grant funds finance most of these 
activities.  The business-type activities are those that the County charges customers to provide.  This includes solid waste
services offered by Watauga County.  The final category is the component units.  AppalCART is a separate governmental entity,
which operates a transportation authority in Watauga County.  Watauga County Board of Commissioners appoints the eight 
member governing body.  Watauga County provides some financial support and AppalCART is financially accountable to the 
County. The Watauga County District U Tourism Development Authority (TDA) is a separate governmental entity created to 
administer occupancy tax funds collected to promote tourism in the County. The seven voting members of the Authority Board are
appointed by the County Board of Commissioners.  

Fund Financial Statements
The fund financial statements provide a more detailed look at the County’s most significant activities.  A fund is a grouping of 
related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives.  
Watauga County, like all governmental entities in North Carolina, uses fund accounting to ensure and reflect compliance (or non-
compliance) with finance-related legal requirements, such as the General Statutes or the County’s budget ordinance.  All County 
funds can be divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds. 

Governmental Funds – Governmental funds are used to account for those functions reported as governmental activities in the 
government-wide financial statements.  Most of the County’s activities are accounted for in governmental funds.  These funds 
focus on how assets can readily be converted into cash flow in and out, and what monies are left at year-end that will be available 
for spending in the next year.  Governmental funds are reported using an accounting method called modified accrual accounting 
which focuses on current financial resources.  As a result, the governmental fund financial statements give the reader a detailed 
short-term view that helps him or her determine if there are more or less financial resources available to finance the County’s 
programs.  The relationship between governmental activities (reported in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of 
Activities) and governmental funds is described in a reconciliation that is a part of the fund financial statements.

The County adopts an annual budget for its General Fund, as required by the General Statutes.  The budget is a legally adopted
document that incorporates input from the citizens of the County, the management of the County, and the decisions of the Board 
about which services to provide and how to pay for them.  It also authorizes the County to obtain funds from identified sources to 

121719 BCC Meeting

55



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

6 

finance these current period activities.  The budgetary statement provided for the General Fund demonstrates how well the 
County complied with the budget ordinance and whether or not the County succeeded in providing the services as planned when 
the budget was adopted.  The budgetary comparison statement uses the budgetary basis of accounting and is presented using 
the same format, language, and classifications as the legal budget document.  The statement shows three columns: 1) the final 
budget as amended by the board, 2) the actual resources, charges to appropriations, and ending balances in the General Fund, 
and 3) the difference or variance between the final budget and the actual resources and charges.  To account for the difference 
between the budgetary basis of accounting and the modified accrual basis, a reconciliation showing the differences in the 
reported activities is shown at the end of the budgetary statement.

Proprietary Funds - Watauga County has one proprietary fund, the Solid Waste Fund. Enterprise funds are used to report the 
same functions presented as business-like activities in the government-wide financial statements.  Watauga County uses 
enterprise funds to account for its solid waste operations.  This fund is the same as those separate activities shown in the 
business-type activities in the Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities.

Fiduciary Funds - Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside of the government. 
Watauga County has eight fiduciary funds, two of which are pension trust funds and the other six are agency funds.

Notes to the Financial Statements – The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data 
provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.  The notes to the financial statements start on page 23 of this 
report.

Other Information – In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report includes certain required 
supplementary information concerning Watauga County's progress in funding its obligation to provide pension benefits to its 
employees and other postemployment benefits.  Required supplementary information can be found beginning on page 59 of this 
report.

Government-Wide Financial Analysis
Watauga County’s Net Position
Figure 2

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total

2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
Current and other assets $    83,302,688 $ 67,193,251 $ 7,759,834 $ 7,422,214 $ 91,062,522 $ 74,615,465
Net capital assets 123,614,625 111,474,245 4,814,605 4,705,609 128,429,230 116,179,854

Total assets 206,917,313 178,667,496 12,574,439 12,127,823 219,491,752 190,795,319

Total deferred outflows of resources 4,158,089 2,483,358 374,287 237,049 4,532,376 2,720,407

Long-term liabilities outstanding 61,153,455 43,855,222 1,535,245 1,377,857 62,688,700 45,233,079
Other liabilities 4,686,052 2,296,133 333,029 287,341 5,019,081 2,583,474

Total liabilities 65,839,507 46,151,355 1,868,274 1,665,198 67,707,781 47,816,553

Total deferred inflows of resources 995,686 899,934 59,365 33,323 1,055,051 933,257

Net position:
Net investment in capital assets 69,604,077 73,483,517 4,814,605 4,705,609 74,418,682 78,189,126
Restricted 18,622,588 6,439,806 - - 18,622,588 6,439,806
Unrestricted 56,013,544 54,176,242 6,206,482 5,960,742 62,220,026 60,136,984

Total net position $ 144,240,209 $ 134,099,565 $ 11,021,087 $ 10,666,351 $ 155,261,296 $ 144,765,916

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as one useful indicator of a government’s financial condition.  The assets of the 
County exceeded liabilities by $155,261,296 at June 30, 2019. The County’s net position increased by a total of $10,495,380 for
the fiscal year. Net position is reported in three categories:  Net investment in capital assets of $74,418,682 restricted net position
of $18,622,588; and unrestricted net position of $62,220,026. 

121719 BCC Meeting

56



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

7 

The net investment in capital assets is defined as the County's investment in County owned capital assets (e.g. land, buildings, 
automotive equipment, office and other equipment), less any related debt still outstanding that was issued to acquire those items. 
The County uses these assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. 
Although the County's investment in its capital assets is reported net of the outstanding debt, the resources needed to repay that 
debt must be provided by other sources, since the capital assets cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.  At June 30, 2019,
the increase in this category of net position correlates to reduced outstanding debt along with increased capital assets. 

Another category of net position is restricted net position. This represents resources that are subject to external restrictions on 
how they may be used. The County has restricted assets due to statutory requirements for Register of Deeds Automation 
Enhancement Funds, Tax Revaluation, and Stabilization by State Statutes. Special revenues funds and Register of Deeds 
pension assets account for the balance of the restricted net position. 

The final category of net position is unrestricted net position. This balance may be used to meet the government's ongoing 
obligations to citizens and creditors. Several particular aspects of the County's financial operations affected the reporting of total 
unrestricted net position: 

� Higher current cash and cash equivalent assets;

Watauga County Changes in Net Position
Figure 3

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018

Revenues
Program revenues:
Charges for services $ 2,608,634 $ 2,305,329 $ 5,092,325 $ 4,970,636 $    7,700,959 $ 7,275,965
Operating grants and contributions 4,615,840 4,386,375 150,629 156,093 4,766,469 4,542,468
Capital grants 521,602 468,801 - - 521,602 468,801
General revenues:

Property taxes 36,029,382 35,747,188 - - 36,029,382 35,747,188
Other taxes 15,600,007 14,749,663 - - 15,600,007 14,749,663
Grant and contributions not restricted to 

specific programs 4,699,806 3,813,637 - - 4,699,806 3,813,637
Other 1,370,455 549,545 126,841 82,688 1,497,296 632,233

Sale of capital assets (453,952) (215,248) - - (453,952) (215,248)
Total revenues 64,991,774 61,805,290 5,369,795 5,209,417 70,361,569 67,014,707

Expenses
General government 9,016,992 10,229,602 - - 9,016,992 10,229,602
Public safety 14,818,024 14,449,460 - - 14,818,024 14,449,460
Transportation 224,792 225,389 - - 224,792 225,389
Economic & physical development 2,544,199 630,501 - - 2,544,199 630,501
Environment protection 383,857 368,964 - - 383,857 368,964
Humans services 7,776,908 7,033,720 - - 7,776,908 7,033,720
Cultural and recreation 2,122,231 2,060,674 - - 2,122,231 2,060,674
Education 16,245,320 15,497,221 - - 16,245,320 15,497,221
Interest on long-term debt 1,718,807 1,408,358 - - 1,718,807 1,408,358
Solid Waste - - 5,015,059 4,229,372 5,015,059 4,229,372
     Total expenses 54,851,130 51,903,889 5,015,059 4,229,372 59,866,189 56,133,261
Increase in net position before special items 10,140,644 9,901,401 354,736 980,045 10,495,380 10,881,446
Special item – loss on sale of old Watauga 
High School - (7,698,452) - - - (7,698,452)

Increase in net position after special items 10,140,644 2,202,949 354,736 980,045 10,495,380 3,182,994
Net position, beginning, previously reported 134,099,565 133,407,476 10,666,351 10,965,072 144,765,916 144,372,548
Restatement - (1,510,860) - (1,278,766) - (2,789,626)
Net position, beginning, restated 134,099,565 131,896,616 10,666,351 9,686,306 144,765,916 136,284,553
Net position, ending $ 144,240,209 $134,099,565 $11,021,087 $10,666,351 $155,261,296 $144,765,916

121719 BCC Meeting

57



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

8 

Governmental activities: Governmental activities increased the County’s net position by $10,140,644, thereby accounting for 
96.6% of the total growth in the net position of Watauga County.  Key elements of this increase are as follows:

� Sales tax increases due to the improved economic factors particularly in the tourism industry, resulted in revenues above
projection;

� Continued high property tax collections at a rate of 99.01% for the current fiscal year;
� Close monitoring of expenditures throughout the year with actual expenditures below budget.

Business-type activities:  Business-type activities increased Watauga County’s net position by $354,736, 3.3%.  Key elements 
of this increase are as follows:

� Revenues in excess of projections for sale of recycled materials due to market pricing higher than expected;
� Revenues for investment earnings were above projections due to a strong market;
� Close monitoring of expenditures throughout the year with actual expenditures below budget.

Financial Analysis of the County’s Funds
Watauga County uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal and accounting 
requirements.

Governmental Funds – The focus of Watauga County’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, 
outflows, and balances of usable resources.  Such information is useful in assessing the County’s financing requirements.  
Specifically, fund balance available for appropriation can be a useful measure of a government’s net resources available for 
spending at the end of the fiscal year.

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the County.  At the end of the current fiscal year, the unassigned fund balance of 
the General Fund increased to $20,786,602 while total fund balance increased to $26,892,370. As a measure of the General 
Fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unassigned fund balance and total fund balance to total fund expenditures.  
Unassigned fund balance represents 40.1 percent of total General Fund expenditures, while total fund balance represents 51.9
percent of that same amount.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights - During the fiscal year, the County revised the budget on several occasions.  Generally, 
budget amendments fall into one of three categories:  1) amendments made to adjust the estimates that are used to prepare the
original budget ordinance once more exact information is available; 2) amendments made to recognize new funding amounts from 
external sources, such as Federal and State grants; and 3) increases in appropriations that become necessary to maintain 
services. Total amendments to the General Fund increased revenues, transfers and expenditures by $8,788,735 with 
approximately $5,944,300 of the amendments related to appropriations of fund balance. Of this amount, $3.6 million was set 
aside for the recreation center project, $267,133 for unused school lottery projects, $1,094,929 for carried forward projects, 
$752,000 for the purchase of the Water Street property, and $230,000 for additional adoption and social services expenditures. 
Within the remaining fund balance amendments of $2,844,435; $220,793 was for school lottery projects, $331,000 for the 
donation of land, $732,394 for additional intergovernmental revenues recognized or awarded, and the remaining for various 
expenditures including completion of County and School projects. The actual operating revenues for the General Fund were 
$2,879,198 more than the budgeted amount.  Actual operating expenses were less than budgeted by $3,924,657.  

Proprietary Funds - Watauga County's proprietary fund is used to provide information on the solid waste enterprise.  Unrestricted 
net position of the Solid Waste Fund at the end of the fiscal year amounted to $6,206,482. The total increase in proprietary net 
position was $354,736.  

121719 BCC Meeting

58



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

9 

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital Assets: Watauga County's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business type activities as of June 30, 
2019, totals $128,429,230 (net of depreciation). These assets include construction in progress, buildings, land, equipment, 
improvements, and vehicles. Major capital asset transactions during the year include:

� Purchased new vehicles and numerous pieces of equipment for County governmental departments;
� Completed paving of the Industrial Field;
� Received donated land for the Middlefork Greenway;
� Began a river access project at Guy Ford;
� Began a Tower project to enhance emergency communications;
� Continued a project to build a new recreation and community center

Watauga County's Capital Assets, Net of Depreciation
Figure 4

Governmental 
Activities

Business 
Activities Total

2019 2019 2019
Land $ 21,544,911 $ 975,497 $ 22,520,408
Buildings 76,491,354 2,778,592 79,269,946
Other improvements 1,714,637 72,200 1,786,837
Leasehold improvements 5,692,448 6,052 5,698,500
Equipment 939,089 242,819 1,181,908
Vehicles 1,027,129 739,446 1,766,575
Construction in progress 16,189,455 - 16,189,455
Intangible assets 15,600 - 15,600
Total $ 123,614,625 $ 4,814,605 $ 128,429,230

Additional information on the County's capital assets can be found in note 3.A.6 of this report. 

Long-term Debt. As of June 30, 2019, Watauga County had no bonded debt outstanding or authorized.

Watauga County's Outstanding Debt
Figure 5

Governmental Activities
2018 2019

Installment purchase $ 34,996,388 $ 49,604,027

Watauga County's total debt increased by $14,607,639 or (41%) during the past fiscal year due to scheduled debt service 
payments and the community recreation center loan for $18,490,000. There is no debt associated with the business activities. The 
State of North Carolina limits the amount of debt that a unit of government can issue to 8 percent of the total assessed value of 
taxable property located within that government's boundaries less outstanding debt principal.  The legal debt margin for 
Watauga County as of June 30, 2019 is $688,841,459. Additional information regarding Watauga County's long-term debt can be 
found in Note 3.B.6.b of this report. 

Economic Factors

The following key economic factors reflect the fiscal environment the County is working in:

- The County continues to experience growth in tourism and has seen continued revenue increases
for more than nine years related to tourism with revenues at just over $1.8 million now;

121719 BCC Meeting

59



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

10

- The County’s unemployment rate remained low at 4.2% as of June 2019, which is consistent with 
the trends seen before the economic recession;

- Appalachian State University provides continued stability to the local economy as a major employer 
and source of overall positive economic impact from the student population;

- Construction and real estate sales have continued to show increases, consistent with state and 
national trends. 

Budget Highlights for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2020

Governmental activities – The County’s property tax rate increased 5 cents per $100 in property valuation to 40.3 cents per 
$100 in property valuation. Sales tax revenue is projected with a 1.8 percent increase based on state projections. Other revenues 
are expected to maintain current levels with minor increases.

Budgeted expenditures in the General Fund have increased predominately due to an increase to debt service, increase in foster 
care, and transfers to the Capital Project Fund.  Capital purchases are allocated mainly for vehicle and roof replacements with 
other projects still limited to primarily repairs and maintenance. Funds are allocated to be set aside this year for future capital 
school projects of $4,700,000 including the $4,200,000 generated from the tax increase and $4,607,737 for county projects-
mainly funding $500,000 for emergency communications, $1,000,000 for future maintenance and repairs, $200,000 for 
renovations for juvenile court, $907,737 for two (2) new roofs, $400,000 for West Annex culvert replacement and $1,000,000 for 
relocation of baseball fields, tennis, pickle ball and basketball courts.        

Businesses-type activities – Budgeted revenues for solid waste service revenues are projected at a 25.6% increase due to an 
increase in solid waste tipping fees.  Funds have been budgeted for capital additions of a motograder, eight (8) trailers, four (4) 
road tractors and a container truck totaling $1,571,258.

Requests for Information

This report is designed to provide an overview of the County’s finances for those with an interest in this area.  Questions 
concerning any of the information found in this report or requests for additional information should be directed to the Watauga 
County Finance Director, 814 West King Street, Suite 216, Boone, NC  28607. The report can also be found on our website 
www.wataugacounty.org/main/App_Pages/Dept/Finance/countyAudits.aspx.

121719 BCC Meeting

60



BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

121719 BCC Meeting

61



Exhibit A

Watauga County
District U Tourism

Governmental Business-type  Development
Activities Activities Total AppalCART Authority

ASSETS
Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents $ 48,202,370       $ 7,359,855       $ 55,562,225 $ 3,392,146   $ 3,357,085          
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 12,837,745       -                     12,837,745 -                   -                         
Receivables (net) 1,253,690         365,420          1,619,110    47,680         -                         
Due from other governments 5,431,833         34,559            5,466,392   170,342       298,156             
Prepaid expenses -                        -                     -                   1,552           -                         
Inventory -                        -                     -                   205,576       -                         

Total current assets 67,725,638       7,759,834       75,485,472  3,817,296   3,655,241          

Non-current assets
Net pension asset - ROD 102,050            -                     102,050     -                   -                         
Note receivable 15,475,000       -                     15,475,000 -                   -                         
Capital assets:

   Land, intangible, and construction in progress 37,749,967       975,497          38,725,464  1,121,092   -                         
   Other capital assets, net of depreciation 85,864,658       3,839,108       89,703,766  14,347,925  -                        
     Total capital assets 123,614,625     4,814,605       128,429,230 15,469,017 -                         

Total non-current assets 139,191,675     4,814,605       144,006,280 15,469,017 -                         
Total assets 206,917,313     12,574,439     219,491,752 19,286,313 3,655,241          

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension deferrals 3,159,481         259,471          3,418,952    -                   48,376               
OPEB deferrals 998,608            114,816          1,113,424    -                   -                         

Total deferred outflows of resources 4,158,089         374,287          4,532,376    -                   48,376               

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 3,895,610         333,029          4,228,639    210,088       15,782               
Accrued interest payable 188,640            -                     188,640     38,195         -                         
Due to other governments 566,310            -                     566,310     -                   -                         
Liabilities payable from restricted assets 35,492              -                     35,492       -                   -                         
Debt service due within one year 5,435,536         142,067          5,577,603    -                   -                         

Total current liabilities 10,121,588       475,096          10,596,684  248,283       15,782               

Long-term liabilities
Due in more than one year 55,717,919       1,393,178       57,111,097  81,675         62,155               

     Total liabilities 65,839,507       1,868,274       67,707,781  329,958       77,937               

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension deferrals 268,730            2,707              271,437       -                   4,055                 
OPEB deferrals 655,132            56,658            711,790       -                   -                         
Unearned revenue 68,136              -                     -                   2,000           -                         
Prepaid taxes 3,688                -                     3,688          -                   -                         

     Total deferred inflows of resources 995,686            59,365            1,055,051   2,000           4,055                 

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 69,604,077       4,814,605       74,418,682  15,469,017  -                        
Restricted for:

Stabilization by State Statute 5,790,845         -                     5,790,845  -                   298,156             
Register of Deeds' pension plan 138,461            -                     138,461     -                   -                         
Public safety 392,826            -                     392,826     -                   -                         
Capital projects - recreation center project 11,958,319       -                     11,958,319 -                   -                         
Register of Deeds Automation/Enhancement 23,290              -                     23,290         -                   -                         
Revaluation 318,847            -                     318,847     -                   -                         
Transportation -                        -                     -                   -                  -                         

Unrestricted 56,013,544       6,206,482       62,220,026  3,485,338   3,323,469          
Total net position $ 144,240,209     $ 11,021,087     $ 155,261,296 $ 18,954,355 $ 3,621,625          

Primary Government Component Units

Watauga County, North Carolina
Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2019

11
The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement

121719 BCC Meeting

62



Operating Grants Capital Grants
Charges for and and 

Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions
Primary government:
Governmental Activities:
   General government $ 9,016,992 $ 1,486,829 $ 477,066 $ -
   Public safety 14,818,024 765,436 40,453 63,774
   Transportation 224,792 - 157,236 -
   Economic and physical development 2,544,199 12,000 28,757 -
   Environmental protection 383,857 - 114,285 -
   Human services 7,776,908 61,345 3,798,043 -
   Cultural and recreational 2,122,231 282,089 - -
   Education 16,245,320 935 - 457,828
   Interest and fees on long-term debt 1,718,807 - - -
     Total governmental activities 54,851,130 2,608,634 4,615,840 521,602

Business-type activities:
   Solid waste 5,015,059 5,092,325 150,629 -

     Total $ 59,866,189 $ 7,700,959 $ 4,766,469 $ 521,602

Component units:
AppalCART $ 5,427,291 $ 2,099,996 $ 2,052,207 $ 2,038,607

   Watauga County District U Tourism
    Development Authority $ 1,295,419 $ - $ 285,655 $ -

General revenues:
   Taxes:

Property taxes, levied for general purpose
Local option sales tax
Other taxes and licenses
Grants and contributions not restricted to specific programs
Investment earnings, unrestricted
Gain (loss) sale of fixed assets

Miscellaneous, unrestricted
Total general revenues
Change in net position

Net position, beginning
Net position, ending

Program Revenues

Watauga County, North Carolina
Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

12
The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement

121719 BCC Meeting

63



Exhibit B

Watauga County
District U

Governmental Business-type Tourism Development
Activities Activities Total AppalCART Authority

$ (7,053,097) $ - $ (7,053,097)
(13,948,361) - (13,948,361)

(67,556) - (67,556)
(2,503,442) - (2,503,442)

(269,572) - (269,572)
(3,917,520) - (3,917,520)
(1,840,142) - (1,840,142)

(15,786,557) - (15,786,557)
(1,718,807) - (1,718,807)

(47,105,054) - (47,105,054)

- 227,895 227,895

(47,105,054) 227,895 (46,877,159)

$ 763,519

$ (1,009,764)

36,029,382 - 36,029,382 - -
12,809,697 - 12,809,697 - -
2,790,310 - 2,790,310 - 1,809,176
4,699,806 - 4,699,806 - -
1,370,455 123,643 1,494,098 42,959 59,623
(453,952) - (453,952) - -

- 3,198 3,198 16,242 327
57,245,698 126,841 57,372,539 59,201 1,869,126
10,140,644 354,736 10,495,380 822,720 859,362

134,099,565 10,666,351 144,765,916 18,131,635 2,762,263
$ 144,240,209 $ 11,021,087 $ 155,261,296 $ 18,954,355 $ 3,621,625

Net (Expense) Revenues and Changes in Net Position
Primary Government Component Units

13
The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement

121719 BCC Meeting

64



Exhibit C

Capital Recreation Other Total 
Projects Center Governmental Governmental 

General Fund Project Fund Funds Funds
ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents $ 23,207,917  $ 9,977,291   $ 15,017,162      $ -                       $ 48,202,370       
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 342,137      -                  11,958,319      537,289           12,837,745       
Taxes receivable, net 694,854      -                  -                       258,465           953,319            
Due from other governments 5,163,055   -                  224,492           44,286             5,431,833         
Accounts receivable, net 162,218      -                  -                       -                       162,218            
Note receivable 15,475,000  -                  -                       -                       15,475,000       

     Total assets $ 45,045,181  $ 9,977,291   $ 27,199,973      $ 840,040           $ 83,062,485       

LIABILITIES 
   Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 1,645,377   $ -                  $ 2,250,233        $ -                       $ 3,895,610         
   Due to other governments 265,756      -                  -                       300,554           566,310            
   Liabilities to be paid from restricted assets -                 -                  -                       35,492             35,492              
     Total liabilities 1,911,133   -                  2,250,233        336,046           4,497,412         

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
   Taxes receivable 694,854      -                  -                       83,954             778,808            
   Prepaid taxes 3,688          -                  -                       -                       3,688                

Unearned revenue 68,136        -                  -                       -                       68,136              
Note receivable 15,475,000  -                  -                       -                       15,475,000       

     Total deferred inflows of resources 16,241,678  -                  -                       83,954             16,325,632       

FUND BALANCES
   Restricted for:
     Stabilization by State Statute 5,763,631   -                  -                       27,214             5,790,845         
     Public safety -                 -                  -                       392,826           392,826            
     Register of Deeds 23,290        -                  -                       -                       23,290              
     Unexpended bond proceeds -                 -                  11,958,319      -                       11,958,319       
     Revaluation 318,847      -                  -                       -                       318,847            
   Committed for:

Capital projects -                 9,977,291   12,991,421      -                       22,968,712       
   Assigned for:

Future years' appropriation -                 -                  -                       -                       -                        
   Unassigned 20,786,602  -                  -                       -                       20,786,602       
        Total fund balances 26,892,370  9,977,291   24,949,740      420,040           62,239,441       

$ 45,045,181  $ 9,977,291   $ 27,199,973      $ 840,040           $ 83,062,485       

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position (Exhibit A) are different because:

Total Fund Balance, Governmental Funds $ 62,239,441       
Net pension asset - ROD 102,050            

123,614,625     

  138,153            
Deferred inflows for note receivable 15,475,000       
Deferred inflows of resources for taxes receivable 778,808            

1,007,711         

254,526            
OPEB related deferrals, net 88,950              
Pension related deferrals-all plans, net 1,883,040         
Net OPEB liability (2,065,069)        
Net pension liability - LEOSSA (281,508)           
Net pension liability - LGERS (3,611,821)        

  (55,383,697)      

Net position of governmental activities $ 144,240,209     

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, 
and fund balances

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current period expenditures and therefore are unavailable in the
funds.

Some liabilities, including net pension liabilities, debt related payables and other postemployment benefits, are not due
and payable in the current period and therefore  are not reported in the funds.

Watauga County, North Carolina

Balance Sheet
June 30, 2019

Governmental Funds

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and therefore are not reported in the funds.

Contributions and administration costs for OPEB are deferred outflows of resources on the Statement of Net Position

Contributions to the pension plans in the current fiscal year are deferred outflows of resources on the Statement of Net 
Position

14
The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement

121719 BCC Meeting

65



Exhibit D-1

Non-Major Funds
Capital Recreation Other Total 

General Projects Center Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund Project Fund Funds Funds

REVENUES
Ad valorem taxes $ 32,786,204 $ - $ - $ 3,358,762 $ 36,144,966
Other taxes and licenses 13,762,455 - - 1,837,552 15,600,007
Unrestricted intergovernmental 4,289,742 - - - 4,289,742
Restricted intergovernmental 4,881,639 - - 396,025 5,277,664
Permits and fees 787,275 - - - 787,275
Sales and services 1,194,343 - - - 1,194,343
Investment earnings 462,514 145,631 756,209 6,101 1,370,455
Donations 380,812 - - - 380,812
Miscellaneous 516,146 - - - 516,146
   Total revenues 59,061,130 145,631 756,209 5,598,440 65,561,410

EXPENDITURES
Current:
   General government 8,332,577 - - - 8,332,577
   Public safety 10,947,120 - - 3,709,957 14,657,077
   Transportation 224,792 - - - 224,792
   Economic and physical development 673,905 - - 1,837,552 2,511,457
   Environmental protection 373,439 - - - 373,439
   Human services 7,423,176 - - - 7,423,176
   Cultural and recreational 1,615,722 - 14,313,345 - 15,929,067
   Education 16,245,320 - - - 16,245,320
Debt service:
   Principal 3,882,361 - - - 3,882,361
   Interest 2,101,148 - - - 2,101,148
     Total expenditures 51,819,560 - 14,313,345 5,547,509 71,680,414

        Revenues over (under) expenditures 7,241,570 145,631 (13,557,136) 50,931 (6,119,004)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Sale of capital assets 12,154 - - - 12,154
Proceeds from long-term debt - - 18,490,000 - 18,490,000
Premium long-term debt 1,723,277 1,723,277
Transfers from other funds 1,560,248 4,707,263 3,600,000 - 9,867,511
Transfers to other funds (8,307,263) (1,560,248) - - (9,867,511)
   Total other financing sources and uses (6,734,861) 3,147,015 23,813,277 - 20,225,431

   Net change in fund balance 506,709 3,292,646 10,256,141 50,931 14,106,427

Fund balance, beginning of year 26,385,661 6,684,645 14,693,599 369,109 48,133,014

Fund balance, end of year $ 26,892,370 $ 9,977,291 $ 24,949,740 $ 420,040 $ 62,239,441

Watauga County, North Carolina
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019
Governmental Funds

Major Funds

15
The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement

121719 BCC Meeting

66



Exhibit D-2

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are
   different because:

Net changes in fund balances - total governmental funds $ 14,106,427     
   

  

Capital outlay expenditures which were capitalized $ 16,134,072     
Sale of assets not fully depreciated (466,106)         
Depreciation expense for governmental assets (3,527,585)      

12,140,381     

868,100          

254,526          

139,611          

Change in unavailable revenue for tax revenues (115,585)         
(115,585)         

OPEB plan expense (291,009)         
Pension expense-LGERS and ROD (1,034,141)      
Compensated absences 98,079            
Pension expense-LEOSSA (77,170)           
Amortization of bond premiums 440,124          
     Combined adjustment (864,117)         

Principal payments on long term debt 3,882,361       
Issuance of long term debt (18,490,000)    
Premium on LOBs (1,723,277)      
Increase in accrued interest payable (57,783)           

(16,388,699)    

     Total changes in net position of governmental activities $ 10,140,644     

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to
governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt
consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither
transaction has any effect on net position. This amount is the net effect of
these differences in the treatment of long-term debt and related items.

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in
the Statement of Activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their
estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the
amount by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the current
period.

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current
financial resources are not reported as revenues in the funds.

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the
use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as
expenditures in governmental funds.

Contributions to the pension plans in the current fiscal year are not
included on the Statement of Activities.

OPEB benefit payments and administrative costs made in the current fiscal
year are not included on the Statement of Activities.

Benefit payments paid and administrative expense for the LEOSSA in the
current fiscal year are not included on the Statement of Activities.

Watauga County, North Carolina
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, 

Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance of Governmental Funds
To the Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

16
The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement

121719 BCC Meeting

67



Exhibit E

Actual Variance with 
Original Final Amounts Final Budget-

Revenues:
   Ad valorem taxes $ 31,837,000 $ 31,837,000 $ 32,786,204 $ 949,204
   Other taxes and licenses 12,943,000 13,029,900 13,762,455 732,555
   Unrestricted intergovernmental 3,360,000 3,360,000 4,289,742 929,742
   Restricted intergovernmental 4,484,120 5,350,407 4,881,639 (468,768)
   Permits and fees 678,455 678,455 787,275 108,820
   Sales and services 1,072,610 1,072,610 1,194,343 121,733
   Investment earnings 173,000 173,000 462,514 289,514
   Donations 30,700 361,700 380,812 19,112
   Miscellaneous 318,860 318,860 516,146 197,286
     Total revenues 54,897,745 56,181,932 59,061,130 2,879,198

Expenditures:
     General government 8,093,265 10,299,551 8,332,577 1,966,974
     Public safety 11,398,875 11,586,431 10,947,120 639,311
     Transportation 67,495 224,792 224,792 -
     Economic and physical development 536,605 719,244 673,905 45,339
     Environmental protection 377,895 390,644 373,439 17,205
     Human services 7,394,400 7,981,319 7,423,176 558,143
     Cultural and recreation 1,712,865 1,733,443 1,615,722 117,721
     Education 15,257,705 16,825,283 16,245,320 579,963
   Debt service:
     Principal retirement 3,882,361 3,882,361 3,882,361 -
     Interest and other charges 1,584,109 2,101,149 2,101,148 1
        Total expenditures 50,305,575 55,744,217 51,819,560 3,924,657

Revenues over (under) expenditures 4,592,170 437,715 7,241,570 6,803,855

Other financing sources (uses):
Sale of capital assets 40,000 40,000 12,154 (27,846)

   Transfers from other funds - 1,560,248 1,560,248 -
   Transfers to other funds (4,957,170) (8,307,263) (8,307,263) -
   Fund balance appropriated 325,000 6,269,300 - (6,269,300)
     Total other financing sources (uses) (4,592,170) (437,715) (6,734,861) (6,297,146)

   Net change in fund balance $ - $ - $ 506,709 $ 506,709

Fund balance, beginning of year 26,385,661

Fund balance, end of year $ 26,892,370

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - 
Watauga County, North Carolina

General Fund

Budget

Budget and Actual - General Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

17
The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement

121719 BCC Meeting

68



Exhibit F

Enterprise Fund

Solid Waste
Fund

   ASSETS
   Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 7,359,855            
Receivables, net 365,420               
Due from other governments 34,559                 
   Total current assets 7,759,834            

   Non-current assets:
Capital assets:
  Land and construction in progress 975,497               
  Other capital assets, net of depreciation 3,839,108            

Total capital assets 4,814,605            
      Total assets 12,574,439          

  DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
OPEB deferrals 114,816               

259,471               
   Total deferred outflows of resources 374,287               

   LIABILITIES
   Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 333,029               
Accrued compensated absences - current 20,322                 
Accrued landfill postclosure and closure costs - current 121,745               
   Total current liabilities 475,096               

   Non-current liabilities:
Net pension liability 316,540               
Net OPEB liability 178,596               
Accrued landfill postclosure and closure costs - noncurrent 815,490               
Accrued compensated absences 82,552                 
   Total non-current liabilities 1,393,178            

   Total liabilities 1,868,274            

   DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
OPEB deferrals 56,658                 

2,707                   
   Total deferred inflows of resources 59,365                 

   NET POSITION
   Net investment in capital assets 4,814,605            
   Unrestricted 6,206,482            
     Total net position $ 11,021,087          

Pension deferrals

Watauga County, North Carolina
Statement of Net Position

Proprietary Fund
June 30, 2019

Pension deferrals

18
The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement

121719 BCC Meeting

69



Exhibit G

Enterprise Fund

Solid Waste
Fund

OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for services $ 4,769,487
Sale of recycled materials 322,838

   Total operating revenues 5,092,325

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Landfill operations 4,581,882
Recycling operations 96,059
Depreciation 337,118

   Total operating expenses 5,015,059

      Operating income 77,266

NONOPERATING REVENUES:
Interest and investment revenue 123,643
Miscellaneous revenues 3,198
Restricted intergovernmental revenues 150,629

   Total nonoperating revenues 277,470

      Change in net position 354,736

Total net position, beginning 10,666,351

Total net position, ending $ 11,021,087

Watauga County, North Carolina
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position

Proprietary Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

19
The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement

121719 BCC Meeting

70



Exhibit H

Enterprise Fund

Solid Waste 
Fund

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from customers $ 5,057,339
Cash paid for goods and services (3,183,473)
Cash paid to employees for services (1,402,588)

Net cash provided by operating activities 471,278

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Restricted intergovernmental revenues 147,212
Miscellaneous revenues 3,198

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 150,410

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Proceeds received from sale of fixed assets -
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (446,114)

Net cash used by capital and related financing activities (446,114)

Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest on investments 123,643

Net cash provided by investing activities 123,643

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 299,217

Cash and cash equivalents, July 1 7,060,638

Cash and cash equivalents, June 30 $ 7,359,855

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided by
operating activities:

Operating income $ 77,266

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash
   provided by operating activities:

Depreciation 337,118
Changes in assets, liabilities, deferred outflows and inflows of resources:

Increase in deferred outflow of resources - pensions (101,698)
Increase in deferred inflow of resources -  OPEB 30,749
Increase in deferred outflows of resources -  OPEB (35,540)
Increase in net pension liability 114,474
Increase in net OPEB liability 24,651
Decrease in deferred inflow of resources - pensions (4,707)
Increase in accrued landfill postclosure and closure costs 20,760

   Increase in accounts receivable (34,986)
   Increase in accounts payable 45,688
   Decrease in accrued compensated absences (2,497)

Total adjustments 394,012

Net cash provided by operating activities $ 471,278

Watauga County, North Carolina
Statement of Cash Flows

Proprietary Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

20
The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement

121719 BCC Meeting

71



Exhibit I

Irrevocable
Trust Agency
Funds Funds

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,465,795 $ 62,540
Accounts receivable 13,007 20,510

$ 2,478,802 $ 83,050

Liabilities and Net Position

Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ - $ 83,050

- 83,050

Net position:
Assets held in trust for postemployment benefits other than pensions $ 1,911,459 $ -
Assets held in trust for law enforcement officers' special separation allowance 
benefits 567,343 -

$ 2,478,802 $ -

Watauga County, North Carolina
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position

Fiduciary Funds
June 30, 2019

21
The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement

121719 BCC Meeting

72



Exhibit J

Irrevocable
Trust
Funds

Additions:

Employer contributions $ 394,091
Interest earned 44,139

Total additions 438,230

Deductions:

Benefits 176,591
Administrative expense 22,057

Total deductions 198,648

Change in net position 239,582

Net position restricted for post employment benefits other 
than pensions and law enforcement officers' special separation allowance

Beginning of year 2,239,220
End of year $ 2,478,802

Watauga County, North Carolina
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position

Fiduciary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

22
The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement

121719 BCC Meeting

73



WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

 

 
 

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: 

The accounting policies of Watauga County and its component units conform to generally accepted
accounting principles as applicable to governments. The following is a summary of the more 
significant accounting policies:

A. Reporting Entity: 
The County, which is governed by a five-member Board of Commissioners, is one of the 100 counties 
established in North Carolina under North Carolina General Statue 153A-10. As required by generally 
accepted accounting principles, these financial statements present the County and its component 
units, legally-separate entities for which the County is financially accountable. The discretely 
presented component units presented below are reported in separate columns in the County’s 
combined financial statements in order to emphasize that they are legally separate from the County.

AppalCART
AppalCART operates mainly in Watauga County in the northwest part of North Carolina, providing 
transportation services to the various areas and residents within Watauga County. Watauga County’s 
Board of Commissioners appoints the eight member governing board of AppalCART and AppalCART 
operates within the County’s boundaries for the benefit of the County’s residents. The County
provides some financial support to AppalCART, but it is not responsible for the debts of AppalCART 
except when such are expressly granted by statute or by the consent of the Board of Commissioners 
of Watauga County. The Board of Commissioners of Watauga County has the authority to terminate 
the existence of AppalCART at any time, provided a 60-day written notice is given to AppalCART, 
and all property and assets of AppalCART shall automatically become the property of Watauga 
County and the County shall succeed to all rights, obligations and liabilities of AppalCART. 
AppalCART designates its own management, approves its own budget, and maintains its own 
accounting system; however, AppalCART is fiscally accountable to Watauga County and the County 
has the authority to examine all records and accounts at any time. AppalCART, which has a June 30 
year-end, is presented as if it were a proprietary fund. Complete financial statements may be 
obtained from the entity’s administrative offices at AppalCART, 305 Hwy 105 Bypass, Boone, NC
28607.

Watauga County District U Tourism Development Authority
The North Carolina General Legislation enacted a law which authorized Watauga County to levy a 
room occupancy tax; and the Watauga County Commissioners adopted a resolution levying this tax 
and created the Watauga County District U Tourism Development Authority. The Authority operates 
within Watauga County’s boundaries for the promotion and development of tourism, and the County 
provides room occupancy tax proceeds as their main source of revenue to the Authority, but the 
County is not responsible for the debts and is not entitled to the surpluses of the Authority. The 
Watauga County’s Board of Commissioners appoints the seven voting members of the Authority. The 
Watauga County District U Tourism Development Authority has a June 30 year end and is presented 
as if it is a governmental fund. Complete financial statements may be obtained from the entity’s 
administrative offices at Watauga County District U Tourism Development Authority, 815 West King 
Street, Suite 10, Boone, NC  28607.

B. Basis of Presentation – Basis of Accounting
Basis of Presentation, Measurement Focus – Basis of Accounting
Government-wide Statements: The Statements of Net Position and the Statements of Activities 
display information about the primary government (the County) and its component units. These 
statements include the financial activities of the overall government, except for fiduciary activities. 
Eliminations have been made to minimize the double counting of internal activities. These statements 
distinguish between the governmental and business-type activities of the County. Governmental 
activities generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other non-exchange 
transactions. Business-type activities are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external 
parties.

23

121719 BCC Meeting

74



WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

 

 
 

The Statement of Activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues 
for the different business-type activities of the County and for each function of the County’s 
governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or 
function and, therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular function. Indirect expense allocations 
that have been made in the funds have been reversed for the statement of activities. Program 
revenues include (a) fees and charges paid by the recipients of goods and services offered by the 
programs and (b) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital 
requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, 
including all taxes, are presented as general revenues. 

Fund Financial Statements: The fund financial statements provide information about the County’s 
funds, including its fiduciary funds. Separate statements for each fund category – governmental, 
proprietary, and fiduciary – are presented. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major 
governmental and enterprise funds, each displayed in a separate column. All remaining governmental 
and enterprise funds are aggregated and reported as non-major funds.

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange transactions 
associated with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are those in which each party 
receives and gives up essentially equal values. Non-operating revenues, such as subsidies and 
investment earnings, result from non-exchange transactions or ancillary activities.

The County reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund – This is the County’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of 
the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

Capital Projects Fund – This is a capital projects fund. It accounts for the County’s reserves set aside 
for future capital needs.

Recreation Center Project Fund – This is a project fund to account for the County’s community 
recreation center project.  

The County reports the following major enterprise fund:

Solid Waste Fund – This fund accounts for the operation, maintenance, and development of the 
County’s transfer and disposal sites.

The County reports the following other fund types:

Pension Trust Funds – The County maintains two pension trust funds – the Other Post-Employment 
Benefits Fund and the Law Enforcement Officers’ Special Separation Allowance Fund. Pension trust 
funds are used to report resources that are required to be held in trust for members and beneficiaries 
of defined benefit pension plans, defined contribution plans, or other postemployment benefit plans. 
The Other Postemployment Benefit (OPEB) Irrevocable Trust Fund accounts for the County’s 
contributions for healthcare coverage provided to qualified retirees. The LEO Special Separation 
Allowance (LEOSSA) Irrevocable Trust Fund accounts for the Law Enforcement Officers’ Special 
Separation Allowance, a single-employer, public employee retirement system. The resources in the 
LEO Special Separation Allowance Fund have been set aside to pay future obligations of the LEO 
Special Separation Allowance.

Agency Funds – Agency funds are custodial in nature and do not involve the measurement of 
operating results. Agency funds are used to account for assets the County holds on behalf of others. 
The County maintains the following agency funds: the Social Services Trust Fund, which accounts for 
moneys deposited with the Department of Social Services for the benefit of certain individuals; the 
Vehicle Tax-Towns Fund, which accounts for registered motor vehicle property taxes that are 
collected by the County for various municipalities within the County but are not revenues to the 
County; the Inmate Commissary Fund, which accounts for monies deposited with the County’s 
Detention Center for the benefit of certain individuals; the Fine and Forfeitures Fund, which accounts 
for various fines and forfeitures that the County is required to remit to the Watauga County Board of 
Education, the Deed of Trust Fee Fund, which accounts for fees collected by the Register of Deeds 

24

121719 BCC Meeting

75



WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

 

 
 

which are remitted to the State Treasurer on a monthly basis, and the Town of Boone Taxes Fund, 
which accounts for property taxes billed and collected by the County on behalf of the Town of Boone.

Non-major Funds – The County maintains five legally budgeted non-major funds. The Federal 
Equitable Sharing Fund, the State Substance Abuse Tax Fund, the Emergency Telephone System 
Fund, the Fire Districts Funds, and the Occupancy Tax Fund are all reported as non-major special 
revenue funds.

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting
In accordance with North Carolina General Statures, all funds of the County are maintained during 
the year using the modified accrual basis of accounting.

Government-wide, Proprietary, and Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements – The government-wide, 
proprietary, and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the economic resources 
measurement focus, except for the agency funds which have no measurement focus. The
government-wide, proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the 
accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the 
time liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows take place. Non-exchange 
transactions, in which the County gives (or receives) value without directly receiving (or giving) equal 
value in exchange, include property taxes, grants, entitlements, and donations. On an accrual basis, 
revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue 
from grants, entitlements, and donations are recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility 
requirements have been satisfied.

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, 
services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and 
contributions, including special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general 
revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes. 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating 
revenues and expenses generally result from provided services and producing and delivering goods 
in connecting with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues 
of the County enterprise funds are charges to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses 
for enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation 
on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-
operating revenues and expenses.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements – Governmental funds are reported using the current 
financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this 
method, revenues are recognized when measurable and available. Expenditures are recorded when 
the related fund liability is incurred, except for principal and interest on general long-term debt, claims 
and judgments, and compensated absences, which are recognized as expenditures to the extent that 
they have matured. General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental
funds. Proceeds of general long-term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other 
financing sources. 

The County considers all revenues available if they are collected within 90 days after year-end, 
except for property taxes. Ad valorem property taxes are not accrued as revenue because the 
amount is not susceptible to accrual. At June 30, taxes receivable for property other than motor 
vehicles are materially past due and are not considered to be an available resource to finance the 
operations of the current year. As of September 1, 2013, State law altered the procedures for the 
assessment and collection of property taxes on registered motor vehicles in North Carolina. Effective 
with this change in the law, the State of North Carolina is responsible for billing and collecting the 
property taxes on registered motor vehicles on behalf of all municipalities and special tax districts. 
Property taxes are due when vehicles are registered. The billed taxes are applicable to the fiscal year 
in which they are received. Uncollected taxes that were billed in periods prior to September 1, 2013 
and for limited registration plates are shown as a receivable in these financial statements and are 
offset by deferred inflows of resources.

25

121719 BCC Meeting

76



WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

 

 
 

Sales taxes and certain intergovernmental revenues, such as utilities franchise tax, collected and held 
by the State at year-end on behalf of the County are recognized as revenue. Intergovernmental 
revenues, and sales and services are not susceptible to accrual because generally they are not 
measurable until received in cash. All taxes, including those dedicated for specific purposes, are 
reported as general revenues rather than program revenues. Expenditure driven grants are 
recognized as revenue when the qualifying expenditures have been incurred and all other grant 
requirements have been satisfied. 

Under the terms of grant agreements, the County funds certain programs by a combination of specific 
cost-reimbursement grants, categorical block grants, and general revenues. Thus, when program 
expenses are incurred, there are both restricted and unrestricted net positions available to finance the 
program. It is the County’s policy to first apply cost-reimbursement grant resources to such programs, 
followed by categorical block grants, and then by general revenues.

C. Budgetary Data
The County’s budgets are adopted as required by the North Carolina General Statues. An annual 
budget is adopted for the General Fund, the Capital Project Fund, the Federal Equitable Sharing, the 
State Substance Abuse Tax, the Emergency Telephone System, Fire Districts, Occupancy Tax 
Special Revenue Funds, and Enterprise Funds. All annual appropriations lapse at the fiscal year-end.
Project ordinance is adopted for the Recreation Center Project fund. All budgets are prepared using 
the modified accrual basis of accounting. Expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations at the 
functional level for all annually budgeted funds and at the object level for the multi-year funds. The 
budget officer is authorized by the budget ordinance to transfer appropriation within a fund not to 
exceed 10% of the total departmental appropriation of the department whose allocation is reduced; 
however, any revisions that alter the total expenditures of any fund must be approved by the 
governing board. During the year, several amendments to the original budget were necessary. The 
budget ordinance must be adopted by July 1 of the fiscal year or the governing board must adopt an 
interim budget that covers that time until the annual ordinance can be adopted.

D. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows and Outflows of Resources, and Fund Equity
1. Deposits and Investments
All deposits of the County, AppalCART, and the Watauga County District U Tourism Development 
Authority are made in board-designated official depositories and are secured as required by G.S. 
159-31. The County, AppalCART, and the Authority may designate, as an official depository, any 
bank or savings association whose principal office is located in North Carolina. Also, the County, 
AppalCART, and the Authority may establish time deposit accounts such as NOW and SuperNOW 
accounts, money market accounts, and certificates of deposit.

State law [G.S. 159-30 (c)] authorizes the County, AppalCART, and the Authority to invest in 
obligations of the United States of obligations fully guaranteed both as to principal and interest by the 
United States; obligations of the State of North Carolina; bonds and notes of any North Carolina local 
government or public authority; obligations of certain non-guaranteed federal agencies; certain high 
quality issues of commercial paper and bankers’ acceptances; and the North Carolina Capital 
Management Trust (NCCMT).

The County, AppalCART, and the Authority’s investments are carried at fair value as determined by 
quoted market prices. The North Carolina Capital Management Trust (NCCMT) is a SEC registered 
money market mutual fund allowable by G.S. 159-30(c)(8). The NCCMT Government Portfolio is a 
2a-7 fund maintaining an AAAm rating from S&P.  The NCCMT Term Portfolio is a bond fund, has no 
rating and has a duration of .11 years. Both the NCCMT Government and Term Portfolios are 
reported at fair value.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
The County pools money from several funds, except the OPEB Irrevocable Trust Fund, the LEOSSA 
Irrevocable Trust Fund, the DSS Trust Fund, and the Inmate Commissary Fund, to facilitate 

26

121719 BCC Meeting

77



WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

 

 
 

disbursement and investment and to maximize investment income. Therefore, all cash and 
investments are essentially demand deposits and are considered cash and cash equivalents.
AppalCART the Authority consider demand deposits and investments purchased with an original 
maturity of three months or less, which are not limited as to use, to be cash or cash equivalents.

2. Restricted Cash
Money for Tax Revaluation is classified as restricted assets because its use is restricted per NC 
General Statute 153A-150. Money for the Register of Deeds Automation Enhancement Fund is 
restricted by NC General Statue 161-50 to pay for computer equipment and technology needs for the 
Register of Deeds’ office. Federal regulations require equitable sharing funds be used for approved 
law enforcement needs. State substance abuse tax receipts are restricted to law enforcement needs. 
Emergency Telephone Systems funds are restricted per NC General Statue 62A-46. Occupancy tax 
revenues are restricted for disbursement to the Watauga District U Tourism Development Authority. 
Taxes collected on behalf of the fire districts are restricted as payable to the districts.

Watauga County Restricted Cash

Governmental Activities
General Fund Tax revaluation $ 318,847

Register of Deeds 23,290
Recreation Center Project Fund Unexpended bond proceeds 11,958,319
Federal Equitable Sharing Fund Law enforcement 93,026
State Substance Abuse Tax Fund Law enforcement 34,012
Emergency Telephone Fund 911 eligible expenditures 273,279
Occupancy Tax Fund Tourism 126,043
Fire District Funds Unexpended collections 10,929

Total Governmental Activities $12,837,745

3. Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable
In accordance with State Law [G.S. 105-347 and G.S. 159-13(a)], the County levies ad valorem taxes 
on property other than motor vehicles on July 1, the beginning  of the fiscal year. The taxes are due 
on September 1 (lien date); however, penalties and interest do not accrue until the following January 
6. These taxes are based on the assessed values as of January 1, 2018. 

4. Allowances for Doubtful Accounts
All receivables that historically experience uncollectible accounts are shown net of an allowance for 
doubtful accounts. This amount is estimated by analyzing the percentage of receivables that were 
written off in prior years.

5. Inventory
The inventories of AppalCart are maintained for fuel oil, tires, and vehicle parts; valuation is at last in 
first out (LIFO) basis. The cost of the inventory of AppalCart is recorded as an expense when 
consumed.

6. Capital Assets
Purchased or constructed capital assets are reported at cost or estimated historical cost. Donated 
capital assets received prior to July 1, 2015, are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of 
donation. Donated capital assets received July 1, 2015, are recorded at their acquisition value. 
Minimum capitalization is $5,000 for all governmental fund assets. On July 1, 1989, the County 
established the Solid Waste Fund to account for the operations of the landfill. At this time, all landfill 
assets were transferred to this fund at original cost less accumulated depreciation from date of 
purchase. Property, plant, and equipment acquired after July 1, 1989, are recorded at original cost at 
time of acquisition. After July 1, 2002, the Fund’s minimum capitalization cost is $5,000. Prior to July 
1, 2002, the Fund did not have a minimum capitalization cost. The cost of normal maintenance and 
repairs that do not add to the value of the assets or materially extend assets’ lives are not capitalized.

27

121719 BCC Meeting

78



WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

 

 
 

The County holds title to a Watauga County Board of Education property that has not been included 
in capital assets. The property has been deeded to the County to permit installment purchase 
financing. Lease agreements between the County and the Board of Education give the Board of 
Education full use of Mabel School, full responsibility for maintenance of the facility, and stipulate the 
County will convey title back to the Board of Education once all restrictions of the financing 
agreements have been met. The property is reflected as a capital asset in the financial statements of 
the Watauga County Board of Education.

Capital assets of the County are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the following estimated 
useful lives:

         Years
   Buildings     10 to 50
   Leasehold improvements   10 to 50
   Other improvements    8 to 99
   Furniture and equipment    5 to 20
   Vehicles and motorized equipment  5 

Capital assets of the AppalCART are depreciated over their useful lives on a straight-line basis as 
follows:
         Years
   Office furniture and equipment   5 to 7
   Shop equipment    8 
   Vehicles     7 to 12
   Land improvements    10
   Buildings     50

Capital assets of the Watauga County District U Tourism Development Authority are depreciated over 
their useful lives on a straight-line basis as follows:
        Years

    Computer equipment     5
    Furniture and fixtures     7

7. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources
In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for 
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, Deferred Outflows of 
Resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period and so will not be 
recognized as an expense or expenditure until then. The County has the following items that meet 
this criterion – pension related deferrals and OPEB deferrals. In addition to liabilities, the statement of 
financial position can also report a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate 
financial statement element, Deferred Inflows of Resources, represents an acquisition of net position 
that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as revenue until then. The County has the 
following items that meet the criterion for this category – prepaid taxes, taxes receivable, notes 
receivable, unearned revenue, OPEB deferrals and pension related deferrals.

8. Long-term Obligations
In the government-wide financial statements and in the proprietary fund types in the fund financial 
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities on the Statement 
of Net Position. Bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds 
using the staright-line method that approximates the effective interest method.  Bond issuance costs 
are expensed in the reporting period in which they are incurred.  In fund financial statements, 
governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, 
during the current period.  The face amount of debt is reported as other financing sources.  Premiums 
received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issances 
are reported as other financing uses.  Issuance costs whether withheld from the actual debt proceeds 
received or not, are reported as debt service expenditures.

28

121719 BCC Meeting

79



WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

 

 
 

9. Compensated Absences
The vacation policies of the County and AppalCART provide for the accumulation of up to thirty day 
earned vacation leave with such leave being fully vested when earned.  An expense and a liability for 
compensated absences and the salary-related payments are recorded as the leave is earned in the 
County’s government-wide, proprietary fund and AppalCART statements. The vacation policy of the 
Authority provides for the accumulation of up to fifteen days earned vacation leave with such leave 
being fully vested when earned. On the Authority’s government-wide statement, an expense and 
liability for compensated absences and salary-related payments are recorded as the leave is earned.

The sick leave policies of the County, the Authority, and AppalCART provide for an unlimited 
accumulation of earned sick leave. Sick leave does not vest, but any unused sick leave accumulated 
at the time of retirement with the County and the Authority may be used in the determination of length 
of service for retirement benefit purposes. Since none of the entities have any obligation for 
accumulated sick leave until it is actually taken, no accruals for sick leave have been made by the 
County or its component units.

10. Net Positions/Fund Balances
Net Position
Net position in government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements is classified as net 
investment in capital assets, restricted, and unrestricted. Restricted net position represents 
constraints on resources that are either a) externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or 
laws or regulations of other governments or b) imposed by law through State statutes.

Fund Balances
In the governmental fund financial statements, fund balance is composed of five classifications 
designed to disclose the hierarchy of constraints placed on how fund balance can be spent.

The governmental fund types classify fund balances as follows:

Nonspendable Fund Balance – This classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because 
they are either (a) not in spendable form or (b) legally or contractually required to be maintained 
intact.

Restricted Fund Balance – This classification includes revenue sources that are restricted to specific 
purposes externally imposed or imposed by law. The County has the following restricted items:

Restricted for Stabilization by State Statute – North Carolina G.S. 159-8 prohibits units of 
government from budgeting or spending a portion of their fund balance. This is one of several 
statutes enacted by the North Carolina State Legislature in the 1930’s that were designed to 
improve and maintain the fiscal health of local government units. Restricted by State statute 
(RSS), is calculated at the end of each fiscal year for all annually budgeted funds. The 
calculation in G.S. 159-8(a) provides a formula for determining what portion of fund balance 
is available for appropriation. The amount of fund balance not available for appropriation is 
what is known as “restricted by State statute”. Appropriated fund balance in any fund shall not 
exceed the sum of cash and investments minus the sum of liabilities, encumbrances, and 
deferred revenues arising from cash receipts, as those figures stand at the close of the fiscal 
year next preceding the budget. Per GASB guidance, RSS is considered a resource upon 
which a restriction is “imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling 
legislation.” RSS is reduced by inventories and prepaids as they are classified as 
nonspendable. Outstanding Encumbrances are included within RSS.  RSS is included as a 
component of Restricted Net position and Restricted fund balance on the face of the balance 
sheet. 

Restricted for Revaluation – portion of fund balance restricted under State Statute [G.S. 
153A-150].

Restricted for Register of Deeds – portion of fund balance restricted by revenue source for 
automation and technology enhancements in the Register of Deeds’ office [G.S. 161-11.3].

29

121719 BCC Meeting

80



WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

 

 
 

Restricted for Public Safety – portion of fund balance representing the aggregate of net
positions for three special revenue funds: the Emergency Telephone System Fund, the State 
Substance Abuse Tax Fund, and the Federal Equitable Sharing Fund.

Restricted for Community Recreation Center – portion of fund balance restricted for unspent 
bond proceeds.

Committed Fund Balance – portion of fund balance which can only be used for a specific purpose by 
a majority vote of Watauga County’s governing board (highest body of decision making authority). 
Any change or removal of specific purpose requires majority action by the governing board.

Committed for Capital Projects – portion of fund balance set aside for future capital project 
expenditures.

Assigned Fund Balance – portion of fund balance the governing board decides to use for a specific 
purpose.

Unassigned Fund Balance – portion of the total fund balance that has not been restricted, committed, 
or assigned to specific purposes or other funds at year-end.

Watauga County has a revenue spending policy that provides policy for programs with multiple 
revenue sources. The Finance Officer will use resources in the following hierarchy: bond proceeds, 
federal funds, State funds, local non-county funds, and county funds. For the purposes of fund 
balance classification expenditures are to be spent from restricted fund balance first, followed in order 
by committed fund balance, assigned fund balance and lastly unassigned fund balance. The Finance 
Officer has the authority to deviate from this policy if it is in the best interest of the County.

11. Defined Benefit Pension and OPEB Plans
The County participates in two cost-sharing, multiple-employer, defined benefit pension plans that are
administered by the State: the Local Governmental Employees’ Retirement System (LGERS) and the 
Registers of Deeds’ Supplemental Pension Fund (RODSPF) (collectively, the “state administered 
defined benefit pension plans”). For the purposes of measuring the net pension asset or liability,
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions and pension 
expense, information about the fiduciary net positions of the state-administered defined benefit 
pension plans and additions to/deductions from the state-administered defined pension plans’ 
fiduciary net positions have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the state-
administered defined benefit pension plans. For purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability, 
deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to OPEB, and OPEB expense, information about 
the fiduciary net position of the HCB and additions to/deductions from the HCB’s fiduciary net position 
have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the HCB. For this purpose, the 
HCB recognizes benefit payments when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. 
Investments for all plans are reported at fair value.  For this purpose, plan member contributions
recognized in the period in which the contributions are due. The County’s employer contributions are 
recognized when due and the County has a legal requirement to provide the contributions. Benefits 
and refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of the state-
administered defined benefit pension plans. Investments are reported at fair value. 

Note 2 - Detail Notes on All Funds
A. Assets
1. Deposits
All of the County’s, AppalCART’s, and the Authority’s deposits are either insured or collateralized by 
using one of two methods. Under the Dedicated Method, all deposits exceeding the federal 
depository insurance coverage level are collateralized with securities held by the County’s, 
AppalCART’s, and the Authority’s agents in these units’ names. Under the Pooling Method, which is a 
collateral pool, all uninsured deposits are collateralized with securities held by the State Treasurer’s 
agent in the name of the State Treasurer. Since the State Treasurer is acting in a fiduciary capacity 

30

121719 BCC Meeting

81



WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

 

 
 

for the County, AppalCART, and the Authority, these deposits are considered to be held by their 
agents in the entities’ names. The amount of the pledged collateral is based on an approved 
averaging method for non-interest bearing deposits and the actual current balance for interest-
bearing deposits. Depositories using the Pooling Method report to the State Treasurer the adequacy 
of their pooled collateral covering uninsured deposits. The State Treasurer does not confirm this 
information with the County, AppalCART, or the Authority. Because of the inability to measure the 
exact amount of collateral pledged for the County, AppalCART, or the Authority, the potential exists 
for under-collateralization, and this risk may increase in periods of high cash flows. However, the 
State Treasurer of North Carolina enforces strict standards of financial stability for each depository 
that collateralizes public deposits under the Pooling Method.

The State Treasurer enforces standards of minimum capitalization for all pooling method financial 
institutions. The County, AppalCART, and the Authority rely on the State Treasurer to monitor those 
financial institutions. The County analyzes the financial soundness of any financial institution used by 
the County. The County complies with the provisions of G.S. 159-31 when designating official 
depositories and verifying that deposits are properly secured. The County, AppalCART, and the 
Authority have no formal policy regarding custodial credit risk for deposits.

At June 30, 2019, the County’s deposits had a carrying amount of $19,353,319 and a bank balance of 
$19,680,840. Of the bank balance, $815,873 was covered by federal depository insurance and the 
remainder is covered by collateral held under the Pooling Method. At June 30, 2019, Watauga County 
had $3,000 cash on hand.

At June 30, 2019, AppalCART’s deposits had a carrying amount of $1,309,443 and a bank balance of 
$1,424,724. Of the bank balance, $250,000 was covered by federal depository insurance, and 
$1,174,724 in interest bearing deposits were covered by collateral held under the Pooling Method.   

At June 30, 2019, the Authority’s deposits had a carrying amount of $1,063,410 and a bank balance 
of $1,157,571. Of the balance, $250,000 was covered by federal depository insurance and the 
remainder was covered by collateral held under the Pooling Method. The Authority had no cash on 
hand.

2. Investments
As of June 30, 2019, the County had the following investments and maturities:

Investments by Type
Valuation 

Measurement 
Method

Fair Value Less Than 
6 Months

6-12
Months 1-5 Years

Commercial Paper
Fair Value 
Level 2 26,306,399 19,429,206 6,877,193 - 

Government Agencies
Fair Value 
Level 2 4,523,608 1,749,237 700,000 2,074,371

NC Capital 
Management Trust –
Government Portfolio

Fair Value 
Level 1 2,524,077 N/A N/A N/A

NC Capital 
Management Trust –
Term Portfolio*

Fair Value 
Level 1 18,217,898 18,217,898 - - 

Total: $51,571,982 $39,396,341 $7,577,193 $2,074,371

*Because the NC Capital Management Trust Term Portfolio has a weighted average maturity of less than 90 
days, it was presented as an investment with a maturity of less than 6 months.

All investments are measured using the market approach: using prices and other relevant information 

31

121719 BCC Meeting

82



WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

 

 
 

generated by market transactions involving identical or comparable assets or a group of assets. 
Ratings are from Standard and Poor’s scale.

Level of fair value hierarchy: Level 1: Debt securities are valued using directly observable, quoted 
prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets. Level 2: Debt securities are valued using a 
matrix pricing technique. Matrix pricing is used to value securities based on the securities relationship 
to benchmark quoted prices.

Interest Rate Risk. The County has no formal investment policy regarding interest rate risk. As a 
means of limiting its exposure to fair value losses arising from rising interest rates, the County’s 
internal investment procedure limits at least half of the County’s investment portfolio to maturities of 
less than 12 months. Also, the County’s internal management policy recommends purchases of 
securities to be laddered with staggered maturity dates and limits all securities to a final maturity of no 
more than five years.

Credit Risk. The County has no formal policy regarding credit risk, but has internal management 
procedures that limits the County’s investments to the provisions of G.S. 159-30 and restricts the 
purchase of securities to the highest possible ratings whenever particular types of securities are 
rated. State law limits investments in commercial paper to the top rating issued by nationally 
recognized statistical rating organizations (NRSROs). As of June 30, 2019, the County’s investments 
in commercial paper were rated A1 by Standard & Poor’s and P1 by Moody’s Investors Service. The 
County’s investment in the NC Capital Management Trust Government Portfolio carried a credit rating 
of AAAm by Standard & Poor’s as of June 30, 2019. The County’s investment in the NC Capital 
Management Trust Term Portfolio is unrated. The Term Portfolio is authorized to invest in obligations 
of the U.S. government and agencies, and in high grade money market instruments as permitted 
under North Carolina General Statutes 159-30 as amended. The County’s investments in US 
Agencies with Federal Home Loan Bank, Federal National Mortgage Association, Federal Farm 
Credit Bank and Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation are rated AA+ by Standard & Poor’s and 
AAA by Moody’s Investors Service. The County does have an elevated credit risk due to safekeeping 
held in a third party arrangement. 

At June 30, 2019, AppalCART’s investment stated at fair value, consisted of $2,082,703 in the North 
Carolina Capital Management Trust’s Government Portfolio which carried a credit rating of AAAm by 
Standard and Poor’s. AppalCART has no formal policy on interest rate risk or credit risk on its 
investments. 

At June 30, 2019, the Authority’s investments consisted of the following:

Investment Type Fair Value Maturity Rating
NC Capital Management Trust –
Government Portfolio $   106,705 N/A AAAm

NC Capital Management Trust –
Term Portfolio 2,186,970 .11 years Unrated

$2,293,675

Interest Rate Risk. The Authority has no formal investment policy regarding interest rate risk. As a 
means of limiting its exposure to fair value losses arising from rising interest rates, the Authority’s 
internal investment policy limits at least half of the Authority’s investment portfolio to maturities of less 
than 12 months. Also, the Authority’s internal management policy requires purchases of securities to 
be laddered with staggered maturity dates and limits all securities to a final maturity of no more than 
two years.

Credit risk. The Authority has no formal policy regarding credit risk, but has internal management 
procedures that limits the Authority’s investments to the provisions of G.S. 159-30 and restricts the 

32

121719 BCC Meeting

83



WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

 

 
 

purchase of securities to the highest possible ratings whenever particular types of securities are 
rated. The Authority’s investment in the NC Capital Management Trust Government Portfolio carried 
a credit rating of AAAm by Standard & Poor’s as of June 30, 2019. The Authority’s investment in the 
NC Capital Management Trust Term Portfolio is unrated. The Term Portfolio is authorized to invest in 
obligations of the U.S. government and agencies, and in high grade money market instruments as 
permitted under North Carolina General Statutes 159-30 as amended. 

3. Property Tax – Use – Value Assessment on Certain Lands
In accordance with the general statutes, agriculture, horticulture, and forestland may be taxed by the 
County at the present-use value as opposed to market value. When the property loses its eligibility for 
use-value taxation, the property tax is recomputed at market value for the current year and the three 
preceding fiscal years, along with the accrued interest from the original due date. This tax is 
immediately due and payable. The following are property taxes that could become due if present use-
value eligibility is lost. These amounts have not been recorded in the financial statements.

Tax Year Levied Tax Interest Total
2015 $ 676,442 $ 191,095 $ 867,537
2016 670,350 129,042 799,392
2017 762,996 78,207 841,203
2018 765,874 - 765,874
Total $ 2,875,662 $ 398,344 $  3,274,006

4. Receivables
Receivables at the government-wide level at June 30, 2019, were as follows:

Taxes Interest
Accounts Receivable Receivable Total

Governmental Activities:
General $ 162,218 $ 821,712 $ 123,107 $ 1,107,037
Other Governmental - 279,265 15,046 294,311

Total receivables 162,218 1,100,977 138,153 1,401,348
Allowance for doubtful accounts - (147,658) - (147,658)
Total-governmental activities $ 162,218 $ 953,319 $ 138,153 $ 1,253,690
Business-type Activities

Solid Waste $ 436,313 $                  - $                - $ 436,313
Allowance for doubtful accounts (70,893) - - (70,893)
Total-business-type activities        $ 365,420 $                  - $                - $ 365,420

The due from other governments that is owed to the County consists of the following:

Governmental activities:
NC Dept of Natural and Cultural Resources $          30,000  
NC DOR 4,224,402
Watauga County Register of Deeds 15,265
NC Dept of Public Instruction 284,247
NC Dept of Public Safety 60,915
Town of Blowing Rock ABC 377
Town of Blowing Rock 143,487
Town of Beech Mountain 152,522
Town of Boone 526
Town of Seven Devils 24,268
Watauga County Clerk of Court 28,025
Watauga County District U TDA 1,260
NC DHHS 434,740
Emergency Telephone System 31,799

33

121719 BCC Meeting

84



WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

 

 
 

Total-governmental activities $ 5,431,833

Business-type activities: 
NCDOR $          34,559

5. Notes Receivable
The County entered into a promissory note with Appalachian State University on September 28, 
2017 for the sale of the Old Watauga High School property located in Boone in the amount 
$15,475,000.  The terms of the note include interest at 0% and annual principal payments 
commencing July 1, 2022 in the amount $800,000 continuing through July 1, 2040 with a final 
payment of $1,075,000. The balance as of June 30, 2019 was $15,475,000.

6. Capital Assets
Primary Government:
Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2019, was as follows:

Beginning
Balances Increases Decreases

Ending
Balances

Governmental activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land $ 21,213,910 $ 331,000 $                 - $ 21,544,911
Intangible 15,600 - - 15,600
Construction in progress 960,526 15,228,930 - 16,189,455
Total capital assets not being depreciated 22,190,036 15,559,930 - 37,749,967

Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings 102,521,052 - 1,071,992 101,449,060
Other improvements 5,450,470 - 37,789 5,412,681
Leasehold improvements 7,425,384 121,431 - 7,546,816
Equipment 6,515,024 54,767 15,057 6,554,734
Vehicles and motorized equipment 2,357,532 397,943 129,874 2,625,601

          Total capital assets being depreciated 124,269,462 574,142 1,254,712 123,588,892
Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings 23,545,345 2,049,106 636,745 24,957,706
Other improvements 3,211,258 524,574 37,789 3,698,044
Leasehold improvements 1,598,697 255,671 - 1,854,368
Equipment 5,301,833 328,868 15,057 5,615,645
Vehicles and motorized equipment 1,328,120 369,367 99,015 1,598,472

Total accumulated depreciation 34,985,253 3,527,585 788,606 37,724,234
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 89,284,209 85,864,658

Governmental activity capital assets, net $ 111,474,245 $123,614,625

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

General government $ 2,018,317
Public safety 551,234
Economic and physical development 32,742
Environmental protection 10,076
Human services 373,174
Cultural and recreational 542,043

Total depreciation expense $ 3,527,585

34

121719 BCC Meeting

85



WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

 

 
 

Beginning
Balances Increases Decreases

Ending
Balances

Business-type activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land $    975,497 $          - $               - $    975,497 
Total capital assets not being depreciated 975,497 - - 975,497 

Capital assets being depreciated:
Improvements 445,921 - - 445,921
Leasehold improvements 319,960 - - 319,960
Buildings 4,152,793 - - 4,152,793
Equipment 1,717,207 12,702 - 1,729,909
Vehicles 1,447,669 433,412 - 1,881,082

Total capital assets being depreciated 8,083,550 446,114 - 8,529,664
Less accumulated depreciation for:

Improvements 350,197 23,523 - 373,721
Leasehold improvements 313,660 248 - 313,908
Building 1,288,303 85,898 - 1,374,201
Equipment 1,413,433 73,657 - 1,487,090
Vehicles 987,845 153,791 - 1,141,636
Total accumulated depreciation 4,353,438 337,118 - 4,690,556

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 3,730,112 3,839,108
Business-type capital assets, net $ 4,705,609 $ 4,814,605

Construction commitments
The County has one active construction project as of June 30, 2019.  The governmental project
includes the Community Recreation Center. At June 30, 2019, the government's commitments 
with contractors are as follows:

Remaining
Project Spent-to-date Commitment

Community Recreation Center $ 13,269,565 $ 21,472,103
Total $ 13,269,565 $  21,472,103

   
Discretely presented component units

Capital asset activity for the AppalCART for the year ended June 30, 2019, was as follows:

Beginning
Balances Increases Decreases

Ending
Balances

Business-type activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land $  1,114,242 $            - $            - $  1,114,242
Construction in progress 25,500 - 18,650 6,850

Total capital assets not being depreciated 1,139,742 - 18,650 1,121,092
Capital assets being depreciated:

Buildings 6,713,329 - - 6,713,329
Land improvements 11,156 - - 11,156
Office furniture and equipment 479,030 36,210 - 515,240
Shop equipment 347,384 47,049 - 394,433
Vehicles 10,979,618 1,948,551 172,412 12,755,757

Total capital assets being depreciated 18,530,517 2,031,810 172,412 20,389,915
Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings 679,572 135,789 - 815,361

35

121719 BCC Meeting

86



WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

 

 
 

Land improvements 11,156 - - 11,156
Office furniture and equipment 150,658 56,038 - 206,696
Shop equipment 300,822 33,484 - 334,306
Vehicles 3,862,273 905,020 164,044 4,603,249
Total accumulated depreciation 5,060,518 1,145,515 164,044 6,041,990

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 13,469,998 14,347,925
Business-type activities capital assets, net $14,609,740 $15,469,017

B. Liabilities
1. Payables

Payables at the government-wide level at June 30, 2019, were as follows:

Vendors
Salaries and 

benefits
Due to other 
governments Total

Governmental activities:
General $      954,704 $ 690,673  $    265,756 $ 1,911,133

Recreation center project fund 2,250,233 - - 2,250,233
Other governmental funds 35,492 - 300,554 336,046
Total-governmental activities $ 3,240,429 $ 690,673 $    566,310 $ 4,497,412

Business-type activities:
Solid Waste $ 269,301 $       63,728 $               - $      333,029

2. Pension Plan Obligations
a. Local Governmental Employees’ Retirement System
Plan Description.  The County is a participating employer in the statewide Local Governmental 
Employees’ Retirement System (LGERS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension 
plan administered by the State of North Carolina. LGERS membership is comprised of general 
employees and local law enforcement officers (LEOs) of participating local government entities. 
Article 3 of G.S. Chapter 128 assigns the County to establish and amend benefit provisions to the 
North Carolina General Assembly. Management of the plan is vested in the LGERS Board of 
Trustees, which consists of 13 members – nine appointed by the Governor, one appointed by the 
State Senate, one appointed by the State House of Representatives, and the State Treasurer and 
State Superintendent, who serve as ex-officio members. The Local Governmental Employees’ 
Retirement System is included in the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the State of 
North Carolina. The State’s CAFR includes financial statements and required supplementary 
information for LGERS. That report may be obtained by writing to the Office of the State Controller, 
1410 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, North Carolina 27699-1410, by calling (919) 981-5454, or at 
www.osc.nc.org. 

Benefits Provided. LGERS provides retirement and survivor benefits. Retirement benefits are 
determined as 1.85% of the member’s average final compensation times the member’s years of 
creditable service. A member’s average final compensation is calculated as the average of a 
member’s four highest consecutive years of compensation. Plan members are eligible to retire with 
full retirement benefits at age 65 with five years of creditable service, at age 60 with 25 years of 
creditable service, or at any age with 30 years of creditable service. Plan members are eligible to 
retire with partial retirement benefits at age 50 with 20 years of creditable service or at age 60 with 
five years of creditable service (age 55 for firefighters). Survivor benefits are available to eligible 
beneficiaries of members who die while in active service or within 180 days of their last day of service 
and who have either completed 20 years of creditable service regardless of age (15 years of 
creditable service for firefighters and rescue squad members who are killed in the line of duty) or 
have completed five years of service and have reached age 60. Eligible beneficiaries may elect to 
receive a monthly Survivor’s Alternate Benefit for life or a return of the member’s contributions. The 

36

121719 BCC Meeting

87



WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

 

 
 

plan does not provide for automatic post-retirement benefit increases. Increases are contingent upon 
actuarial gains of the plan.

LGERS plan members who are LEOs are eligible to retire with full retirement benefits at age 55 with 
five years creditable service as an officer, or at any age with 30 years of creditable service. LEO plan 
members are eligible to retire with partial retirement benefits at age 50 with 15 years of creditable 
service as an officer. Survivor benefits are available to eligible beneficiaries of LEO members who die 
while in active service or within 180 days of their last day of service and who also have either 
completed 20 years of creditable service regardless of age, or have completed 15 years of service as 
a LEO and have reached age 50, or have completed five years of creditable service as a LEO and 
have reached age 55, or have completed 15 years of creditable service as a LEO if killed in the line of 
duty. Eligible beneficiaries may elect to receive a monthly Survivor’s Alternate Benefit for life or a 
return of the member’s contributions.

Contributions. Contribution provisions are established by General Statue 128-30 and may be 
amended only by the North Carolina General Assembly. County employees are required to contribute 
6% of their compensation. Employer contributions are actuarially determined and set annually by the 
LGERS Board of Trustees. The County’s contractually required contribution rate for the year ended 
June 30, 2019, was 8.5% of compensation for law enforcement officers and 7.84% for general 
employees and firefighters, actuarially determined as an amount that, when combined with 
employees contributions, is expected to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the 
year. Contributions to the pension plan from the County were $937,359 for the year ended June 30, 
2019. 

Refunds of Contributions. County employees, who have terminated service as a contributing member 
of LGERS, may file an application for a refund of their contributions. By state law, refunds to 
members with at least five years of service include 4% interest. State law requires a 60 day waiting 
period after service termination before the refund may be paid. The acceptance of a refund payment 
cancels the individual’s right to employer contributions or any other benefit provided by LGERS.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred 
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions
At June 30, 2019, the County reported a liability of $3,928,361 for its proportionate share of the net 
pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2018. The total pension 
liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of 
December 31, 2017. The total pension liability was then rolled forward to the measurement date of 
June 30, 2018 utilizing update procedures incorporating the actuarial assumptions. The County’s 
proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the County’s long-term share of 
future payroll covered by the pension plan, relative to the projected future payroll covered by the 
pension plan of all participating LGERS employers, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2018, the 
County’s proportion was 0.16559%, which was a decrease of 0.00226% from its proportion measured 
as of June 30, 2017. 

For the year ended June 30, 2019, the County recognized pension expense of $1,093,855. At June 
30, 2019, the County reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to pensions from the following sources:

37

121719 BCC Meeting

88



WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

 

 
 

Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources

Deferred 
Inflows of 
Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience $ 606,053 $ 20,336
Changes of assumptions 1,042,435 -
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on 
pension plan investments 539,247 -
Changes in proportion and differences between County 
contributions and proportionate share of contributions 26,120 16,129
County contributions subsequent to the measurement 
date 937,359 -

Total $ 3,151,214 $ 36,465

$937,359 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from County 
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a decrease of the net 
pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2020. Other amounts reported as deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year ended June 30:

2020 $ 1,049,143
2021 683,818
2022 125,263
2023 319,166
2024 -
Thereafter -

Total $ 2,177,390

At June 30, 2019, the Authority reported a liability of $62,155 for its proportionate share of the net 
pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2018. The total pension 
liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of
December 31, 2017. The total pension liability was then rolled forward to the measurement date of 
June 30, 2018 utilizing update procedures incorporating the actuarial assumptions. The Authority’s 
proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the Authority’s long-term share of 
future payroll covered by the pension plan, relative to the projected future payroll covered by the 
pension plan of all participating LGERS employers, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2018, the 
Authority’s proportion was 0.00262%, which was a decrease of 0.00014% from its proportion 
measured as of June 30, 2017. 

For the year ended June 30, 2019, the Authority recognized pension expense of $12,640. At June 30, 
2019, the Authority reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related 
to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources

Deferred 
Inflows of 
Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience $ 9,589 $ 322
Changes of assumptions 16,494 -
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on 
pension plan investments 8,532 -
Changes in proportion and differences between Authority
contributions and proportionate share of contributions - 3,733
Authority contributions subsequent to the measurement 
date 13,761 -

Total $ 48,376 $ 4,055

38

121719 BCC Meeting

89



WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

 

 
 

$13,761 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from Authority 
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a decrease of the net 
pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2020. Other amounts reported as deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year ended June 30:
2020 $ 15,133
2021 9,718
2022 1,128
2023 4,581
2024 -
Thereafter -

Total $ 30,560

Actuarial Assumptions.  The total pension liability in the December 31, 2017 actuarial valuation was 
determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the 
measurement:

Inflation 3.0 percent
Salary increases 3.50 to 7.75 percent, including inflation and productivity factor
Investment rate of return 7.0 percent, net of pension plan investment expense, 

including inflation

The plan currently uses mortality tables that vary by age, gender, employee group (i.e. general, law 
enforcement officer) and health status (i.e. disabled and healthy). The current mortality rates are 
based on published tables and based on studies that cover significant portions of the U.S. population. 
The healthy mortality rates also contain a provision to reflect future mortality improvements.

The actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2017 valuation were based on the results of an 
actuarial experience study as of December 31, 2014. 

Future ad hoc COLA amounts are not considered to be substantively automatic and are therefore not 
included in the measurement.

The projected long-term investment returns and inflation assumptions are developed through review 
of current and historical capital markets data, sell-side investment research, consultant whitepapers, 
and historical performance of investment strategies. Fixed income return projections reflect current 
yields across the U.S. Treasury yield curve and market expectations of forward yields projected and 
interpolated for multiple tenors and over multiple year horizons. Global public equity projections are 
established through analysis of the equity risk premium and the fixed income return projections. Other 
asset categories and strategies’ return projections reflect the foregoing and historical data analysis. 
These projections are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the 
expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected 
inflation. The target allocation and best estimates or arithmetic real rates of return for each major 
asset class as of June 30, 2019 are summarized in the following table:

Asset Class Target Allocation
Long-Term Expected 
Real Rate of Return

Fixed Income 29.0% 1.4%
Global Equity 42.0% 5.3%
Real Estate 8.0% 4.3%
Alternatives 8.0% 8.9%
Credit 7.0% 6.0%
Inflation Protection 6.0% 4.0%

Total 100%

39

121719 BCC Meeting

90



WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

 

 
 

The information above is based on 30 year expectations developed with the consulting actuary for the 
2016 asset liability and investment policy study for the North Carolina Retirement Systems, including 
LGERS. The long-term nominal rates of return underlying the real rates of return are arithmetic 
annualized figures. The real rates of return are calculated from nominal rates by multiplicatively 
subtracting a long-term inflation assumption of 3.05%. All rates of return and inflation are annualized.
Discount rate. The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.0%. The projection 
of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will 
be made at the current contribution rate and that contributions from employers will be made at 
statutorily required rates, actuarially determined. Based on these assumptions, the pension plan’s 
fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of 
the current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan 
investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension 
liability.

Sensitivity of the proportionate share of the net pension asset to changes in the discount rate. The 
following presents the proportionate share of the net pension asset calculated using the discount rate 
of 7.0 percent, as well as what the proportionate share of the net pension asset or net pension liability 
would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower (6.0 percent) or 
one percentage point higher (8.0 percent) than the current rate:

1% Decrease 
(6.0%)

Discount Rate 
(7.0%)

1% Increase 
(8.0%)

County’s proportionate share of the 
net pension liability (asset) $  9,436,264 $ 3,928,361 $  (674,128)

1% Decrease 
(6.0%)

Discount Rate 
(7.0%)

1% Increase 
(8.0%)

Authority’s proportionate share of 
the net pension liability (asset) $     149,303 $ 62,155 $      (10,666)

Pension plan fiduciary net position. Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net 
position is available in the separately issued Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the 
State of North Carolina.

b. Law Enforcement Officers’ Special Separation Allowance
1. Plan Description
Watauga County administers a single-employer defined benefit pension plan that provides retirement 
benefits to the County's qualified sworn law enforcement officers. In June of 2016, the County 
established an irrevocable trust, the Law Enforcement Officers’ Special Separation Allowance 
(LEOSSA) Irrevocable Trust Fund, to account for the assets set aside for this purpose. For reporting 
purposes, the LEOSSA is presented as a pension trust fund as it meets the criteria for trust funds 
outlined in GASB Statement 68.

Benefits Provided.  The Separation Allowance is equal to .85 percent of the annual equivalent of the 
base rate of compensation most recently applicable to the officer for each year of creditable service.  
The retirement benefits are not subject to any increases in salary or retirement allowances that may 
be authorized by the General Assembly.  Article 12D of G.S. Chapter 143 assigns the authority to 
establish and amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina General Assembly.  

The data required regarding the membership of the Watauga County Law Enforcement Separation 
Allowance Plan was furnished by the County and the NC Local Governmental Employees’ Retirement 
System. The following table summarizes the membership of the Plan as of June 30, 2018, the 
valuation date:

40

121719 BCC Meeting

91



WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

 

 
 

Retirees receiving benefits 3
Inactive members entitled to but not receiving benefits 0
Active plan members 42

Total 45
Contributions. The County is required by Article 12D of G.S. Chapter 143 to provide these retirement
benefits and has chosen to fund the amounts necessary to cover the benefits earned by making 
contributions based on actuarial valuations. For the year ended June 30, 2019, the County 
contributed $130,091, or 6.49% of covered payroll. There were no contributions made by employees. 
The County's obligation to contribute to this plan is established and may be amended by the North 
Carolina General Assembly. Administration costs of the Separation Allowance are financed through 
investment earnings.

Refunds of Contributions. Because all funds are contributed by the County, no refunds are available 
to members of the plan.

Actuarial Assumptions.  The total pension liability (TPL) in the June 30, 2018 actuarial valuation was 
determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the 
measurement:

Inflation 3.0 percent
Salary increases Based on service, ranging from 3.50 to 7.35 percent, including 

inflation 
Investment rate of return 3.87 percent, net of pension plan investment expense, 

including inflation
Mortality Pre-retirement mortality rates bases on the RP-2014 Employee 

tables, projected forward generationally using Scale MP-2015
Post-retirement rate based on the RP-2014 Healthy Annuitant 
tables, projected forward generationally using Scale MP-2015; 
rates loaded by 4% for males

Discount rate. The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 3.87%. Since the 
assets are held in short term investments, a discount rate equal to the 20-year tax-exempt municipal 
bond (rating AA/Aa or higher) rate was used. The index used for this purpose is the Bond Buyer 20-
Bond GO Index rate published closest to, but not later than, the measurement date of June 30, 2018. 

Projected cash flows. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that 
the employer would contribute the actuarially determined contribution in the future.

Long term rate of return. The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments is 
assumed to be 3.87% annually. Since the Separation Allowance assets are held in short term 
investments a discount rate equal to the 20-year tax-exempt municipal bond (rating AA/Aa or higher) 
rate was used. The index used for this purpose is the Bond Buyer 20-Bond GO Index rate published 
closest to, but not later than, the measurement date of June 30, 2018.  

Assumed Asset Allocation. The target asset allocation is 100% in governmental securities and best 
estimate of arithmetic real rates of return is 2.85%.

Sensitivity of the net pension asset to changes in the discount rate. The following presents the net 
pension liability calculated using the discount rate of 3.87 percent, as well as what the net pension 
asset or net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one 
percentage point lower (2.87 percent) or one percentage point higher (4.87 percent) than the current 
rate:

1% Decrease 
(2.87%)

Discount Rate 
(3.87%)

1% Increase 
(4.87%)

Net pension liability $357,759 $281,508 $212,169

41

121719 BCC Meeting

92



WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

 

 
 

Pension plan fiduciary net position. Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net 
position is available in the chart below:

Total Pension 
Liability

(a)

Plan Net 
Position

(b)

Net Pension 
Liability
(a) – (b)

Balance as of June 30, 2017; measurement date $ 690,594 $ 399,608 $ 290,986
Changes for the year:

Service cost 57,398 - 57,398
Interest 26,308 - 26,308
Benefit changes - - -
Difference between expected and actual 
experience 25,317 - 25,317
Changes of assumptions or other inputs (21,390) - (21,390)
Contributions – employer - 109,744 (109,744)
Contributions – employee - - -
Net investment income - 5,867 (5,867)
Benefits paid (26,244) (26,244) -
Plan administrative expenses - (18,500) 18,500

Net changes 61,389 70,867 (9,478)
Balance as of June 30, 2018; measurement date $ 751,983 $  470,475 $ 281,508

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred 
Inflows of Resources Related to the LEOSSA Pension Plan
The assumed rate of return was increased from 3.58% to 3.87% to reflect the change in the Municipal 
Bond Rate. There were no changes between the measurement date of the net pension liability and 
the County’s reporting date that are expected to have a significant effect on the net pension liability.  

For the year ended June 30, 2019, the County recognized pension expense of $77,170. Since certain 
expense items are amortized over closed periods each year, the deferred portion of these items must 
be tracked annually. If the amounts serve to reduce pension expense, they are labeled deferred 
inflows. If they will increase pension expense they are labeled deferred outflows. The amortization of 
these amounts is accomplished on a level dollar basis, with no interest included in the deferred 
amounts. Experience gains/losses and the impact of changes in actuarial assumptions, if any, are 
amortized over the average remaining service life of the active and inactive plan members at the 
beginning of the fiscal year. Investment gains and losses are amortized over a fixed five year period.

At June 30, 2019, the County reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions from the following sources as of the June 30, 2018 measurement date:

Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources

Deferred 
Inflows of 
Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience $ 23,082 $ 168,923
Changes of assumptions 54,142 61,177
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on 
pension plan investments 17,296 -
County benefit payments and admin expenditures 
subsequent to the measurement date 139,610 -

Total $ 234,130 $ 230,100

The County paid $130,091 in benefit payments and $9,519 in admin expenditures subsequent to the 
measurement date that are reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting 
from County contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of 

42

121719 BCC Meeting

93



WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

 

 
 

the net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2020.  Other amounts reported as deferred 
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in 
pension expense as follows:

Year ended June 30:
2020 $ (9,569)
2021 (10,416)
2022 (12,153)
2023 (13,918)
2024 (15,838)
2025-2029 (74,478)
2030 792

Total $ (135,580)

  c. Supplemental Retirement Income Plan for Law Enforcement Officers
Plan Description. The County contributes to the Supplemental Retirement Income Plan (Plan), a 
defined contribution pension plan administered by the Department of State Treasurer and a Board of 
Trustees. The Plan provides retirement benefits to law enforcement officers employed by the County. 
Article 5 of G.S. Chapter 135 assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the 
North Carolina General Assembly. The Supplemental Retirement Income Plan for Law Enforcement 
Officers is included in the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the State of North 
Carolina. The State’s CAFR includes the pension trust fund financial statements for the Internal 
Revenue Code Section 401(k) plan that includes the Supplemental Retirement Income Plan for Law 
Enforcement Officers. That report may be obtained by writing to the Office of the State Controller, 
1410 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, North Carolina 27699-1410, or by calling (919) 981-5454.

Funding Policy. Article 12E of G.S. Chapter 143 required the County to contribute each month an 
amount equal to five percent of each officer’s salary, and all amounts contributed are vested 
immediately. Also, the law enforcement officers may make voluntary contributions to the plan. 

Contributions for the year ended June 30, 2019 were $123,189, which consisted of $118,069 from the 
County and $5,120 from the law enforcement officers. No amounts were forfeited.

  d. Supplemental Retirement Income Plans for General Employees
Employees, other than law enforcement, have the choice of participating in a 401(k) plan or a 457 
deferred compensation plan. The County contributes five percent of each employee’s salary to the 
plan of their choice. Employees may make elective deferrals to each plan. Contributions for the year 
ended June 30, 2019 to these plans were $701,914 which consisted of $488,492 from the County 
and $213,422 from employees. No amounts were forfeited.

  e. Register of Deeds’ Supplemental Pension Fund
Plan Description. Watauga County also contributes to the Registers of Deeds’ Supplemental Pension 
Fund (RODSPF), a noncontributory, defined benefit plan administered by the North Carolina 
Department of State Treasurer. RODSPF provides supplemental pension benefits to any eligible 
county register of deeds who is retired under the Local Government Employees’ Retirement System 
(LGERS) or an equivalent locally sponsored plan. Article 3 of G.S. Chapter 161 assigns the authority 
to establish and amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina General Assembly. Management of 
the plan is vested in the LGERS Board of Trustees, which consists of 13 members – nine appointed 
by the Governor, one appointed by the state Senate, one appointed by the state House of 
Representatives, and the State Treasurer and State Superintendent, who serve as ex-officio
members. The Registers of Deeds’ Supplemental Pension Fund is included in the Comprehensive 
Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the State of North Carolina. The State’s CAFR includes financial 
statements and required supplementary information for the Registers of Deeds’ Supplemental 

43

121719 BCC Meeting

94



WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

 

 
 

Pension Fund. That report may be obtained by writing to the Office of the State Controller, 1410 Mail 
Service Center, Raleigh, North Carolina 28699-1410, by calling (919) 981-5454, or at 
www.osc.nc.gov. 

Benefits Provided. An individual’s benefits for the year are calculated as a share of accumulated 
contributions available for benefits for that year, subject to certain statutory limits. An individual’s 
eligibility is based on at least 10 years of service as a register of deeds with the individual’s share 
increasing with years of service. Because of the statutory limits noted above, not all contributions 
available for benefits are distributed. 

Contributions. Benefits and administrative expenses are funded by investment income and 1.5% of 
the receipts collected by each County Commission under Article 1 of Chapter 161 of the North 
Carolina General Statutes. The statutory contribution currently has no relationship to the actuary’s 
required contribution. The actuarially determined contribution this year, and for the foreseeable future, 
is zero. Registers of Deeds do not contribute. Contribution provisions are established by General 
Statute 161-50 and may be amended only by the North Carolina General Assembly. Contributions to 
the pension plan from the County were $5,357 for the year ended June 30, 2019.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred 
Inflows of Resources Related to Pension

At June 30, 2019, the County reported an asset of $102,050 for its proportionate share of the net 
pension asset. The net pension asset was measured as of June 30, 2018. The total pension liability 
used to calculate the net pension asset was determined by an actuarial valuation as of December 31, 
2017. The total pension liability was then rolled forward to the measurement date of June 30, 2018 
utilizing update procedures incorporating the actuarial assumptions. The County’s proportion of the 
net pension asset was based on the County’s share of contributions to the pension plan, relative to 
contributions to the pension plan of all participating RODSPF employers. At June 30, 2018, the
County’s proportion was .61613%, which was a decrease of .03449% from its proportion measured 
as of June 30, 2017. 

For the year ended June 30, 2019, the County recognized pension expense of $22,038. At June 30, 
2019, the County reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
pensions from the following sources:

Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources

Deferred 
Inflows of 
Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience $ 900 $ 4,658
Changes of assumptions 4,800 -
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on
pension plan investments 16,266 -
Changes in proportion and differences between County 
contributions and proportionate share of contributions 6,284 214
County contributions subsequent to the measurement 
date 5,357 -

Total $ 33,607 $ 4,872

$5,357 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from County 
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as an increase of the net 
pension asset in the year ended June 30, 2020. Other amounts reported as deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

44

121719 BCC Meeting

95



WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

 

 
 

Year ended June 30:
2020 $ 12,344
2021 3,715
2022 4,793
2023 2,526
2024 -
Thereafter -

Total $ 23,378

Actuarial Assumptions. The total pension liability in the December 31, 2017 actuarial valuation was 
determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the 
measurement:

Inflation 3.0 percent
Salary increases 3.50 to 7.75 percent, including inflation and productivity factor
Investment rate of return 3.75 percent, net of pension plan investment expense, 

including inflation

The plan currently uses mortality tables that vary by age, gender, employee group (i.e. general, law 
enforcement officer) and health status (i.e. disabled and healthy). The current mortality rates are 
based on published tables and based on studies that cover significant portions of the U.S. population. 
The healthy mortality rates also contain a provision to reflect future mortality improvements. 

The actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2017 valuation were based on the results of an 
actuarial experience study as of December 31, 2014. 

Future ad hoc COLA amounts are not considered to be substantively automatic and are therefore not
included in the measurement.

The projected long-term investment returns and inflation assumptions are developed through review 
of current and historical capital markets data, sell-side investment research, consultant whitepapers, 
and historical performance of investment strategies. Fixed income return projections reflect current 
yields across the U.S. Treasury yield curve and market expectations of forward yields projected and 
interpolated for multiple tenors and over multiple year horizons. These projections are combined to 
produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by 
the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. The adopted asset allocation 
policy for the RODSPF is 100% in the fixed income asset class. The best estimate of arithmetic real 
rate of return for the fixed income asset class as of June 30, 2019 is 1.4%.

The information above is based on 30 year expectations developed with the consulting actuary for the 
2017 asset liability and investment policy study for the North Carolina Retirement Systems, including 
LGERS. The long-term nominal rates of return underlying the real rates of return are arithmetic 
annualized figures. The real rates of return are calculated from nominal rates by multiplicatively 
subtracting a long-term inflation assumption of 3.0%. All rates of return and inflation are annualized.

Discount rate. The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 3.75%. The projection 
of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from employers will be 
made at statutorily required rates. Based on these assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net 
position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of the current 
plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was 
applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the County’s proportionate share of the net pension asset to changes in the discount 
rate. The following presents the County’s proportionate share of the net pension asset calculated 
using the discount rate of 3.75 percent, as well as what the County’s proportionate share of the net 

45

121719 BCC Meeting

96



WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

 

 
 

pension asset would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower 
(2.75 percent) or 1-percentage-point higher (4.75 percent) than the current rate:

1% Decrease 
(2.75%)

Discount Rate 
(3.75%)

1% Increase 
(4.75%)

County’s proportionate share of 
the net pension liability (asset) $(80,460) $(102,050) $(120,256) 

Pension plan fiduciary net position. Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net 
position is available in the separately issued Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the 
State of North Carolina.

f. Pension Liabilities (Assets), Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and 
Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

The net pension liability (asset) for LGERS and ROD was measured as of June 30, 2018, and the 
total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability (asset) was determined by an actuarial 
valuation as of December 31, 2017. The net pension liability (asset) for LEOSSA was measured as of 
June 30, 2018, with an actuarial valuation date of that same date. The County’s proportion of the net 
pension liability (asset) was based on the County’s share of contributions to the pension plan relative 
to the contribution of all participating entities. Following is information related to the proportionate 
share and pension expense:

LGERS ROD LEOSSA Total
Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability 
(Asset) 3,928,361$ (102,050)$ -$ 3,826,311$

Proportion of the Net Pension Liability (Asset) 0.16559% -0.61613% n/a n/a

Net Pension Liability - - 281,508$ 281,508$

Pension Expense 1,093,855$ 22,038$ 77,170$ 1,193,063$
 

46

121719 BCC Meeting

97



WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

At June 30, 2019, the County reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions from the following sources:

LGERS ROD LEOSSA Total
Deferred Outflows of Resources
Differences between expected and actual 
experience 606,053$ 900$ 23,082$ 630,035$

Changes of assumptions 1,042,435 4,800 54,142 1,101,377
Net difference between projected and 
actual earnings on pension plan 
investments

539,247 16,266 17,296 572,809

Changes in proportion and differences 
between County contributions and 
proportionate share of contributions

26,120 6,284 - 32,404

County contributions 
(LGERS,ROD)/benefit payments and 
administration costs (LEOSSA) 
subsequent to the measurement date

937,359 5,357 139,610 1,082,326

Total 3,151,214$ 33,607$ 234,130$ 3,418,951$
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Differences between expected and actual 
experience

20,336$ 4,658$ 168,923$ 193,917$

Changes of assumptions - - 61,177 61,177
Changes in proportion and differences 
between County contributions and 
proportionate share of contributions

16,129 214 - 16,343

Total 36,465$ 4,872$ 230,100$ 271,437$

g. Other Postemployment Benefit for Health Insurance
Plan Description

Plan Administration. Under a County resolution as of September 1, 2001, Watauga County 
administers the Healthcare Benefits Plan (HCB Plan) as a single-employer defined benefit plan that is 
used to provide postemployment benefits other than pensions (OPEB) for all retirees of the County 
who participate in the North Carolina Local Governmental Employees’ Retirement System and have 
at least five years of creditable service with the County. The County has elected to partially pay the 
future overall cost of coverage for these benefits. The HCB Plan is available to qualified retirees at up 
to 100%, with a $400 monthly maximum paid toward premium, until the age of 65 or until Medicare 
eligible, whichever is sooner based on years of creditable service with the County. The Board of 
Commissioners may amend the benefit provisions. The HCB Plan is in the County’s report as a 
pension trust fund with funds held in an irrevocable trust. A separate report was not issued for the 
Plan.

Management of the HCB Plan is vested in the Watauga County Board of Commissioners.

Plan Membership. At June 30, 2018 and June 30, 2019, the HCB Plan membership consisted of the 
following: 

47

121719 BCC Meeting

98



WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

 

 
 

2018 2019
Inactive plan members or beneficiaries 
currently receiving benefit payments 24 24
Inactive plan members entitled to but

not yet receiving benefit payments - -
Active plan members 250 249
          Total 274 273

Benefits Provided. The HCB plan provides healthcare benefits for retirees.  The County pays a 
percentage of the cost of coverage for employees’ benefits through private insurers.  

Contributions. The Board of Commissioners established the contribution requirements of plan 
members and these requirements may be amended by the Board. The Board establishes rates based 
on an actuarially determined rate. Per a County resolution, the County is required to contribute the 
projected pay-as-you-go financing requirements, with an additional amount to prefund benefits as 
determined annually by the Board. The County’s contribution is dependent on the employee’s number 
of years of creditable service with the County. Retirees pay the difference in the premium less their 
subsidy based on years of service in the chart below.  For the current year, the County contributed 
$276,538. 

County contributions to HCB Plan based on creditable years of service

25 years or more with Watauga County $400 per month maximum or 100%, 
whichever is less

20 to 25 years with Watauga County $300 per month maximum or 75%, 
whichever is less

10 years in LGERS with last 5 years with Watauga County $0

Investments

Investment policy. The HCB Plan’s policy in regards to the allocation of invested assets is established 
by the County Financial Policy used by management. It is the policy of the County to pursue an 
investment strategy that reduces risk through the prudent diversification of the portfolio and staggered 
maturities. Investments are valued at fair value.  The current asset allocation policy is in 100% fixed 
income investments with an expected long term rate of return of 3.87 percent. 

Rate of return. For the year ended June 30. 2018, the annual money weighted rate of return on 
investments, net of investment expense, was 1.32 percent.

Net OPEB Liability of the County

The components of the net OPEB liability of the County at June 30, 2019 were as follows:

Total OPEB Liability $ 4,012,410
Plan fiduciary net position 1,768,745
County’s net OPEB liability $ 2,243,665

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of Total OPEB Liability is 44.08%. 

Actuarial assumptions. The total OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 
30, 2019 using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the 
measurement, unless otherwise specified:

Inflation    3.0 percent

48

121719 BCC Meeting

99



WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

 

 
 

Salary increases Based on service, ranging from 7.35 percent for Uniformed 
Employees grading down to 3.50 percent over 40 years, and 7.75% 
for General Employees grading down to 3.50 percent over 24 years,
including inflation

Discount rate 3.87 percent
Healthcare cost trend rates 7.0 percent grading down to 4.5 percent over 10 years
Healthy mortality rates

Pre-retirement RP-2014 Healthy Annuitant base rates projected to the valuation 
date using MP-2015, projected forward generationally from the 
valuation date using MP-2015

Post-retirement RP-2014 Healthy Annuitant base rates projected to the valuation 
date using MP-2015, projected forward generationally from the 
valuation date using MP-2015. Rates are adjusted by 115 percent 
(male) and 79 percent (female) for general employees and by 104 
percent (male) for sworn law enforcement officers.

Total OPEB liabilities were rolled forward to June 30, 2018 and June 30, 2019 for the employer and 
the plan, respectively, utilizing updated procedures incorporating the actuarial assumptions.

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2018 valuation were based on the NCLGERS 
assumption study for the five-year period ended December 31, 2014.  

The long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was determined using a building-
block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, 
net of investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These returns are 
combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighing the expected future real rates 
of return by the major target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation and 
subtracting expected investment expenses and a risk margin. 

Discount rate. The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 3.87 percent. The
discount rate incorporates a municipal bond rate which is 3.87 percent as reported in the Bond Buyer
for the 20 Year general obligation bonds as of June 30, 2018. 

Sensitivity of the net OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate. The following presents the net 
OPEB liability of the County, as well as what the County’s net OPEB liability would be if it were 
calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (2.87 percent) or 1-percentage-point 
higher (4.87 percent) than the current discount rate:

1% Decrease
(2.87 percent)

Discount Rate
(3.87 percent)

1% Increase
(4.87 percent)

Net OPEB liability (asset) $ 2,572,690 $ 2,243,665 $ 1,944,735

Sensitivity of the net OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare trend rate. The following presents the 
net OPEB liability of the County, as well as what the County’s net OPEB liability would be if it were to 
calculate healthcare trend rates that are 1-percentage-point lower or 1-percentage-point higher than 
the current healthcare trend rate:

1% Decrease
in Trend Rates

Healthcare Cost 
Trend Rate (7.0 

percent decreasing 
to 4.5 percent over 

10 years)
1% Increase

in Trend Rates
Net OPEB liability (asset) $ 1,991,193 $ 2,243,665 $ 2,542,796

49

121719 BCC Meeting

100



WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

Changes in Net OPEB Liability, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred 
Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB. At June 30, 2019, the County reported a net OPEB liability of 
$2,243,665.  The total OPEB liability used to calculate the net OPEB liability was measured by an 
actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2018.

At June 30, 2019, the components of the net OPEB liability of the County, as measured at June 30, 
2018, were as follows:

Total OPEB 
Liability 

(a)

Plan Fiduciary 
Net Position 

(b)

Net OPEB 
Liability 
(a)-(b)

Balances at June 30, 2017 3,582,356$ 1,628,735$ 1,953,621$
Changes for the Year: - 

Service Cost 204,963 - 204,963
Interest 133,400 - 133,400
Differences between 
Expected and Actual 
experience 705,179 - 705,179
Changes of assumptions (491,388) - (491,388)
Contributions - 264,800 (264,800)
Net Investment Income - 22,310 (22,310)
Administrative expense - (25,000) 25,000
Benefit Payments (122,100) (122,100) - 

Net Changes 430,054 140,010 290,044
Balances at June 30, 2018 4,012,410$ 1,768,745$ 2,243,665$

Increase (Decrease)

Changes of assumptions. Changes of assumptions and other inputs reflect a change in the discount 
rate from 3.58 percent in 2017 to 3.87 percent in 2018.

For the year ended June 30, 2019, the County recognized OPEB expense of $332,878. At June 30, 
2019, the County reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
OPEB from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows 
of Resources

Deferred 
Inflows of 
Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience 617,032$ 124,926$
Changes of assumptions 165,620 586,864
Net Difference between projected and actual earnings on 
plan investments 54,234 - 
County contributions subsequent to the measurement 
date 276,538 - 
      Total 1,113,424$ 711,790$

$276,538 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB resulting from County 
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a decrease in the net OPEB 
liability in the year ended June 30, 2020.  Other amounts reported as deferred inflows of resources 
related to OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows:

50

121719 BCC Meeting

101



WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

 

 
 

2020 29,930$
2021 29,930
2022 25,381
2023 20,497
2024 12,876
Thereafter 6,482

125,096$  

h. Other Employment Benefits
Death Benefits
The County has elected to provide death benefits to all eligible employees through the Death Benefit 
Plan for members of the Local Governmental Employees’ Retirement System (Death Benefit Plan). A 
multiple-employer, State administered, cost sharing plan funded on a one-year term cost basis. The 
beneficiaries of those employees who die in active service after one year of contributing membership 
in the System, or who die within 180 days after retirement or termination of service have at least one 
year of contributing membership service in the System at the time of death are eligible for death 
benefits. Lump sum death benefit payments to beneficiaries are equal to the employee’s 12 highest 
months’ salary in a row during the 24 months prior to the employee’s death, but the benefit will be a 
minimum of $25,000 and will not exceed $50,000. Because all death benefit payments are made from 
the Death Benefit Plan and not by the County, the County does not determine the number of eligible 
participants. The County has no liability beyond the payment of monthly contributions. The 
contributions to the Death Benefit Plan cannot be separated between the post-employment benefit 
amount and the other benefit amount. Contributions are determined as a percentage of monthly 
payroll based upon rates established annually by the State. Separate rates are set for employees not 
engaged in law enforcement and for law enforcement officers. 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, the County made contributions to the State for death 
benefits of $8,685 for general employees and $2,978 for law enforcement employees. The County’s 
required contributions for employees not engaged in law enforcement and for law enforcement 
officers represents 0.09% and 0.14% of covered payroll, respectively.

The County has elected to provide additional death benefits for all eligible employees through a  
commercial insurance carrier in the amounts equal to an employee’s salary rounded up to the next 
$1,000. Coverage is provided at a maximum of $80,000 with no minimum value. Benefits in excess of 
$50,000 are considered taxable to the employee as a fringe benefit.

i. Retirement Plan – AppalCART
Please see the separately issued financial report of AppalCART for a complete description of their 
single employer pension plan.  

3. Closure and Postclosure Care Costs – Solid Waste Landfill and the Land Clearing Inert Debris 
(LCID)
Solid Waste Landfill - On April 8, 1994, the County stopped accepting municipal solid waste at the 
County’s landfill, and closure procedures were initiated. State and federal laws and regulations 
required the County to place a final cover on its landfill facility and to perform certain maintenance 
and monitoring functions at the site for thirsty years after closure.  Groundwater testing continues, as 
required by NCDENR. Due to a NCDENR directive, in fiscal year 2004-2005, a methane collection 
system was installed to prevent the potential for offsite migration. Further remedial actions are not 
anticipated unless groundwater conditions change. The County has reported accrued landfill 
postclosure costs of $608,725. The County will recognize the postclosure costs over the remaining 5
years.

51

121719 BCC Meeting

102



WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

 

 
 

(LCID) - State and federal laws and regulations require the County to perform certain maintenance 
and monitoring functions at the site for thirty years after closure.  Although closure and postclosure 
care costs will be paid only near or after the date that the landfill stops accepting debris, the  County 
reports a portion of these closure and postclosure care costs as an operating expense in each  period 
based on landfill capacity used as each balance sheet date.  The $328,510 reported as landfill 
closure and postclosure care liability at June 30, 2019 represents a cumulative amount reported to 
date based on the use of 37% of the total estimated capacity of the landfill.  The County will recognize 
the remaining estimated cost of closure and postclosure care of $608,725 as the remaining capacity 
is filled.  These amounts are based on what it would cost to perform all closure and postclosure care 
in 2019.

4. Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources

Deferred outflows and inflows of resources as of June 30, 2019 are as follows:

Deferred
Outflows 

of
Resources

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Statement 

of Net 
Position

Governmental 
Funds 

Balance Sheet
Changes in assumptions, pensions and OPEB $ 1,266,997 $ 648,041 $ -
Pensions and OPEB – difference between 

expected and actual experience
1,223,985 295,761 - 

Pensions and OPEB – difference between 
projected and actual investment earnings 627,043 - - 

Pensions and OPEB – change in proportion and 
difference between employer contributions 
and proportionate share of contributions 32,404 16,343 - 

Contributions to pension and OPEB plans in 1,346,364 - -
Note receivable - - 15,475,000
Prepaid taxes not yet earned (General) - 3,688 3,688
Unearned revenue (General) - 68,136 68,136
Taxes receivable, net (General) - - 694,854
Taxes Receivable, net (Special Revenue) - - 83,954

Total $ 4,496,793 $ 1,031,969 $ 16,325,632

5. Risk Management
The County is exposed to various risks of losses related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction 
of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The County participates 
in two self-funded risk-financing pools administrated by the North Carolina Association of County 
Commissioners. Through these pools, the County obtains property coverage equal to replacement 
cost values of owned property subject to a limit of $78,044,851 million for any one occurrence, 
general, auto, professional, and employment practices liability coverage of $2,000,000 per 
occurrence, auto physical damage coverage for owned autos at actual cash value, crime coverage of 
$250,000 per occurrence and workers’ compensation coverage up to the statutory limits. The pools 
are audited annually by certified public accountants, and the audited financial statements are 
available to the County upon request. The pools are reinsured through a multi-state public entity 
captive for single occurrence losses in excess of $500,000 up to a $2 million limit for liability
coverage, $600,000 of aggregate annual losses in excess of $50,000 per occurrence for property, 
auto physical damage, and crime coverage, and single occurrence losses of $350,000 for workers’ 
compensation. The County provides employee health, dental and life insurance benefits through 
commercial carriers.

52

121719 BCC Meeting

103



WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

 

 
 

The County carries flood insurance through the National Flood Insurance Plan (NFIP). Because the 
County is in an area of the State that has been mapped an “A” area (an area close to a river, lake or 
stream) by the Federal Emergency Management Agency, the County is eligible to purchase coverage 
of $500,000 per structure through the NFIP. Under this program, the County has purchased 
commercial flood insurance for $1,324,000 for certain flood-prone structures. The County carries 
flood insurance to avoid possible significant loss.

In accordance with G.S. 159-29, the County’s employees that have access to $100 or more at any 
given time of the County’s funds are covered by a blanket bond for $250,000. The Finance Officer, 
Tax Administrator, Register of Deeds, and County Manager (as Deputy Finance Director) are each 
individually bonded for $50,000 each. The Sheriff is bonded for $25,000.

The County carries commercial coverage for all other risks of loss. There have been no significant 
reductions in insurance coverage from the previous year and settled claims have not exceeded 
coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.  

AppalCART is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of 
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. AppalCART is insured with 
the NC Association of County Commissioners Liability and Property and Worker’s Compensation 
Pools that provides coverage for general liability in the amount of $2,000,000 with an additional 
$3,000,000 in vehicle liability purchased per NC DOT requirements and worker’s comp insurance at 
the statutory limits. The County is a member of these same pools. 

The Watauga County District U Tourism Development Authority is exposed to various risks of loss 
related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; and natural 
disasters. The Authority is insured with the NC Association of County Commissioners Liability and 
Property that provide coverage for general liability in the amount of $2,000,000 and worker’s comp 
coverage with a commercial firm at the statutory limits. The County is a member of the same Liability 
and Property pool. 

6. Long-term Obligations
a. Installment Purchase
As authorized by State law [G.S. 160A-20 and 153A-158.1], the County financed various transactions 
during previous years by direct placement installment purchase. The installment purchases were 
issued pursuant to security agreements that require that legal title remain with the County as long as 
the debt is outstanding because the property is pledged as collateral for the debt. The County has 
four installment purchases serviced by the general fund.

The first direct placement installment purchase was executed in the amount of $1,290,274 for 
Qualified School Construction Bonds on June 14, 2010 for school renovations. This installment 
purchase calls for 10 annual principal payments of $129,028 plus interest at 5.8 percent with a federal 
interest credit giving an effective rate of zero percent prior to federal sequestration reductions 
affecting the annual reimbursement of interest. The outstanding balance of June 30, 2019 is 
$129,027. 

The second and third installment direct placement purchase agreements were executed on June 28, 
2012 to refinance the construction of the new high school. These installment purchases were 
refinanced June 28, 2012 into limited obligation bonds. The limited obligations bonds were issued in 
two series, A and B. Series A is for a principal amount of $45,045,000 with terms ranging from 2016
to 2028. The Series A bonds have an outstanding balance at June 30, 2019 of $30,985,000. Series B 
was for $10 million with a term of three years and a set rate of 1.81 percent and this series paid out in 
fiscal year 2014-15.

53

121719 BCC Meeting

104



WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

The fourth direct placement installment purchase agreement was for limited obligations bonds and 
was executed in the amount $18,490,000 for the construction of the community recreation center on 
October 25, 2018.  The installment purchase calls for annual payments of principal and semi-annual 
payments of interest for a period of 15 years.  The annual principal payments range from $1,320,000 
to $1,325,000. The outstanding balance as of June 30, 2019 is $18,490,000. Proceeds from the 
LOBs included a premium of $1,723,277 which will be amortized and expensed in interest over the 
life of the installment purchase agreement.

For Watauga County, the future minimum payments as of June 30, 2019, including $13,263,284 of 
interest, are:

Governmental Activities Business Activities
Year Ending June 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest

2020 $ 4,799,027 $ 2,295,109 $ - $ -
2021 4,690,000 2,063,775 - -
2022 4,705,000 1,846,125 - -
2023 4,740,000 1,580,875 - -
2024 4,775,000 1,373,875 - -

2025-2029 20,615,000 3,582,125 - -
2030-2033 5,280,000 521,400

Total payments $ 49,604,027 $ 13,263,284 $ - $ -

b. General Obligation Indebtedness
The County has no general obligation debt outstanding or authorized as of June 30, 2019. At June�
30, 2019, Watauga County had a legal debt margin of $688,841,459.

c. Advance Refunding
In June 2012, the County issued $55,045,000 in limited obligation bonds to refinance the installment
purchase loans for the land and construction of the 2010 high school. These funds refinanced the
original debt remaining of $61,000,000 plus interest and expenses. This resulted in premiums totaling
$5,206,201 to be amortized over the remaining sixteen year life of the new debt. A liability for the
balance of the premium of $2,927,156 and the annual amortization of $325,239 in interest expense
are in the government-wide statements.

d. Debt Related to Capital Activities
Of the total Governmental Activities debt listed $49,475,000 relates to assets the County holds title.
There is no unspent restricted cash related to this debt. The Qualified School Construction Bond loan
done in 2010 was for renovations to school property and the County does not report an asset balance
for Mabel Elementary School, which is the collateral for this loan. The QSCB loan outstanding
balance of $129,027 is deducted from the total debt balance of $49,604,027 leaving $49,475,000 as
debt related to capital activities.

e. Long-Term Obligation Activity
The following is a summary of changes in the County’s long-term obligations for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2019:

Current
Balance Balance Portion of

Governmental activities: July 1, 2018 Increases Decreases June 30, 2019 Balance
Net pension liability (LGERS) $ 2,362,217 $1,249,604  $         - $ 3,611,821 $         -
Net pension liability (LEOSSA) 290,986 - 9,478 281,508 -
Net OPEB liability 1,799,676 265,393 - 2,065,069 -

54

121719 BCC Meeting

105



WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

Direct Placement Installment 
purchases 34,996,388 18,490,000 3,882,361 49,604,027 4,799,027
Premium on LOBS - 1,723,277 114,885 1,608,392 114,885
Premium on advance 
refunding 3,252,395 - 325,239 2,927,156 325,239
Compensated absences 1,153,560 1,700,427 1,798,504 1,055,482 196,385
Total governmental activities $43,855,222 $ 23,428,701 $6,130,467 $ 61,153,455 $5,435,536

Business-type activities:
Net pension liability (LGERS) $ 202,066 $ 114,474 $ - $ 316,540 $         -
Net OPEB liability 153,945 24,651 - 178,596 -
Accrued landfill closure and 
post closure costs 916,475 142,505 121,745 937,235 121,745
Compensated absences 105,371 148,595 151,092 102,874 20,322
Total business-type activities $ 1,377,857 430,225 $ 272,837 $ 1,535,245 142,067

Discretely presented component units:
AppalCART

Compensated absences $ 78,052 $ 61,104 $ 57,481 $ 81,675 $ -

Watauga County TDA
Net pension liability (LGERS) $ 42,165 $ 19,990 $ - $ 62,155 $         -
Compensated absences 10,637 14,066 14,420 10,283 -

Total Watauga County TDA $ 52,802 $ 34,056 $ 14,420 $         72,438 $         -

For Watauga County and the Authority, compensated absences for governmental activities are 
liquidated in the general fund and are accounted for on a LIFO basis, assuming that employees 
are taking leave time as it is earned. For AppalCART, compensated absences are accounted for
on the FIFO basis, assuming that employees are taking time that has been previously earned.

C. Interfund Balances and Activity
Transfers to/from other funds at June 30, 2019, consist of the following:

From the General Fund to the Capital Projects Fund to accumulate resources 
for future capital acquisitions $ 4,707,263

From the General Fund to the Recreation Center Project Fund for the 
Community Recreation Center 3,600,000
From the Capital Projects Fund to the General Fund for school capital projects 1,560,248

Total $ 9,867,511
D. Net Investment in Capital Assets

Governmental Business-type
Capital assets $ 123,614,625 $ 4,814,605

Less long-term debt 49,475,000 -
Less LOBs premium 1,608,392
Less advance refunding premium 2,927,156 -

Net investment in capital assets $ 69,604,077 $ 4,814,605

E. Fund Balance
Watauga County has a revenue spending policy that provides policy for programs with multiple 
revenue sources. The Finance Officer will use resources in the following hierarchy: bond 
proceeds, federal funds, state funds, local non-county funds, county funds. For the purposes fund 

55

121719 BCC Meeting

106



WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

balance classification expenditures are to be spent from restricted fund balance first, followed in 
order by committed fund balance, assigned fund balance and lastly unassigned fund balance. 
The Finance Officer has the authority to deviate from this policy if it is in the best interest of the 
County.

The following schedule provides management and citizens with information on the portion of 
General fund balance available for appropriation:

Total fund balance – General Fund $26,892,270
Less:

Stabilization by State Statute 5,763,631
Register of Deeds Automation/Enhancement 23,290
Tax Revaluation 318,847

Remaining fund balance $20,786,602

The outstanding encumbrances are amounts needed to pay any commitment related to purchase 
orders and contracts that remain unperformed at year-end.

Encumbrances: General Fund - $726,962
Recreation Center Project Fund - $21,472,103
Enterprise Fund - $65,056

Note 3 - Joint Ventures
The County participates in a joint venture to operate Appalachian Regional Library with two other 
local governments. Each participating government appoints four board members to the twelve-
member Board of the Library. The County has an ongoing financial responsibility for the joint 
venture because of the Library’s continued existence depends on the participating governments’ 
continued funding. None of the participating governments have any equity interest in the Library, 
so no equity interest has been reflected in the financial statements at June 30, 2019. In 
accordance with the intergovernmental agreement between the participating governments, the 
County appropriated $604,760 to the Library to supplement its activities. Complete financial 
statements for the Library can be obtained from their offices at 148 Library Drive, West Jefferson, 
NC 28694.

The County, in conjunction with Ashe and Alleghany Counties, participates in a joint venture to 
operate the Appalachian District Health Department. Each participating government appoints one 
board member to the Governing Board and they in turn appoint the other members of the 
Governing Board. None of the participating governments have any equity interest in the Health 
Department, so no equity interest has been reflected in the financial statements at June 30, 2019.
In accordance with the intergovernmental agreement between the participating governments, the 
County appropriated $680,705 to the Health Department to supplement its activities. Complete 
financial statements for the Health Department can be obtained from the Health Department’s 
offices at 126 Poplar Grove Connector Road, Boone, NC 28607.

Note 4 - Jointly Governed Organization
The County communally governs Caldwell Community College and Technical Institute with one 
other government and the community college system of the State of North Carolina. The County 
appoints two members of its fourteen members Board of Trustees. In accordance with the 
intergovernmental agreement between the participating governments, the County appropriated 
$924,895 to Caldwell Community College and Technical Institute to supplement its activities. 
Complete financial statements for the College can be obtained at 2855 Hickory Boulevard, 
Hudson, NC 28638.

The County, in conjunction with seven other counties and nineteen municipalities, established the 
High Country Council of Governments (Council). The participating governments established the 
Council to coordinate various funding received from Federal and State agencies. Each 

56

121719 BCC Meeting

107



WATAUGA COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

participating government appoints one member to the Council’s governing board. The County 
paid membership fees of $26,729 and purchased services in the amount of $2,847 with the 
Council during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019. The County was the sub recipient of three 
grants totaling $332,478. The first grant is for $291,918 in Home and Community Care Block 
Grant funds and the second is for $26,303 in Nutrition Programs for the Elderly funds. Both are 
from the US Department of Health and Human Services and the Division of Aging of the North 
Carolina Department of Health and Human Services that was passed through the Council. The 
third grant is for $14,257 from the Division of Aging of the North Carolina Department of Health 
and Human Services that was passed through the Council. Complete financial statements for the 
Council can be obtained at 468 New Market Blvd., Boone, NC 28607.

Note 5 - Summary Disclosure of Significant Commitments and Contingencies
Federal and State Assisted Programs
The County has received proceeds from several Federal and State grants. Periodic audits of 
these grants are required and certain costs may be questioned as not being appropriate 
expenditures under the grant agreements. Such audits could result in the refund of grant moneys 
to the grantor agencies. Management believes that any required refunds will be immaterial. No 
provision has been made in the accompanying financial statements for the refund of grant 
moneys.

Note 6 - Subsequent Events
For the year ended June 30, 2019, the County has evaluated subsequent events for potential 
recognition and disclosure through December 13, 2019 – the date the financial statements were 
available to be issued. 

The County refinanced the 2012 limited obligation bonds to fund the high school in the amount 
$19,240,000 on October 2, 2019.  The bonds require semi-annual payments of interest and 
principal starting June 1, 2020 with the final payment on June 1, 2028. 

57

121719 BCC Meeting

108



Schedule

2

3

4

5

6

8

9

10

Schedule of County's Contributions (LGERS)

Schedule of County's Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability (Asset) 
(LGERS)

Schedule of County's Contributions (RODSPF)

Schedule of County's Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability (Asset) 
(RODSPF)

7

Schedule of Changes in the OPEB Liability and Related Ratios

Schedule of County's Contributions (OPEB)

Schedule of Investment Returns (OPEB)

Required Supplemental Financial Data

This section contains additional information required by generally accepted accounting
principles.

1 Schedule of Changes in the Net Pension Liability-Law Enforcement Officers' 
Special Separation Allowance Irrevocable Trust (LEOSSA)

Schedule of the Net Pension Liability (LEOSSA)

Schedule of County's Contributions (LEOSSA)

121719 BCC Meeting

109



Schedule 1

2019** 2018** 2017** 2016*
Total pension liability

Service cost $ 57,398 $ 57,127 $ 24,305 $ 49,129
Interest 26,308 25,578 14,474 26,460
Benefit changes - - - -
Difference between expected and actual experience 25,317 (173,460) (33,229) -
Changes of assumptions and other inputs (21,390) (50,285) 60,466 11,037
Benefit payments, including refunds of member contributions (26,244) (17,399) (7,101) (23,302)
Net change in total pension liability 61,389 (158,439) 58,915 63,324

Total pension liability-beginning 690,594 849,033 790,118 726,794
Total pension liability-ending (a) $ 751,983 $ 690,594 $ 849,033 $ 790,118

Plan net position
Contributions-employer $ 109,744 $ 143,399 $ 7,101 $ 71,302
Contributions-member - - - -
Net investment income 5,867 752 428 706
Benefit payments, including refunds of member contributions (26,244) (17,399) (7,101) (23,302)
Administrative expense (18,500) (457) - (236)
Refund of contributions - - - -
Other - - - -
Net change in plan net position 70,867 126,295 428 48,470

Plan net position-beginning 399,608 273,313 272,885 224,415
Plan net position-ending (b) $ 470,475 $ 399,608 $ 273,313 $ 272,885

Net pension liability-ending (a) - (b) $ 281,508 $ 290,986 $ 575,720 $ 517,233

*Information is as of the Measurement date of December 31, 2015.
**Information is presented as of the measurement date of June 30 one year prior to the reporting year noted.

Notes to schedule:
Benefit changes None
Assumption changes

There were no changed between the measurement date and the County's reporting date that are expected to have a significant effect
on the net pension liability.

Schedule of the Changes in the Net Pension Liability (Asset)

Law Enforcement Officers' Special Separation Allowance Irrevocable Trust
Watauga County, North Carolina

The assumed rate of return was decreased from 3.58% to 3.87% to reflect a change in the Municipal Bond
Rate.

Last Four Fiscal Years

58

121719 BCC Meeting

110



Schedule 2

2019** 2018** 2017** 2016*

Total pension liability (TPL) $ 751,983 $ 690,594 $ 849,033 $ 790,118

Plan net position 470,475 399,608 273,313 272,885

Net pension liability $ 281,508 $ 290,986 $ 575,720 $ 517,233

Ratio of plan net position to total pension liability 62.56% 57.86% 32.19% 34.54%

Covered payroll 2,005,514 1,837,013 1,883,580 1,837,735

Net pension liability as a percentage of covered payroll 14.04% 15.84% 30.57% 28.15%

*Information is as of the Measurement date of December 31, 2015.
**Information is as of the Measurement date of June 30 of the prior fiscal year.

Notes to schedule:

Inflation 3.00%
Salary increases Based on service, ranging from 3.50 - 7.35%, including inflation
Investment Rate of Return 3.58%, net of pension plan investment expense, including inflation
Mortality

Pre-retirement RP-2014 Employee tables, projected forward generationally with Scale MP-2015
Post-retirement

The TPL was measured based on data as of June 30, 2018, using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods
included in the measurement:

RP-2014 Healthy Annuitant tables, projected forward generationally with Scale MP-2015. Rates loaded
by 4% for males.

Law Enforcement Officers' Special Separation Allowance Irrevocable Trust
Watauga County, North Carolina

Schedule of the Net Pension Liability (Asset)
Last Four Fiscal Years

59

121719 BCC Meeting

111



Schedule 3

2019 2018 2017 2016

Actuarially determined employer contribution $ 88,544 $ 109,308 $ 95,479 $ 60,285

Contributions in relation to the contractually required contribution 130,091 109,744 143,399 39,727

Contribution deficiency (excess) $ (41,547) $ (436) $ (47,920) $ 20,558

County's covered payroll $ 2,005,514  $ 1,837,013  $ 1,823,288  $ 1,883,580

Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll 6.49% 5.97% 7.86% 2.11%

Notes to schedule:
Valuation date:  Actuarially determined employer contribution is determined on an annual basis

Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates for the year ended June 30, 2019:

Actuarial cost method Entry Age
Amortization method Level dollar, closed
Remaining amortization period 13.5 years
Asset valuation method Market value of assets
Investment Rate of Return 3.58%, including inflation, net of pension plan investment expense
Inflation 3.00%
Salary increases Based on service, ranging from 3.50% to 7.35%, including inflation
Mortality

Pre-retirement RP-2014 Employee tables, projected forward generationally with Scale MP-2015
Post-retirement

Schedule of County Contributions

Law Enforcement Officers' Special Separation Allowance Irrevocable Trust
Watauga County, North Carolina

RP-2014 Healthy Annuitant tables, projected forward generationally with Scale MP-2015. Rates 
loaded by 4% for males.

Last Four Fiscal Years

60

121719 BCC Meeting

112



Schedule 4

2019 2018 2017
Total OPEB liability

Service cost $ 204,963     $ 245,616     $ 196,127      
Interest 133,400     104,379     128,565      
Benefit changes -             -             -              
Difference between expected and actual experience 705,179     (166,570)    -              
Changes of assumptions and other inputs (491,388)    (209,201)    264,995      
Benefit payments, including refunds of member contributions (122,100)    (107,800)    (120,700)     
Net change in total OPEB liability 430,054     (133,576)    468,987      

Total OPEB liability-beginning 3,582,356  3,715,932  3,246,945  
Total OPEB liability-ending (a) 4,012,410  3,582,356  3,715,932  

Plan fiduciary net position
Contributions-employer $ 264,800     $ 872,800     $ 207,436      
Contributions-member -             -             -              
Net investment income 22,310       10,714       7,889          
Benefit payments, including refunds of member contributions (122,100)    (107,800)    (120,700)     
Administrative expense (25,000)      -             (4,800)         
Net change in plan fiduciary net position 140,010     775,714     89,825        

Plan fiduciary net position-beginning 1,628,735  853,021     763,196      
Plan fiduciary net position-ending (b) 1,768,745  1,628,735  853,021      

Net OPEB liability-ending (a) - (b) $ 2,243,665 $ 1,953,621 $ 2,862,911   

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a percentage of the Total OPEB Liability 44.08% 45.47% 22.96%
Covered employee payroll $ 11,480,834 $ 10,715,512 $ 10,160,128  
Plan Net OPEB Liability as percentage of covered employee payroll 19.54% 18.23% 28.18%

*Information is presented as of the measurement date of June 30 one year prior to the reporting year noted.

Notes to Schedule
Benefit changes No change.

Changes of assumptions

Watauga County, North Carolina
Other Post Employment Benefits Irrevocable Trust

Schedule of the Changes in the Net OPEB Liability (Asset) and Related Ratios*

For 2019 the discount rate changed from 3.58 to 3.87.  The medical trend was changed to 
better reflect future expectations.  New claims and contribution assumptions were developed 
based on the updated premium information.

Last Three Fiscal Years

61

121719 BCC Meeting

113



Schedule 5

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

Actuarially determined contribution $ 227,672 $ 253,925 $ 179,656 $ 171,685 $ 171,685 $ 177,098 $ 177,098 $ 189,788 $ 160,959 $ 112,776

264,000 256,000 872,800 207,436 230,450 205,575 211,783 169,359 160,959 112,776

Contribution deficiency (excess) $ (36,328) $ (2,075) $ (693,144) $ (35,751) $ (58,765) $ (28,477) $ (34,685) $ 20,429 $ - $ -

Covered payroll $ 11,480,834  $ 10,745,512  $ 10,160,128  $ 10,512,790  $ 10,028,405  $ 10,387,368  $ 10,011,037  $ 10,526,058  $ 10,666,529  $ 10,936,838  

Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll
2.30% 2.38% 8.59% 1.97% 2.30% 1.98% 2.12% 1.61% 1.51% 1.03%

Notes to Schedule
Methods and assumptions used to establish "actuarially determined contribution" rates:

Valuation date:  Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated biannually as of June 30, one year prior to the end of the fiscal year in which contributions are reported.

Measurement date:  June 30, 2018
Discount rate
Actuarial cost method Projected Unit Credit
Amortization method Open 30-year level percent of pay as of June 30, 2018
Remaining amortization period 30-years
Asset valuation method Market Value
Inflation rate

Retirement age

Salary increases
Investment rate of return

Mortality
Healthcare trend costs

The assets are invested in cash, so the 20-year, general obligation, municipal bond index rate as of the Measurement Date is used as the discount rate.
2015, projected forward generationally from the valuation date using MP-2015. Rates are adjusted by 115% (male) and 79% (female) for General Employees and by 
104% (male) for Uniformed Employees
7.00% grading down to 4.50% over 10 years

Watauga County, North Carolina

Schedule of County Contributions

Contributions in relation to the 
actuarially determined contribution

4%

Other Post Employment Benefits Irrevocable Trust

3%
2015, projected forward generationally from the valuation date using MP-2015. Rates are adjusted by 115% (male) and 79% (female) for General Employees and by 
104% (male) for Uniformed Employees
Based on service, 7.35% for Uniformed Employees grading down to 3.50% over 40 years, and 7.75% for General Employees grading down to 3.50% over 24 years, 
including inflation

Last Ten Fiscal Years

62

121719 BCC Meeting

114



Schedule 6

2019 2018 2017

Annual money-weighted rate of return, net of investment expense 1.32% 0.87% 0.98%

Watauga County, North Carolina
Other Post Employment Benefits Irrevocable Trust

Schedule of Investment Returns 
Last Three Fiscal Years

63

121719 BCC Meeting

115



Schedule 7

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

County's proportion of the net pension liability (asset) % 0.16559% 0.16785% 0.17390% 0.17404% (0.17777)% 0.18070%

$ 3,928,361 2,564,283 $ 3,690,741 $ 781,083 $ (1,048,391)  $ 2,178,129

County's covered employee payroll $ 11,330,399 10,813,081 $ 10,682,801 $ 10,536,590 $ 10,387,368 10,367,190

34.67% 23.71% 34.55% 7.41% -10.09% 21.01%

91.63% 94.18% 91.47% 98.09% 102.64% 94.35%

*The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the prior fiscal year ending June 30.

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total 
pension liability

County's proportionate share of the net pension liability 
(asset) as a percentage of its covered employee payroll

Local Government Employees' Retirement System (LGERS)

Watauga County, North Carolina
Schedule of the County's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability (Asset)

Last Six Fiscal Years*

County's proportionate share of the net pension liability 
(asset) $

64

121719 BCC Meeting

116



Schedule 8

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Contractually required contribution $ 937,359 $ 861,878 $ 798,115 $ 732,167 $ 761,648 $ 738,196

937,359 861,878 798,115 732,167 761,648 738,196

Contribution deficiency (excess) $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -

County's covered payroll $ 11,777,037 $ 11,330,399 $ 10,813,081 $ 10,682,801 $ 10,536,590 $ 10,387,368

7.96% 7.61% 7.38% 6.85% 7.23% 7.11%

Watauga County, North Carolina
County's Contributions

Local Governmental Employees' Retirement System
Last Six Fiscal Years

Contributions in relation to the contractually required 
contribution

Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll

65

121719 BCC Meeting

117



Schedule 9

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

County's proportion of the net pension liability (asset) % (0.61613%) (0.65062%) (0.66734%) (0.65929%) (0.6297%) (0.6609%)

County's proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) $ $ (102,050)   $ (111,054)  $ (124,766)  $ (152,800)  $ (142,737) $ (141,158)

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability 153.31% 153.77% 160.17% 197.29% 193.88% 190.50%

*The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the prior fiscal year ending June 30.

Register of Deeds' Supplemental Pension Fund (RODSPF)
Last Six Fiscal Years*

Watauga County, North Carolina
Schedule of the County's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability (Asset)

66

121719 BCC Meeting

118



Schedule 10

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Contractually required contribution $ 5,357 $ 5,273 $ 5,653 $ 5,452 $ 5,276 $ 5,142

Contributions in relation to the contractually required contribution 5,357 5,273 5,653 5,452 5,276 5,142

Contribution deficiency (excess) $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -

Watauga County, North Carolina
County's Contributions

Last Six Fiscal Years
Register of Deeds' Supplemental Pension Fund (RODSPF)

67

121719 BCC Meeting

119



COMBINING AND INDIVIDUAL FUND                   
SCHEDULES

121719 BCC Meeting

120



Schedule 1

Final Budget Actual Variance
REVENUES:

Taxes - ad valorem:
Current year                        $ 32,260,607
Prior years 361,466       
Advertising and interest 164,131       

Total Taxes - ad valorem $ 31,837,000 32,786,204 $ 949,204        

Taxes - other:
Local option sales taxes 12,809,697
Real estate transfer tax 542,922       
ABC Bottle tax 22,868         
Heavy equipment rental tax 8,491           
Gross receipts tax 62,821         
Video programming tax 315,656       

Total Taxes - other 13,029,900 13,762,455 732,555        

Unrestricted Intergovernmental:
Miscellaneous revenues from Towns 1,894,091
Medicaid hold harmless 2,220,185
Tax collection fees 119,688       
Occupancy tax administrative fee 28,128         
Payments in lieu of taxes 27,650         

Total Unrestricted Intergovernmental 3,360,000 4,289,742 929,742        

Restricted Intergovernmental:
Grants-Federal and State 4,299,737
Public School Building Capital Fund - Lottery 457,828       
Federal Interest Credit 14,039         
Court facilities fees 110,035       

Total Restricted Intergovernmental 5,350,407 4,881,639 (468,768)       

Permits and Fees:
Sheriff's office permits and fees 128,499       
Planning and inspection fees 315,889       
Register of deeds fees 289,907       
Fire inspection fees 3,132           
Child Support fees 49,848         

Total Permits and Fees 678,455       787,275       108,820        

Sales and Services:
POA services 11,497         
TDA Financial and other services 12,000         
Recreation fees 282,089       
Reimbursement for Inmates 55,204         
Rent 477,465       
DMV notary/passport processing fees 177,894       
Blowing Rock communication services 178,100       
Election revenues 94               

Total Sales and Service 1,072,610 1,194,343 121,733        

Investment earnings: 173,000       462,514       289,514        

Miscellaneous:
Other 516,146       
Donations 380,812       

Total Miscellaneous 680,560       896,958       216,398        

TOTAL REVENUES 56,181,932 59,061,130 2,879,198     

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

General Fund
Watauga County, North Carolina

68

121719 BCC Meeting

121



Schedule 1

Final Budget Actual Variance

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

General Fund
Watauga County, North Carolina

EXPENDITURES:

General Government
Governing Body:

Salaries and benefits $ 55,011         
Operating expenses 5,105           

Total Governing Body $ 62,085         60,116         $ 1,969            

Administration:
Salaries and benefits 410,143       
Operating expenses 7,178           

Total Administration 431,795       417,321       14,474          

Finance:
Salaries and benefits 320,545       
Operating expenses 66,310         

Total Finance 448,305       386,855       61,450          

Tax Administration:
Salaries and benefits 887,401       
Operating expenses 167,049       

Total Tax Administration 1,123,350 1,054,450 68,900          

Tax Revaluation:
Operating expenses 168              

Total Tax Revaluation 50,000         168              49,832          

Tag Office:
Salaries and benefits 196,390       
Operating expenses 3,741           

Total Tag Office 203,395       200,131       3,264            

Legal Services:
Operating expenses 85,000         57,749         27,251          

Court facilities:
Operating expenses 2,000           1,361           639               

Board of Elections:
Salaries and benefits 232,329       
Operating expenses 103,304       

Total Board of Elections 353,220       335,633       17,587          

Register of Deeds:
Salaries and benefits 450,856       
Operating expenses 68,672         
Capital outlay 1,198           

Total Register of Deeds 535,765       520,726       15,039          

General Administration:
Operating expenses 519,519       
Capital outlay 1,110,216

Total General Administration 2,496,122 1,629,735 866,387        

Information Technologies:
Salaries and benefits 459,542       
Operating expenses 346,488       
Capital outlay 38,614         

Total Information Technologies 997,886       844,644 153,242

69

121719 BCC Meeting

122



Schedule 1

Final Budget Actual Variance

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

General Fund
Watauga County, North Carolina

Maintenance:
Salaries and benefits $ 1,152,780
Operating expenses 37,022         
Capital outlay 48,511         

Total Maintenance $ 1,311,121 1,238,313 $ 72,808          

Public Buildings:
Operating expenses 1,210,859
Capital outlay 374,516       

Total Public Buildings 2,199,507 1,585,375 614,132        

Total General Government 10,299,551 8,332,577 1,966,974

Public Safety
Sheriff's Office:

Salaries and benefits 3,352,977
Operating expenses 432,579       
Capital outlay 236,713       

Total Sheriff's Office 4,314,320 4,022,269 292,051        

Detention Center:
Salaries and benefits 1,551,408
Operating expenses 612,909       

Total Detention Center 2,291,060 2,164,317 126,743        

Emergency Services:
Salaries and benefits 796,844       
Operating expenses 29,476         
Capital outlay 31,834         

Total Emergency Services 908,681       858,154       50,527          

Emergency Management:
Salaries and benefits 281,870       
Operating expenses 1,283,221
Operating expenses 97,411         

Total Emergency Management 1,749,100 1,662,502 86,598          

Planning and Inspections:
Salaries and benefits 632,039       
Operating expenses 19,306         

Total Planning and Inspections 667,500       651,345       16,155          

Other Emergency Services: 1,519,710 1,457,499 62,211          

Animal Control:
Salaries and benefits 122,596       
Operating expenses 8,438           

Total Animal Control 136,060       131,034       5,026            

Total Public Safety 11,586,431 10,947,120 639,311

Transportation
Transportation: 224,792       224,792       -                    

Economic and Physical Development
Special Appropriations: 469,105       468,469       636               

Economic Development: 250,139       205,436       44,703          

Total Economic and Physical Development 719,244       673,905 45,339          

70

121719 BCC Meeting

123



Schedule 1

Final Budget Actual Variance

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

General Fund
Watauga County, North Carolina

Environmental Protection
Cooperative Extension:

Salaries and benefits $ 239,914       
Operating expenses 15,090         

Total Cooperative Extension $ 254,280       255,004       $ (724)              

Soil and Water Conservation:
Salaries and benefits 110,918       
Operating expenses 7,517           

Total Soil and Water Conservation 136,364       118,435       17,929          

Total Environmental Protection 390,644       373,439 17,205          

Human Services
Public Health: 680,705       680,705       -                    

Mental Health: 171,195       171,195       -                    

Social Services:
Salaries and benefits 3,029,810
Operating expenses 335,594       
Capital outlay 28,103         
Beneficiary payments 1,777,923

Total Social Services 5,589,291 5,171,430 417,861        

Project on Aging:
Salaries and benefits 1,078,373
Operating expenses 202,923       

Total Project on Aging 1,417,618 1,281,296 136,322        

Veterans Services:
Salaries and benefits 116,442       
Operating expenses 2,108           

Total Veterans Services 122,510       118,550       3,960            

Total Human Services 7,981,319 7,423,176 558,143

Education
Public Schools - current 13,557,815
Public Schools - capital outlay 1,435,180
Community College - current 900,250       
Community College - capital outlay 352,075       

Total Education 16,825,283 16,245,320 579,963

Cultural and Recreational
Library: 604,760       604,760       -                    

Recreation:
Salaries and benefits 853,886       
Operating expenses 134,976       
Capital outlay 22,100         

Total Recreation 1,128,683 1,010,962 117,721        

Total Cultural and Recreational 1,733,443 1,615,722 117,721

Debt Service
Principal retirement 3,882,361
Interest and fees 2,101,148

Total Debt Service 5,983,510 5,983,509 1                   

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 55,744,217 51,819,560 3,924,657     

Revenues over (under) expenditures 437,715       7,241,570 6,803,855

71

121719 BCC Meeting

124



Schedule 1

Final Budget Actual Variance

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

General Fund
Watauga County, North Carolina

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):

Sale of capital assets $ 40,000         $ 12,154         $ (27,846)         
Transfers to Recreation Center Project Fund (3,600,000) (3,600,000) -                    
Transfers to Capital Projects Fund (4,707,263) (4,707,263) -                    
Transfers from Capital Projects Fund 1,560,248 1,560,248 -                    
Fund balance appropriated 6,269,300 -                  (6,269,300)

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) (437,715)      (6,734,861) (6,297,146)

Net change in fund balance $ -                  506,709       $ 506,709

Fund balance, beginning of year, restated 26,385,661

Fund balance, end of year $ 26,892,370

72

121719 BCC Meeting

125



Schedule 2
Watauga County, North Carolina

Capital Projects Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in

Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

Variance
Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

Revenues:
Investment earnings  $ -  $ 145,631  $ 145,631

Expenditures:
General government 5,219,303 - 5,219,303

Revenues over (under) expenditures (5,219,303) 145,631 5,364,934

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfer from other funds 5,224,303 4,707,263 (517,040)
Transfer to other funds (1,560,248) (1,560,248) -
Appropriated fund balance 1,555,248 - (1,555,248)

Total other financing sources (uses) 5,219,303 3,147,015 (2,072,288)

Net change in fund balance  $ - 3,292,646  $ 3,292,646

Fund balance, beginning of year 6,684,645

Fund balance, end of year  $ 9,977,291

73

121719 BCC Meeting

126



Schedule 3

Actual Variance
Prior Current Total-to Favorable

Budget Years Year Date (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
   Investment earnings $ -                   152,983       $ 756,209      $ 909,192        $ 909,192              

Expenditures:
Land Improvements 15,445         11,200         4,245         15,445          -                         
Building and furniture, fixtures and equipment 34,904,447 81,282         12,669,390  12,750,672 22,153,775         
Professional services/architect 4,390,000     863,517       1,639,710 2,503,227     1,886,773           

             Total expenditures 39,309,892 955,999       14,313,345  15,269,344 (24,040,548)

Revenues over (under) expenditures -                   (803,016)      (13,557,136) (14,360,152) 24,949,740         

Other financing sources:
Proceeds from installment obligations issued 18,490,000 -                   18,490,000  18,490,000 -                         
Premium on installment obligations 1,723,277     -                   1,723,277 1,723,277     -                         
Transfer from other Funds 19,096,615 15,496,615 3,600,000 19,096,615 -                         

             Total other financing sources 39,309,892 15,496,615 23,813,277  39,309,892 -                         

Net change in fund balance $ -                   14,693,599 10,256,141  $ 24,949,740 $ 24,949,740         

Fund balance at beginning of year 14,693,599  

Fund balance at end of year $ 24,949,740  

Watauga County, North Carolina
Recreation Center Project Fund

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2019

74

121719 BCC Meeting

127



Schedule 4

Federal State Emergency Total
Equitable Substance Telephone Fire Occupancy Nonmajor
Sharing Abuse Tax System Districts Tax Special Revenue

Fund Fund Fund Funds Fund Funds

ASSETS:
Restricted cash and cash equivalents $ 93,026 $ 34,012 $ 273,279 $ 10,929 $ 126,043 $ 537,289
Due from other governments - - 27,214 17,072 - 44,286
Taxes receivable, net - - - 83,954 174,511 258,465

Total assets $ 93,026 $ 34,012 $ 300,493 $ 111,955 $ 300,554 $ 840,040

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES:
Liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued
   liabilities - 932 6,559 28,001 - 35,492

Due to other governments - - - - 300,554 300,554
Total Liabilities - 932 6,559 28,001 300,554 336,046

Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Taxes paid in advance - - - - - -
Taxes receivable - - - 83,954 - 83,954

Total deferred inflows of resources - - - 83,954 - 83,954

Fund Balances:
Restricted for:

Stabilization by State Statute - - 27,214 - - 27,214
Public Safety 93,026 33,080 266,720 - - 392,826
Total fund balances 93,026 33,080 293,934 - - 420,040

Total liabilities, deferred inflows 
of resources, and fund balances $ 93,026 $ 34,012 $ 300,493 $ 111,955 $ 300,554 $ 840,040

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds

Watauga County, North Carolina
Combining Balance Sheet

Nonmajor Governmental Funds
June 30, 2019

75

121719 BCC Meeting

128



Schedule 5

Federal State Emergency Total
Equitable Substance Telephone Fire Occupancy Nonmajor
Sharing Abuse Tax System Districts Tax Special Revenue

Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds

REVENUES

 Ad valorem taxes $ -              $ -                $ -                 $ 3,358,762  $ -                 $ 3,358,762             
 Other taxes and licenses -              -                -                 -                 1,837,552  1,837,552             
 Restricted intergovernmental 45,814    23,646      326,565     -                 -                 396,025                
 Investment earnings 1,135      625           4,341         -                 -                 6,101                    

   Total revenues 46,949    24,271      330,906     3,358,762  1,837,552  5,598,440             

EXPENDITURES

General government -              -                -                 -                 -                 -                            
Economic development -              -                -                 -                 1,837,552  1,837,552             
Public safety 3,250      41,969      305,976     3,358,762  -                 3,709,957             

   Total expenditures 3,250      41,969      305,976    3,358,762 1,837,552 5,547,509             

   Net change in fund balances 43,699    (17,698)     24,930       -                 -                 50,931                  

Fund balances, beginning of year 49,327    50,778      269,004     -                 -                 369,109                

Fund balances, end of year $ 93,026    $ 33,080      $ 293,934    $ -                 $ -                 $ 420,040                

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds

Watauga County, North Carolina
Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Nonmajor Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

76

121719 BCC Meeting

129



Schedule 6
Watauga County, North Carolina

Federal Equitable Sharing Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in

Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

Variance
Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

Revenues:
    Restricted intergovernmental - Federal $ - $ 45,814 $ 45,814

Investment earnings - 1,135 1,135

Total revenues - 46,949 46,949

Expenditures:
Public safety 3,320 3,250 70

 Revenues over (under) expenditures (3,320) 43,699 47,019

Other financing sources (uses):
    Appropriated fund balance 3,320 - (3,320)

Net change in fund balance $ - 43,699 $ 43,699

Fund balance, beginning of year 49,327

Fund balance, end of year $ 93,026

77

121719 BCC Meeting

130



Schedule 7
Watauga County, North Carolina
State Substance Abuse Tax Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

Variance
Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

Revenues:
    Restricted intergovernmental - State  $ 32,000 $ 23,646 $ (8,354)
    Investment earnings - 625 625

Total revenues 32,000 24,271 (7,729)

Expenditures:
    Public safety 46,500 41,969 4,531
    Capital outlay - - -

Total expenditures 46,500 41,969 4,531

Revenues over (under) expenditures (14,500) (17,698) (3,198)

Other financing sources (uses):
    Appropriated fund balance 14,500 - (14,500)

Net change in fund balance $ - (17,698) $ (17,698)

Fund balance, beginning of year 50,778

Fund balance, end of year $ 33,080

78

121719 BCC Meeting

131



Schedule 8
Watauga County, North Carolina

Emergency Telephone System Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in

Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

Variance
Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

Revenues:
Restricted intergovernmental:

Emergency Telephone Surcharge funds $ 326,565 $ 326,565 $ -
Investment earnings - 4,341 4,341

Total revenues 326,565 330,906 4,341

Expenditures:
Public safety:

Implementation services 77,100 63,713 13,387
Software 72,800 64,167 8,633
Training 6,045 3,233 2,812
Telephones 99,620 104,654 (5,034)
Hardware 71,000 70,129 871
Furniture - 80 (80)

Total expenditures 326,565 305,976 20,589

Net change in fund balance  $ - 24,930 $ 24,930

Fund balance, beginning of year 269,004

Fund balance, end of year $ 293,934

79

121719 BCC Meeting

132



Schedule 9
Watauga County, North Carolina

 Fire Districts Funds
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in

Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

Variance
Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

Revenues:
    Ad valorem taxes $ 3,385,100 $ 3,358,762 $ (26,338)

              Total revenues 3,385,100 3,358,762 (26,338)

Expenditures:
    Public safety:

Beaver Dam Fire Department 115,000 109,934
Beech Mountain Fire Department 1,800 1,601
Blowing Rock Fire Department 501,000 496,293
Boone Fire Department 960,500 958,033
Cove Creek Fire Department 260,700 255,799
Creston Fire Department 6,900 6,051
Deep Gap Fire Department 205,500 205,458
Fall Creek Fire Department 11,000 9,300
Foscoe Fire Department 560,400 558,655
Meat Camp Fire Department 226,000 223,918
Shawneehaw Fire Department 112,300 109,283
Stewart Simmons Fire Department 232,000 235,079
Todd Fire Department 67,000 65,027
Zionville Fire Department 125,000 124,331

               Total expenditures 3,385,100 3,358,762 26,338

Net change in fund balance $ - - $ -

Fund balance, beginning of year -

Fund balance, end of year $ -

80

121719 BCC Meeting

133



Schedule 10
Watauga County, North Carolina

Occupancy Tax Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in

Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

Variance
Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

Revenues:
Occupancy tax  $ 1,890,000   $ 1,837,552  $ (52,448)

Total revenues 1,890,000  1,837,552 (52,448)

Expenditures:
Tourism development 1,861,100  1,809,176 51,924
Administrative fee 28,900 28,376 524

Total expenditures 1,890,000  1,837,552 52,448

Net change in fund balance  $ - -  $ -

Fund balance, beginning of year -

Fund balance, end of year $ -

81

121719 BCC Meeting

134



Schedule 11

Variance
Final Favorable

Revenues: Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Operating revenues:

Charges for services $ 4,739,845    $ 4,769,487    $ 29,642              
Sale of recycled materials 375,000       322,838       (52,162)             

Total 5,114,845    5,092,325    (22,520)             

Non-operating revenues:
Miscellaneous revenue 3,700           3,198           (502)                  
Investment earnings 35,000         123,643       88,643              
Restricted intergovernmental revenues 133,000       150,629       17,629              

Total 171,700       277,470       105,770            

Total revenues 5,286,545    5,369,795    83,250              

Expenditures:
Landfill operations:

Salaries and employee benefits 1,356,508    
Other operating expenditures 3,179,182    

Total landfill operations 4,977,728    4,535,690    442,038            

Recycling operations:
Salaries and employee benefits 48,576         
Other operating expenses 37,655         

Total recycling operations 106,525       86,231         20,294              

Capital outlay:
Capital outlay 457,812       455,942       1,870                

Total expenditures 5,542,065    5,077,863    464,202            

Revenues under/(over) expenditures (255,520)      291,932       547,452            

Other financing sources:
Sale of fixed assets 35,000         -                   (35,000)             
Appropriated fund balance 220,520       -                   (220,520)           

Total other financing sources 255,520       -                   (255,520)           

Revenues over expenditures and other sources $ -                   291,932       $ 291,932            

Reconciliation from budgetary basis (modified accrual) to full accrual:

Reconciling items:
Increase in deferred outflow of resources - pensions 101,698       
Increase in net pension liability (114,474)      
Decrease in deferred inflow of resources - pensions 4,707           
Increase in deferred outflow of resources - OPEB 35,540         
Increase in deferred inflow of resources - OPEB (30,749)        
Increase in net OPEB liability (24,651)        
Increase in accrued landfill postclosure and closure costs (20,760)        
Capital outlay 446,114       
Depreciation (337,118)      
Decrease in accrued compensated absences 2,497           

Total reconciling items 62,804         

Change in net position $ 354,736       

Watauga County, North Carolina
Solid Waste Fund

Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures Budget and Actual (NON-GAAP)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

82

121719 BCC Meeting

135



Schedule 12

LEO Special Other Post
Separation Employment
Allowance Benefits Totals

Cash and cash equivalents $ 565,353 $ 1,900,442 $ 2,465,795  
Accounts receivable 1,990 11,017 13,007

$ 567,343 $ 1,911,459 $ 2,478,802  

Net position:

     Assets held in trust for retirement benefits $ 567,343 $ 1,911,459 $ 2,478,802  

Assets

Watauga County, North Carolina
Combining Schedule of Fiduciary Net Position

Irrevocable Trust Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

83

121719 BCC Meeting

136



Schedule 13

LEO Special Other Post
Separation Employment
Allowance Benefits Totals

     Employer contributions $ 130,091 $ 264,000 $ 394,091
     Interest 11,387 32,752 44,139

          Total additions 141,478 296,752 438,230

Deductions:

     Benefits 35,091 141,500 176,591
     Administrative expense 9,519 12,538 22,057

          Total deductions 44,610 154,038 198,648

          Change in net position 96,868 142,714 239,582

Net position, beginning 470,475 1,768,745 2,239,220
Net position, ending $ 567,343 $ 1,911,459 $ 2,478,802

Additions:

Combining Schedule of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position
Irrevocable Trust Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

Watauga County, North Carolina

84

121719 BCC Meeting

137



Schedule 14

Balance Balance
July 1, 2018 Additions Deletions July 1, 2019

Social Services Trust:
   Assets: $ 45,972 $ 191,596 $ 196,770 $ 40,798

   Liabilities: $ 45,972 $ 191,596 $ 196,770 $ 40,798

Vehicle Tax-Towns:
   Assets: $ 11 $ 178,324 178,324 $ 11

   Liabilities: $ 11 $ 178,324 $ 178,324 $ 11

Town of Boone Taxes:
   Assets: $ 8,341 $ 6,292,245 $ 6,298,328 $ 2,258

   Liabilities: $ 8,341 $ 6,292,245 $ 6,298,328 $ 2,258

Inmate Commissary:
   Assets: $ 15,170 $ 206,902 $ 206,437 $ 15,635

   Liabilities: $ 15,170 $ 206,902 $ 206,437 $ 15,635

Fines and Forfeitures:
    Assets: $ 12,213 $ 198,821 $ 190,524 $ 20,510

    Liabilities: $ 12,213 $ 198,821 $ 190,524 $ 20,510

Deed of Trust Fee:
    Assets: $ 3,931 $ 46,884 $ 46,977 $ 3,838

    Liabilities: $ 3,931 $ 46,884 $ 46,977 $ 3,838

Total - All Agency Funds
   Assets: $ 85,638 $ 7,114,772 $ 7,117,360 $ 83,050

   Liabilities: $ 85,638 $ 7,114,772 $ 7,117,360 $ 83,050

Watauga County, North Carolina
Agency Funds

Combining Schedule of Changes in Assets and Liabilities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

85

121719 BCC Meeting

138



Schedule 15

Uncollected Collections Uncollected
Balance and Balance

June 30, 2018 Additions Credits June 30, 2019

2018 - 2019 $ -                      $ 32,592,547 $ 32,271,275 $ 321,272
2017 - 2018 378,029          - 207,798 170,231
2016 - 2017 141,217          - 53,589 87,628
2015 - 2016 86,261 - 29,255 57,006
2014 - 2015 89,142 - 36,524 52,618
2013 - 2014 57,619            - 20,048 37,571
2012 - 2013 45,469 - 12,969 32,500
2011 - 2012 33,788 - 10,995 22,793
2010 - 2011 28,313 - 7,867 20,446
2009 - 2010 16,614 - 3,457 13,157
2008 - 2009 15,655 - 15,655 -

$ 892,107 $ 32,592,547 $ 32,669,432 815,222

Plus:  2019 - 2020 receivable 13,547

Less:  Allowance for uncollectible accounts General Fund (133,915)

Ad valorem taxes receivable - net General Fund $ 694,854

Ad valorem taxes - General Fund $ 32,786,204

Reconciling items:
Advertising and interest collected (164,131)
Taxes written off 14,495
Penalties payable to WCS 3,920
Prior year releases and refunds 28,944

Total reconciling items (116,772)

Total collections and credits $ 32,669,432

Reconcilement with revenues:

Watauga County, North Carolina
General Fund

Schedule of Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

Fiscal year:

86

121719 BCC Meeting

139



Schedule 16

Total Levy
Property

excluding
Registered Registered

Property Amount Motor Motor
Valuation Rate of Levy Vehicles Vehicles

Original levy:

Property taxed at current year's rate $ 8,668,321,958 $ 0.00353 $ 30,597,450 $ 30,597,450 $ -                  

Motor vehicles 468,103,399   0.00353 1,652,405  -                 1,652,405    

Penalties -                      8,040         8,040         -                  

Total 9,136,425,357 32,257,895 30,605,490 1,652,405    

Discoveries:

Property taxed at current year's rate 125,774,940   0.00353 441,832     441,832    -                  

Penalties -                      4,480         4,480         -                  

Total 125,774,940   446,312     446,312    -                  

Abatements: (31,631,728)    (111,660)    (111,660)   -                  
  

Total property valuation $ 9,230,568,569

Net levy 32,592,547 30,940,142 1,652,405    
.

Uncollected taxes at June 30, 2019 321,272     313,142     8,130           

Current year's taxes collected $ 32,271,275 $ 30,627,000 $ 1,644,275    

Current levy collection percentage 99.01% 98.99% 99.51%

Watauga County, North Carolina
Analysis of Current Tax Levy

County-wide Levy
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

87

121719 BCC Meeting

140



Schedule 17-A

Secondary Market Disclosures:

Assessed Valuation:
Assessment Ratio 100%
Real Property $ 8,952,122,949
Personal Property 173,329,860
Public Service Companies 105,115,760

Total Assessed Valuation $ 9,230,568,569

Tax Rate per $100 0.353

Net Levy (Includes  penalties, discoveries, releases and abatements) $ 32,592,547

Fire Protection District Tax Rate per $100 Net Levy

Beech Mountain Rural $ 0.05 $ 1,588
Blowing Rock 0.05 494,989
Boone Rural 0.06 947,176
Cove Creek 0.05 253,675
Cove Creek Rural 0.05 324
Deep Gap 0.05 201,961
Foscoe 0.05 479,151
Foscoe Rural 0.05 74,574
Meat Camp 0.05 227,353
Northwest Watauga 0.05 118,372
Shawneehaw 0.05 101,296
Shawneehaw Rural 0.05 6,334
Stewart Simmons 0.085 232,844
Todd 0.07 64,821
Zionville 0.05 123,391

Total Net Fire Protection District Levies $ 3,327,849

Watauga County, North Carolina
Analysis of Current Tax Levy

County-wide Levy
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

In addition to the County-wide rate, the following table lists the levies by the County on behalf of fire
protection districts for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019:

88

121719 BCC Meeting

141



Schedule 17-B

2018 Percentage of
Assessed Total Assessed

Taxpayer Type of Business Valuation Valuation

Blue Ridge Electric Membership Coop Electric Utility $ 78,538,760 0.85 %
Wallace Loft LLC Rental Properties 46,504,000 0.50
BR Development Group LLC Real Estate Development 24,757,100 0.27
WM Land Boone Ltd Ptnrp Real Estate Development 13,689,900 0.15
MV of Boone LLC Rental Properties 23,480,200 0.25
Dugger Valley Inv Group LLC Real Estate Development 23,317,700 0.25
Meadowview at Boone LLC Rental Properties 17,906,700 0.19
Paul Brown Enterprises Commercial Rental Properties 13,021,960 0.14
Templeton Properties LP Commercial Rental Properties 15,709,890 0.17
Highland Crossing-B, LLC Real Estate Development 15,743,220 0.17

$ 272,669,430 2.96 %

Watauga County, North Carolina
Ten Largest Taxpayers

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

89

121719 BCC Meeting

142



Schedule 18

Beech Mtn.
Rural Blowing Rock Boone

Fire Service Rural Rural Cove Creek
Fire District District Fire District Fire District Fire District

Tax rate per $100 $ 0.05 $ 0.05 $ 0.05 $ 0.06 $ 0.05

Net levy $ 118,372 $ 1,588 $ 494,989 $ 947,176 $ 253,675

Uncollected taxes at June 30, 2019 2,351 8 5,669 8,503 3,564

Current year's taxes collected $ 116,021 $ 1,580 $ 489,320 $ 938,673 $ 250,111

Current levy collection percentage 98.01% 99.49% 98.85% 99.10% 98.60%

Cove Creek Foscoe
Rural Rural

Fire Service Deep Gap Foscoe Fire Service Meat Camp
District Fire District Fire District  District Fire District

Tax rate per $100 $ 0.05 $ 0.05 $ 0.05 $ 0.05 $ 0.05

Net levy $ 324 $ 201,961 $ 479,151 $ 74,574 $ 227,353

Uncollected taxes at June 30, 2019 -                    2,845 3,697 529 4,604

Current year's taxes collected $ 324 $ 199,116 $ 475,454 $ 74,045 $ 222,749

Current levy collection percentage 100.00% 98.59% 99.23% 99.29% 97.97%

Shawnheehaw
Rural Stewart

Shawnheehaw Fire Service Simmons Todd Zionville
Fire District District Fire District Fire District Fire District

Tax rate per $100 $ 0.05 $ 0.05 $ 0.085 $ 0.07 $ 0.05

Net levy $ 101,296 $ 6,334 $ 232,844 $ 64,821 $ 123,391

Uncollected taxes at June 30, 2019 528 126 1,570 591 2,579

Current year's taxes collected $ 100,768 $ 6,208 $ 231,274 $ 64,230 $ 120,812

Current levy collection percentage 99.48% 98.01% 99.33% 99.09% 97.91%

Watauga County, North Carolina
Analysis of Current Tax Levy

Fire Districts
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

Northwest 
Watauga

90

121719 BCC Meeting

143



COMPLIANCE SECTION

121719 BCC Meeting

144



�

#"�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�	����	��	��������������������	��	���	����	������ �����		�����������	���	���
�	�������	����	����
����������!�����	��	������������		����������	���

"����������	�������	���#��
�Government Auditing Standards 

�
/���������������	�����	�

���������
��������	������������	�������
�

�������� ��������� �� ����������$���� ���� �������� ������������������ ��������� �� ����(�����)���������
*
������ ��� ���� ��������� ����������� ��� �������� ������� �������� ��Government Auditing Standards��
������� ��� ���� 	�
��������� 0������ ��� ���� (����� )������� ���� �������� �����
���� ��� ���� �����
�����
����������������������������������������������
�����������������������������
�������������
��������
��������	������������	���������������������������������������� ��! "#�����������������������������
�������� �����
����� $����� ������������� ��
������ �������� 	������ ������ 	������%�� ������ ��������
�����
��������������������������������������������2���
����"���! "#&���,�����������������������������
������������������$����������������������������
�������*����	*./����������������������������������
	����%�� �������� �����
���&� � /���� ������� ����� ��� ������� ���� �������� ��� ������ ��������%� ������� ���
������� ������� ����� �������� ��� ��
������� ��� ������ 
������� ����� ���� ��������� ����������� ��� ������
��������&� �/��� �������� �����
���� ��� ������������	�����2��������(�/�����
�2������
���*���������
$���������������������������$����Government Auditing Standards&�

�	���	����	������ �����		�����������	���
4����������������
���������������������������������
�����$��������������������	������������
	������%�� ������� ������� ����� �������� ��������� >������� ������?� ��� �����
��� ���� ������ �����������
����� ���� ������������ �� ���� �����
������� ���� ���� �������� ��� �-�������� ���� ������� �� ���� ��������
�����
����� ���� ��� ���� ���� �������� ��� �-�������� �� ������ �� ���� ������������� �����������	������
������ 	������%�� ������� ������&� *����������� $�� ��� ��� �-������ �� ������ �� ���� ������������� ���
��������	������������	������%���������������&��

*� deficiency in internal control� �-����� $��� ���� ������ ��� ��������� ��� �� ������� ����� ��� ����$�

����
��� ��� �
��������� �� ���� ��
��� ������� ��� ������
��� ������ �������� ��������� ��� ������� ���
������� ��� ��������� 
�������
���� �� �� ��
���� �����&� � *� material weakness� ��� �� ����������� ��� ��
��
������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
��������

�������
��� ��� ���� �����%�� �������� �����
����$���� ��� ��� ���������� ��� ��������� ��� ���������� �� ��
��
���������&��*�significant deficiency������������������������
���������������������������������������
��������������������������
��������$��3����������
����������������
������������������������������$����
��������&�

,��� ��������������� ������� �������$��� ���� ���� ��
����������������������� �� �����������������������
���$��������������������������������������������������������������
��������
��������$��3���������
������������������������������������
��������$��3�������������������������������
����-���������$����
��� ���������&�0���� ������ ��
�������������������������$��������� ����������������������� �� �������
������� �����$�� ��������
��������$��3�����&� �@�$������
��������$��3������
��� �-���� ����� ����� ���
�������������&�

�

 

    
    

    
    

   A
n I

nd
ep

en
de

nt
 M

em
be

r o
f t

he
 B

DO
 A

llia
nc

e 

100 Coxe Avenue   |   Asheville, NC 28801   |   P 828.258.0363   |   F 828.252.0528   |   www.gk-cpa.com 
  

121719 BCC Meeting

145



�

#!�
�

�

������	���	����
�����������
*�������������������������������������������$���������������	����%���������������
�������������
���
� 
�������� 
�������
���� $�� ������
��� ������ ��� ���� ��
������� $���� ������� ���������� ��� ��$���
�����������������������������������
��������
�������$����$����������������������������
��������
������������������
����������������������
����
����&�@�$���������������������������
�������
$���� ������ ���������� $��� ��� �� ���������� ��� ���� ������� ��� ������������ $�� ��� ��� �-������ ����� ��
�����&� � /��� �������� ��� ���� ������ ���������� �� �������� ��� ���
������� ��� ������ 
������� ����� ����
��1��������������������������0����
���*�������)�������&�

"�����������
�����������
/����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
�������
���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������%���������
������� ��� �� ��
������&� /���� ������� ��� �� �������� ����� ��� �� ������ ������
��� �� ���������� $����
Government Auditing Standards����������������������%���������������������
������&�*�����������
�������

�������������������������������������������&�

�

�

�

*����������������	��������
2���
����"���! "#��

� �

121719 BCC Meeting

146



�

#��
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�	����	��	��������������������	�������	���#��
����������	����������������$�
��%���
�������"�������	���	���	����	������ ���������	����	�������	���#��
���!�&	������

'���	����	��(
���������	�����������������	����	�����
�
�

/���������������	�

���������
��������	������������	�������

�

��������	�������	�������$�
��%����������"�������
��� ����� �������� �������� 	������ ������ 	������%�� ��
������� $���� ���� ������ ��� ��
�������
��1����
���� � ���������� �� ����,'� Compliance Supplement� ��� ����Audit Manual for Governmental 
Auditors in North Carolina�� ��������������6�����0����
���	�

������� ����������������������������

���������������������������������	������������	������%��
�������������������
��������������������
����� ��! "#&���������	������������	������%��
�������������������
������������������������

����
����������%����������������������������
����������������������������1��������������&��

Management’s Responsibility 

'����
�����������������������
�������$��������������������������������������������
��������������
����������������$�������������������������������������
�&�

Auditor’s Responsibility 

,������������������������-������������������
���������������������������	������������	������%��

�������������������
��������������������������������������
���������1����
���������������������&����
������������������������
�������������������$���������������������������������������������(�����
)������ ��� *
�����+� ���� ��������� ����������� ��� �������� ������� �������� �� Government Auditing 
Standards����������������	�
���������0�������������(�����)�����+����������������1����
�������/�����!�
(&)&�Code of Federal Regulations�8����!  ��Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and 
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards�>(����
�0������?��������)�����)�����*�����4
���
�������
*��&�/�������������������(����
�0���������������)�����)�����*�����4
���
�������*�����1����������
$�� ���� ��� ������
� ���� ������ ��� ������ ���������� ��������� ������ $������� ���
������� $���� ����
�����������
���������1����
��������������������������������������������������
�������������������
�����
��������������
���������&�*����������������-�
�������������������������������������������	������
������ 	������%�� ��
������� $���� ������ ��1����
���� ��� ������
��� ����� ������ ����������� ��� $��
������������������������������
������&�

��� �������� ����� ���� ������ ��������� �� ���������� ������ ���� ���� ������ �� ��
������� ���� ����� 
�����
��������������
&�@�$���������������������������������� �����������
�����������������	������������
	������%����
������&��

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

4� ���� ���������������	������������	�������� ��
������� �� ����
�������� ����������$���� ���� ������ ���
��
������� ��1����
���� ��������� ��� ������ ����� ������ ����� �� ������� ���
�������� ������� �� ����� ��� ����

�������������������
������������������������� ��! "#&��

�

 

    
    

    
    

   A
n I

nd
ep

en
de

nt
 M

em
be

r o
f t

he
 B

DO
 A

llia
nc

e 

100 Coxe Avenue   |   Asheville, NC 28801   |   P 828.258.0363   |   F 828.252.0528   |   www.gk-cpa.com 
  

121719 BCC Meeting

147



�

#5�
�

Other Matters 

/��� �������� ��� ���� �������� ����������� ���������� �������� ��� ���
��������$����� ���� ��1������ ������
��������� �� ���������� $���� ���� (����
� 0������� ��� $����� ���� ���������� �� ���� ����
������
����������������������1���������������������
��! "#�  "����! "#�  !&�,����������������
�����
��������������
�������
��������$���������������������
������&�

�������� 	������ ������ 	������%�� �������� ��� ���� ���
������� ������� ���������� �� ���� ������ ���
���������� �� ���� ����
������ ��������� ��� ������� ��� 1��������� �����&� �������� 	������ ������
	������%����������$�������������������������������������������������������������������
�����������
������������$���-���������������������������&�

��������	��	���	����	������ ���������	����
'����
��� ��� �������� 	������ ������ 	�������� ��� ����������� ���� ������������ ��� 
��������
�������������������������������
�������$�������������������
���������1����
���������������������&�4�
������ ��� ������
��� ���� ������ ��� ��
�������� $�� ���������� �������� 	������ ������ 	������%��
������� ������� ����� ��
�������$���� ���� ������ ��� ��1����
���� ����� ������ ����� �� ������� ���
��������
������� �� �����
����� �������� ������
� ��� �����
��� ���� �������� ����������� ����� ���� ������������ �� ����
�����
������� ���� ��������������� �-��������������������
������� ���� �����
����� ��������������
�
��������������������������������������������
�������������������$��������(����
�0������������
��� ���� ���� �������� ��� �-�������� �� ������ �� ���� ������������� ��� ������� ������� ����� ��
������&�
*�����������$�� ��� ��� �-������ �� �������� ���� ������������� �����������	������������	������%��
���������������������
������&�

*�deficiency in internal control over compliance� �-�����$��� ���������������������������������������
��
�������������������$�
����
�������
�����������������
�������������������
�����������������
��������� ������������������������������������
�������$������ ����������
���������1����
��������
�������� ������
� �� �� ��
���� �����&� *� material weakness in internal control over compliance� ��� ��
����������� ��� ��
������� ��� ������������� �� ������� ������� ����� ��
�������� ����� ����� ������ ��� ��
���������� ������������ �����
�������� ���
�������$���� �� �������� ��
������� ��1����
��� ��� �� ��������
������
�$�������������������������������������������������� ��
���������&�*�significant deficiency in 
internal control over compliance������������������������
��������������������������������������������
��
�������$����������������
���������1����
����������������������
���������������������������
��������
$��3���������������������������
������������ �
����������������
������������������������������
$������������&�

,������������������ ���������������������
�������$������� ���� ��
������������������������� ����������
���������� ��� ����� ������� ��� $��� ��� �������� ��� �������� ���� ������������ �� ������� ������� �����
��
������� ����� 
����� ��� ���������� ������������ ��� 
�������� $��3������� ��� ����������� ����������
������������ ��� 
�������� $��3������ 
��� �-���� ����� $���� ��� ���������&� ��� ���������� ������������ ��
���������������������
�������������������������������
����������������������������1���������
������������
�! "#�  "�������$���������������������������������������������
��! "#�  !�����! "#�  ���
�����$����������������
��������$��3�����&��

��������	������������	������%��������������������������������������
��������������������������
���������������������������������
����������������������������1��������������&����������	������
������	������%����������$�������������������������������������������������������������������
�������
����������������$���-����������������������������&�

/��� �������� ��� ����� ������� �� ������� ������� ����� ��
������� ��� ������� ��� ��������� ���� ������ ��� ����
�������������������������������
���������������������������������������������������1����
�����������
(����
�0������&�*����������������������������������������������������������&��

�

�

*����������������	��������
2���
����"���! "#��

� �

121719 BCC Meeting

148



�

#9�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�	����	��	��������������������	�������	���#��
����������	����������������$�
��%��������
"�������	���	���	����	������ ���������	����	�������	���#��
���!�&	������'���	���

�	��(
���������	�����������������	����	�����
�
�

/���������������	�

���������
��������	������������	�������

�

��������	�������	�������$�
��%��������"�������
��� ����� �������� �������� 	������ ������ 	������%�� ��
������� $���� ���� ������ ��� ��
�������
��1����
���������������������Audit Manual for Governmental Auditors in North Carolina, ��������������
6�����0����
���	�

�����������������������������������
���������������������������������	������
������ 	������%�� 
����� ������ ������
�� ���� ���� ����� ����� ���� � �� ! "#&� �������� 	������ ������
	������%�� 
����� ������ ������
�� ���� ���������� �� ���� ��

���� ��� �������%�� �������� ������� ��� ����
����
����������������������������1��������������&��

Management’s Responsibility 

'����
�����������������������
�������$�����������������������������������������������������
�����
�����������������������$�����������������������������������
�&�

Auditor’s Responsibility 

,������������������������-������������������
���������������������������	������������	������%��

�����������������
��������������������������������������
���������1����
���������������������&����
������������������������
�������������������$���������������������������������������������(�����
)������ ��� *
�����+� ���� ��������� ����������� ��� �������� ������� �������� �� Government Auditing 
Standards����������������	�
���������0�������������(�����)�����+��������������������������/�����!�(&)&�
Code of Federal Regulations�8����!  ��Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards� >(����
� 0������?�� ��� ���������� �� ���� Audit Manual for 
Governmental Auditors in North Carolina�� ��� ���� )����� )����� *����� 4
���
������� *��&� /�����
����������(����
�0����������� ����)�����)�����*����� 4
���
�������*��� ��1����� �����$���������
������
� ���� ������ ��� ������ ���������� ��������� ������ $������� ���
������� $���� ���� ������ ���
��
���������1����
��������������������������������������������������
�������������������
�����������
������
���������&�*����������������-�
�������������������������������������������	������������
	������%����
�������$���� ��������1����
�������������
����������������������������$������������
��������������������
������&�

�����������������������������������������������������������������������
����������������
�����������
������
&� @�$������ ���� ������ ����� ��� �������� �� ������ �����
������ ��� �������� 	������ ������
	������%����
������&��

Opinion on Each Major State Program 

4� ���� ���������������	������������	�������� ��
������� �� ����
�������� ����������$���� ���� ������ ���
��
������� ��1����
���� ��������� ��� ������ ����� ������ ����� �� ������� ���
�������� ������� �� ����� ��� ����

�����������������
������������������������� ��! "#&�
�

 

    
    

    
    

   A
n I

nd
ep

en
de

nt
 M

em
be

r o
f t

he
 B

DO
 A

llia
nc

e 

100 Coxe Avenue   |   Asheville, NC 28801   |   P 828.258.0363   |   F 828.252.0528   |   www.gk-cpa.com 
  

121719 BCC Meeting

149



�

#;�
�

Other Matters 

/��� �������� ��� ���� �������� ����������� ���������� �������� ��� ���
��������$����� ���� ��1������ ������
���������������������$�������������������������������������(����
�0��������������������������Audit 
Manual for Governmental Auditors in North Carolina,� ��� $����� ���� ���������� �� ���� ����
������
����������������������1���������������������
��! "#�  "����! "#�  !&��,����������������
�����
������������
�������
��������$���������������������
������&�

�������� 	������ ������ 	������%�� �������� ��� ���� ���
������� ������� ���������� �� ���� ������ ���
���������� �� ��������
��������������������������&���������	������������	������%����������$���
����������������������������������������������������������������
�����������������������$���-������
���������������������&�

��������	��	���	����	������ ���������	����
'����
��� ��� �������� 	������ ������ 	�������� ��� ����������� ���� ������������ ��� 
��������
�������������������������������
�������$�������������������
���������1����
���������������������&�4�
������ ��� ������
��� ���� ������ ��� ��
�������� $�� ���������� �������� 	������ ������ 	������%��
������� ������� ����� ��
�������$���� ���� ������ ��� ��1����
���� ����� ������ ����� �� ������� ���
��������
������� �� ����� 
����� ������ ������
� ��� �����
��� ���� �������� ����������� ����� ���� ������������ �� ����
�����
���������������������������-��������������������
����������������
�����������������
����
�����������������������������������������
�������������������$��������(����
�0���������������
���� ���� �������� ��� �-�������� �� ������ �� ���� ������������� ��� ������� ������� ����� ��
������&�
*�����������$�� ��� ��� �-������ �� �������� ���� ������������� �����������	������������	������%��
���������������������
������&�

*�deficiency in internal control over compliance� �-�����$��� ���������������������������������������
��
�������������������$�
����
�������
�����������������
�������������������
�����������������
��������� ������������������������������������
�������$������ ����������
���������1����
��������
������������
�������
���������&�*�material weakness in internal control over compliance�����������������
��� ��
������� ��� ������������� �� ������� ������� ����� ��
�������� ����� ����� ������ ��� �� ����������
�����������������
�����������
�������$����������������
���������1����
��������������������
�$�������
��� ���������� ��� ��������� ��� ����������� �� �� ��
���� �����&�*� significant deficiency in internal control 
over compliance� ��� �� ����������� ��� �� ��
������� ��� ������������� �� ������� ������� ����� ��
�������
$����������������
���������1����
��������������������
���������������������������
��������$��3������
������� ������� ����� ��
�������� ���� �
������� ������ ��� 
����� �������� ��� ������ �������� $����
��������&�

,������������������ ���������������������
�������$������� ���� ��
������������������������� ����������
���������� ��� ����� ������� ��� $��� ��� �������� ��� �������� ���� ������������ �� ������� ������� �����
��
������� �����
��������
��������$��3��������� ���������������������&���� ���������������������� ��
���������������������
�������������������������������
����������������������������1���������
������������
�! "#�  "�������$���������������������������������������������
��! "#�  !�����! "#�  ���
�����$����������������
��������$��3�����&�

/��� �������� ��� ����� ������� �� ������� ������� ����� ��
������� ��� ������� ��� ��������� ���� ������ ��� ����
�������������������������������
���������������������������������������������������1����
�����������
(����
�0������&�*����������������������������������������������������������&��

�

�

*����������������	��������
2���
����"���! "#�

� �

121719 BCC Meeting

150



�

#=�
�

#�(�&'����&)(*+�)��(,�����-�)��
�

��,$.&-$������).�)'���).�/&$�(��)$.����(��
<���������������������� ��! "#�

�
�
� �0� ����������������������������
   

<�������)����
����
�
/������� ������� ������������ ���������$������� ���� �������� �����
���� ��������$������������� ��
����������$����0**8A��(
��������
�

� � 4����������������������������������A�
�

•�'��������$��3���>��?����������B� CCCCC���� ����D�����
�

•�)������������������>�?�����������
����������������������������

� 
��������$��3������ CCCCC���� ����D���������������
�

����
�������
�������������������
� �����
��������� CCCCC���� ����D�����

�
� <�������*$�����

�
4������������������
�������������������
�A�
�

•�'��������$��3���>��?����������B� ����D������������� ����������
�

•�)������������������>�?�����������
����������������������������

� 
��������$��3�����B� ����D������� ��������������������
�

/��������������%��������������������
�����������
�������������������
�A��(
�������&�
�
*����������������������������������
����1���������������������������������
$����!�	<.�!  &9";>�?B� ����D��������� ����������
�
�

/��� �����$���$���� �������� ���
����� �������� ������
� ������������ 	����� ���� ���� ������� �����
���������� ��! "#A�

�
� 8�����
���
�����	������� � 	<2*�E�
�

'��������	������� � #�&==:��#�&===��#�&==9�
<������	����F�/�����4G�7� � #�&;9:�
�
� �

� � /����������������������
����<�������/����*�������
��������������	��������H=9 �   &�
�
� � ��������	������������1��������������$����3��������&�

�
�
�

121719 BCC Meeting

151



�

#:�
�

#�(�&'����&)(*+�)��(,�����-�)��
�

��,$.&-$������).�)'���).�/&$�(��)$.����(��
<���������������������� ��! "#�

�
� � )�����*$�����

�
4������������������
�����������������
�A�

�

•�'��������$��3���>��?����������B� ���D��������������� ������������
�

•�)������������������>�?�����������
� ����������������������������

� 
��������$��3�����B� ����D�������� ����������������������
�

/��������������%��������������������
�����������
�����������������
�A��(
�������&�
�
*����������������������������������
����1���������������������������������$�����

� ����)�����)�����*�����4
���
�������*��� ���������������� ����D������
�

'�����)�����������
��>�����H9  �   ?�������������	����������������������������������� ��! "#����A�
�

)�����8�����
�
� )�����<������	����
� 8������)��������������	�������<��� � �
� �
� <�������8�����
�F�)�����'�����
� '��������	�������
� <������	����F�/�����4G�7��
� � �

�

121719 BCC Meeting

152



�

##�
�

#�(�&'����&)(*+�)��(,�����-�)��
�

��,$.&-$������).�)'���).�/&$�(��)$.����(��
<���������������������� ��! "#�

�
��0� ��		����������	����	��	���
�

)�	�����������
�

���0����������1�����	��	���	��/������	���������
�
�

� &��.������	�����,���
�	��,��	���� �����
8�������������������	�2���&����@���������@�
��)��������
8�����
���
�A��'�������*���������8�����
�>'�������+�/�����D4D?�	�������������1����
����
	<2*�E��#�&==:�
�
��	��	�2� 34567445��.���
���������	��������
� � )40�4<4	*�/�27<4	47�	IF�.78,./4�0�

� �,�'*/7.4*6��,�	,'864*�	7��
� � �
�������2� � 7���� �����%�� ������
��� ��� ������� ��������� �� ������ 	������� 
���� ��
����$���� ���� �	�
)������ )�������� <������ 	������ '����� )������ 444� *�� $����� ��1������ 	����� 2))� �
�������� $���
��������������� ������ ��������� ������ ����
���� ���
������ ���� ������� �� ����������$���� ����)�������
4���
����� )����
� >)4)?� 8�����&� *�������� ��� ���� )4)� (���%�� '������ ���� ������ ������� 
���� ���
�����������������
��������������������������&�<��������������
�������������������������
�������
����$��3�����������������������������������
��������������������������������
�������������
�������
��� ������� ����������� ��� $���� $��3� $��� ������
���� ��� ����� ������� ��������� 
������ ����� ��� �� �����
�������� ��� �������� ���������� ��� ����� ��
�� ������� ��� ��� ���������� ��� �������� ��� ����$��3� �����$���
������
��&�/���������������������������$����$���������
�����������������������������
��������������
��������������������&��/������1����
�����������
��������������
�&���

�
��	�����	2��/���	����������������������������1����������������������������������������
�������$����
������������������������� ������������� ������� ��� �������� ����������� ������ �������� ��
�� ����������� ����
2))�"9="����
�������
�����������������'��������������
�����������������������
�����������$��������&�
*�������$��3�����
���������������������������������
�������������������������������������������������
���
��	�<*)/������$�������������������������
���
�����������
&�*���������������������������; �
��
������������2))�$��3�������������5���������$�����������������������������������������������������
���������������������$���������� ���������%����������� ����������� ��������������
���������&�*������ ������
��������$�����������������
���������������
�����������'��������������
&�

�
/������	��������2����+����
������������������������������������3��������1����
���&�

�
��	��8�2��	��������
��������������	�����������
�������������'��������������
�$���������-�
������
H"� "#�   � ���� ���� ����� ����� ���� � �� ! "#�� ����
�������� ���$����� ���� ��������� ��� �������� ���2))�
$��3���&� <��
� ; � ��
�� ������� ������� ����������� ��:5 �
������� "99�
������ >5& 5J?� ������ ��� ���
�������������-�
�����������������������������������
������&�,��������������������������������������
����2))�"9="�$���������������������������������$�����$�����������K�����������������������	����%��
�������������&�@�$����������$��3�����
������������������������������������������$������������������
������������
��������������������������
��$��3�������������������������&���

�
$�����2� �/���	����� ������ ����
�������$���� �������������� ��������� ��1����
��+� ����$��3����������
������
��������� ��
�������������������&���������������������������������
�������������$��3����

������ ����� ������ ��
��
���� ����������� ���� ���� ������� ��� ���� ������
&�<��� ����$��3����$����������
�������
��������������
����������������������������
�����������������
��
�����������������&�
�
�
�

121719 BCC Meeting

153



�

"  �
�

#�(�&'����&)(*+�)��(,�����-�)��
�

��,$.&-$������).�)'���).�/&$�(��)$.����(��
<���������������������� ��! "#�

�
���	��������	�������������	��	�2��/����������������������>! ":�  !?&�/���	���������
�������������
��$����� �
���
������������������������ ��� ���������
����� �����
������� ��������������
�������
�����������������
�����������������������&���
�
����2� � /��� 	����� 
������������ ���� ��1����
���� �� ���� )4)� (���� '����� ��������� ������
�������������������������������������� ��1����������$��3���� ��� ������������� ������������� �� ������
��
�� ��������� ��� ��� ������ ��������� 
������ ���� ����3��� ������� ������ ��
�� ��� �����&� 4� ��������� ����
	����%������������������
�-��������������������	�<*)/��
�3�������������
��������������	�<*)/�
������������������������&�

�
�������	����	2� ��������� ����

����� ���
����
��� ���������$��3��������
��� ����82	������
�
�������� ���������� �����$��3�����������
�3������������������������������������������
���������
�����&� 	���$��3���� ������� ����
��� ������ ������ ����� ����� ��� ������ ����� $��3� �� ���� �	� <*)/�
�������������������������
�����������������������������$��3�����������
���������&�)������������������
�����$����������
�����$����������������$��3�����
���������&��

�
9��1����� �����	������ ��������� 	����		��� �������� �� ����	�2� �/���	������������$���� ����������
��� ��� ��3��� ������ ��� ������� ������ ������� ����������� ���� ���� ������&� 8������ ������ ��� ���� 	����%��
�����������������������������������" �&�

�
�
�
&��.������	�����,���
�	��,��	���� �����
8�������������������	�2���&����@���������@�
��)��������
8�����
���
�A��'�������*���������8�����
�>'�������+�/�����D4D?�	�������������1����
����
	<2*�E��#�&==:�

�
��	��	��2� 34567443�������������	��"������ ��1��

'*/7.4*6��7*L�7))�F�.78,./4�0�
'*/7.4*6��,�	,'864*�	7�
�

�������2��/���2����������'�������*���������>2'*?���1�����������������������$������'��������������
�����������������������	������&�/��������$�����������������1����
�������������������������
�����
�� ���� 	����%�� �����
� ��� ������� ������� ��� ����� ����� $��3����� ��� ������� ��� �������� ������� ��
�����������������
��������������
������&�
�
��	�����	2� ���������	����%�������������������$��������� ����������������������������������� ����
��
����
�����������������������������������������������$������������
�����������������
������&�
��������$����$�������������������� � �����$������������������������$��������������������>����������?&��
)����������������$��������������������������$����
�������������������������
����
��&��/��������
������$���������������������������$��������
������&�

�
/������	��������2����+����
������������������������������������3��������1����
���&�

�
$�����2� � /��� 	����� ����� ��� ����� �� ���
��� �����
� ��� ������� ������� ��� ������ ����� ���� ��������%��
����������������������������������������������$����
����������������������������������%���������������
�����$��&� �7����������������������
�����������
�����'�����������������������������������������
����������������
����
���&�8����������������������������������������������$����������������
�����
�� ���������M�� ������������ �����
������ ��� ���������
������� �-������ ������ ��� ��������������� ����&�
/���	�����������������������������������3�����������
�&�

�
���	��������	�������������	��	�2��/������������������������&�
�

121719 BCC Meeting

154



�

" "�
�

#�(�&'����&)(*+�)��(,�����-�)��
�

��,$.&-$������).�)'���).�/&$�(��)$.����(��
<���������������������� ��! "#�

�
����2��/���	�����������������������
������������������3����
���������������������������$�&�
�
�������	����	2�/���������
������������������������������������������������$������������������������
'��������������
������������������������3����������
��������������������������������������
���������
	����� ������ ��
��������&� �/��� ����������� ������ ������� �-������ �� ���
��� �����$���� ������� ����������
�������������������������������&��2���
�������������������
��������������������$���������������������
������� �� ���� ��������%�� ��������� ��� �� ���� ����������� �����%�� �������� �������� ���� ������� ������� ���
��
����������������������������������������������������������$������$���������������������������$����
������������������
����������������
�
����$��������
����������������%�������������&� �<����$���������
�������������������������������������$������������������������>$�������������?�����
������������������
�����
���&�

�
9��1����� �����	��������������� 	����		����������� ������	�2� �/����������������$���� ���������&�
8�������������������	����%�������������������������������������" �&�

�
�

�
�
&��.������	�����,���
�	��,��	���� �����
8�������������������	�2���&����@���������@�
��)��������
8�����
���
�A��<������	����F�/�����4G�7��
	<2*�E��#�&;9:�
�
��	��	��2� 3456744:��������������	�����	��

'*/7.4*6��7*L�7))�F�76404�464/I��*66,�*�67�	,)/�N�*	/4G4/7)��
�
�

�������2��	�����2))�����$��3�������������������������������������������������
����������>2))�<��
�
9"! ?����������
��������� �������
���������<������	����*����������������&�	�
������� �������
�
��1������ �����������$��3��� ��������
����������
����� ��������%����������������������� ��� �����������
������ ���������&� �,��� ���� ����$��3��� ������ ���� ���� ������������ ���
�� ���� ����������� ������� �����$� ���
����������������������������������$���������������������������%����������&� �/�����������������������
�
������������$��3�������������������������&�
�
��	�����	2��,����������������������������������������$��������������������������)����������%����������
��2))����
�9"! &����$������������������������������$�$���������
����������)���������������������
$�������������&�
�
/������	��������2����+�����������������$��������������������&��4����������
��������������
������
��������$����������%����������������1������&��

�
$�����2��/����$�������������������������������������%�����������������������������������2))�<��
�
9"! &�4���������
����������������������������$����������������������������������������������&��)������
����������� �����$� ���������� �� ���������%�� ������������ �����
������ ������ ����� �� ����������� �����&�
/�����������������������������$����-�����������������1��������������
�����
��&���

�
���	��������	�������������	��	�2��/������������������������&�
�
����2� �/�������������������������������2))�<��
�9"! ��$�����$����� �������� ����� ���������������
�����$����������������������������������
�����&��4����������������$���������������������3����������
��������
���
�������$�����������������$���������������������������������&�

�
�

121719 BCC Meeting

155



�

" !�
�

�
#�(�&'����&)(*+�)��(,�����-�)��

�
��,$.&-$������).�)'���).�/&$�(��)$.����(��

<���������������������� ��! "#�
�
�
�������	����	2� � /��� 	����� ������� ����� ��������� ��� ����������� �� ������ ��� ������ ����� ����
����������� ��� �������������� �����$��� ��� ������ ���� �� ������������ �����$� ����
���&� � 4� ����������
����3��� ���������������$������-���� ��������$�������
����������
������������������
����������
�����
�������������������������&�

�
9��1����� �����	��������������� 	����		����������� ������	�2� �/����������������$���� ���������&�
8�������������������	����%�������������������������������������" 5&�
�
�

�90��������1�����	��	���	��/������	���������
� � �
� � �

&��.������	�����,���
�	��,��	���� �����
8�������������������	�2���&����@���������@�
��)��������
8�����
���
�A��'�������*���������8�����
�>'�������+�/�����D4D?�	�������������1����
����
	<2*�E��#�&==:�
�
�
��	��	�2� 34567445�.���
���������	��������
� � '*/7.4*6��7*L�7))�F�.78,./4�0�
� � �,�'*/7.4*6��,�	,'864*�	7��

�
/��������������������������)�������1����
�������)������$����&�

�
�
��	��	��2� 34567443�������������	��"������ ��1��

'*/7.4*6��7*L�7))�F�76404�464/I�
'*/7.4*6��,�	,'864*�	7�
�
/��������������������������)�������1����
�������)������$����&�

�
�
&��.������	�����,���
�	��,��	���� �����
8�������������������	�2���&����@���������@�
��)��������
8�����
���
�A��<������	����F�/�����4G�7��
	<2*�E��#�&;9:�
�
��	��	��2� 3456744:��������������	�����	��

'*/7.4*6��7*L�7))�F�76404�464/I��*66,�*�67�	,)/�N�*	/4G4/7)��
�
�
/��������������������������)�������1����
�������)������$����&�

121719 BCC Meeting

156



���
   Watauga County 

  Department of Social Services 
�����	��
����
�������
	����������������������
�������������������������������
���������������
����������
!�����"�����#�

$%&����	���'���
���((
�)���*��+�)
����
��(
��(��),�����	�(��&-./:�

)���;�����-&-<&.=<-$//�
)���$<-//<:%=<&>.&�
������$<-//<:%=<-&.&��

?�@�-&-<&.=<:.%-

)�"�,A#����
���������

�
�
��		����������	����	��	��2�
� �

��	��	��345674452�2���)�����*�������������
�
)��������	���������	2��/�
�@�������2�����������)������)��������
�
�������� �������	� "�	2�/���	�����2))�2�����
��� �������� ��� �
������ ����������� ���
������������
���������������������������������������������
�������������������������3������
�����������������������������
��������������������&���

�
� ��	��	��345674432�	������������������������'�������������$��
� �

�������� �������	�"�	2�/���	�����2))�2�����
���$���������������������������$������
���������������������������
��
�
��
�������'����������������������������$�������
������
�����&� �/���2))�2��������$���� �������� ���� ������$���� ���������������������������������������
����������������
�������������������
���&���
�
��	��	��3456744:2�	��������������������������������������������������
�9"! &��
�
�������� �������	�"�	2��/���	�����2))�2�����
���$�������������
�9"! ���������������
��������������������������
����������������&���

�
��
�

103

121719 BCC Meeting

157



�

" 5�
�

�

�
�

��*�/�*�(�0�*���	�,�(���/�I�
<4�*�	7�,<<4	7�

���������������������������������:"5������L���)�&��)�����!";������������	��!:; =�����8����>:!:?�!;9�:  =�
�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������<�-�����>:!:?�!;9�:  ;�

�
�
�

�&����*���,$.&-$����"�����*$����&.�(���).�)'��
<���������������������� ��! "#�

�
�
��	��	��345;7445�
�
�����2��/�����������������������������&��
�
��	��	��345;7443�
�
�����2��/������������������������������������������������! "#�  "&�
�
��	��	��345;744:�
�
�����2��/�����������������������������&��
�
��	��	��345;744<�
�
�����2��/�����������������������������&��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�

121719 BCC Meeting

158



#�(�&'����&)(*+�)��(,�����-�)�
��,$.&-$����$="$).�(&�$�����$.$��-��).��(�($��#��.�

�����
��*���$	����>�	��:4+�3456

<������

<������ 8����/������ >2������N�8����

0�����O8����/������ 	<2* 0�����M� /������? )���� 8������������� 6����

0�����O8�����
O	�������/���� ��
��� ��
��� 7-��������� 7-��������� ���)����������� 7-���������

��������1���2
(&)&�2�����
������*����������

8�������������������&	&�2�����
������@���������@�
��)�������A

2����������)������)�������A

)�*8�	������

*�
���������A

)�����
��������������*���������8�����
 " &9;" "#9�	5 ;)!9"5 !! ��5"H����������� � ���������������� � ������������������� � !! ��5"H�������� �

/�����)�*8�	������ !! ��5"������������� � ���������������� � ������������������� � !! ��5"���������� �

/�����(&)&�2�����
������*���������� !! ��5"������������� � ���������������� � ������������������� � !! ��5"���������� �

(&)&�2�����
������@�
�����)�������

8�������������������&	&�2�����
������8������)�����A

7
�������'����
���8�����
����0��� #=& 5! *'�! ":�78�    !�) " �:�9!5��������������� � ���������������� � ������������������� � �:�9!5������������ �

/�����(&)&�2�����
������@�
�����)������� �:�9!5��������������� � ���������������� � ������������������� � �:�9!5������������ �

(&)&�2�����
�������������

������������G����8����������8�����
 ";&; = ""!"� !�9 !�:9#����������������� � ���������������� � ������������������� � !�:9#�������������� �

)�����	��
����*����*���������8�����
 ";&; ; ! "#�*8��D� �#9 "� !"����������������� � ���������������� � ������������������� � "� !"�������������� �

/�����(&)&�2�����
������������� ��:: ����������������� � ���������������� � ������������������� � !�:9#�������������� �

(&)&�2�����
������@������N�@�
��)�������
�*�
������������*���

8��������������@����	������	���������0����
���A

��*����	������A

@�
�����	�

�����	��������3�0����>@		�0?�

)�������8�����
����������*������/�����444�����*������)������� #�& 55 "=O":�**�	/�)) "5�#! ��������������� � "�#� "9�������� � ������������������� � "=�" 5������������ �

)�������8�����
����������*������/�����444�	���	���������'���� #�& 59 "=O":�**�	/�	' 5:�;# ��������������� � !�:;5������������ � ������������������� � 9�=!:�������������� �

)�������8�����
����������*������/�����444�	���@�
��2���������'���� #�& 59 "=O":�**�	/�@2 :"�;�"��������������� � 5�: !������������ � ������������������� � #�; 5�������������� �

���������)��������4�������8�����
�>�)48? #�& 9� "=O":�**�	�)48 !;�! ���������������� � ���������������� � ������������������� � ������������������ �

/�����*����	������ "="�555������������� � "5;�;:"�������� � ������������������� � �!�5�;������������ �

8���������������&	&�2�����
������4������A

)������@������4�������4���
�����8�����
 #�&==# ";  ";�;�; =�;"������������������ � ���������������� � ������������������� � ������������������ �

�*�
��������������	����������<�
�����A

8�������������������&	&�2�����
������@���������@�
��)�������A

2����������)������)�������A

<�
����8���������� #�&99; 0"# "�	<8)) ":�=!=��������������� � ���������������� � ������������������� � ������������������ �

/�
�������*�������������������<�
������	������A

���3��������
���������� #�&99: �0"# "�	/*�< �=�; =��������������� � ���������������� � ������������������� � 5#�5�=������������ �

���3<������������� #�&99: �0"# "�	/*�< ""9�!!5������������� � ���������������� � ������������������� � ":5�=" ���������� �

/�����/�
�������*�������������������<�
������	������ "9!�:�"������������� � ���������������� � ������������������� � !�5�"5=���������� �

	�����)�������7�����
��� #�&9;� "# 5�	5  9 !�!�95:������������� � ���������������� � ������������������� � ""#�=#;���������� �

6�$�4��
��@�
��7�����*�������������3�0���A

*�
��������� #�&9;: 0"#�"�	647* ";=��59������������� � ���������������� � ������������������� � ������������������ �

	������4���������8��
��� #�&9;: 0"#�"�	647* !"5�:9�������������� � ���������������� � ������������������� � ������������������ �

8��
�����8���� #�&;59 0"# "�		�)) "5�=":��������������� � ���������������� � ������������������� � 5�# ;�������������� �

)������)������������3�0��� #�&;;= 0"# "�	),). "=��5�=������������� � ���������������� � ������������������� � 99�:#9������������ �

/�����6�$�4��
��@�
��7�����*�������������3�0���A 9= ��9�������������� � ���������������� � ������������������� � ; �: "������������ �

�/�����2����������)������)������� #=5�59#������������� � ���������������� � ������������������� � 5"5�=55���������� �

'��������	������A

'�������*���������8�����
A

*�
��������� #�&==: D4D�'*8"# "� "#�"9"���������� � "�5;=������������ � ������������������� � �# �5 5���������� �

/�����'��������	������� "� "#�"9"���������� � "�5;=������������ � ������������������� � �# �5 5���������� �

2�����������)������)�������A

*�
���������A

)�����	������M��4�������8�����
A� #�&=;= 	@48"# 9#�" =��������������� � ���������������� � ������������������� � ������������������ �

�&	&�@������	�����

<������	�������*�������	�������>������?

/�����4G�7�<������	��� #�&;9: "# "�	<,)/ ";;�:9;������������� � " �5" ���������� � ������������������� � "5"� #"���������� �

<������	������2�������������8��
��� #�&;9: "# "�	<,)/ �9!���#������������� � #�� #9���������� � ������������������� � :"�" 5������������ �

*������O<������	����)�������8������� #�&;9: "# "�	<,)/ � ��""��������������� � ���������������� � ������������������� � "��!5������������� �

/�����<������	�������*�������	�������>������? 95#�9 ;������������� � " ��9 9�������� � ������������������� � !�9�5�:���������� �

)������K���	�����	����>������?

	�����	����2������
���<���	������

2����������)������)�������

	�����	����2������
���<�����*�
��������� #�&9#; 0"# "�			2< :!�"5���������������� � ���������������� � ������������������� � ������������������ �

/�����	�����	����2������
���<���	������ :!�"5���������������� � ���������������� � ������������������� � ������������������ �

/�����)������K���	�����	����>������? :!�"5���������������� � ���������������� � ������������������� � ������������������ �

" 5

121719 BCC Meeting

159



#�(�&'����&)(*+�)��(,�����-�)�
��,$.&-$����$="$).�(&�$�����$.$��-��).��(�($��#��.�

�����
��*���$	����>�	��:4+�3456

<������ 8����/������ >2������N�8����

0�����O8����/������ 	<2* 0�����M� /������? )���� 8������������� 6����

0�����O8�����
O	�������/���� ��
��� ��
��� 7-��������� 7-��������� ���)����������� 7-���������

@������	����<������*�
���������

8�������������������&	&�2�����
������@���������@�
��)�������A

'�������*���������8�����


	������<������	����4�����������2�������������8��
�� #�&;=5 "=#"�	"5! !��"" ��������������� � !� =!������������ � ������������������� � ������������������ �

/�����2����������'�������*�������� !��"" ��������������� � !� =!������������ � ������������������� � ������������������ �

/�����(&)&�2�����
������@������N�@�
��)������� !�::;�9������������ � !9��=!9�������� � ������������������� � "� =�� !!��������

/�����<�������*$���� ��"5#�!=:���������� � !9��=!9�������� � ������������������� � "���5�=5;��������

������1���2
�&	&�2�����
������@���������@�
��)�������A

8��������������.�����2�	���������0����
���A

)��������������������������� "=O":�**�	/�08 ��������������������� � "5�!9=���������� � ������������������� � ������������������ �

�2����������)������)�������

)�����<������	������������8�����
 )�����<������	����"# ��������������������� � !=#��;;�������� � ������������������� � "#5�:"!���������� �

/������&	&�2�����
������@���������@�
��)������� ��������������������� � !#��;!��������� � ������������������� � "#5�:"!���������� �

�&	&�2�����
������8������)�����A

2����������*�
�����������	�

�����8�����
�

��������	��
��8��������	������8�����
� !#9�DDDD ��������������������� � ""5�!:9�������� � ""5�!:9���������� � ���:�:������������ �

/����44��������! "= /!�! "=�',*"=#" ��������������������� � ;"�:!!���������� � ������������������� � ������������������ �

/������&	&�2�����
������8������)����� ��������������������� � "=;�" =�������� � ""5�!:9���������� � ���:�:������������ �

�&	&�2�����
������8������4��������A

�	�8������)��������������	�������6�������8������� #5�������� ��������������������� � 59=�:!:�������� � 59=�:!:���������� � ������������������ �

8������)��������������<������)������ <I�! ";�).) ��������������������� � #�9��������������� � #�9����������������� � ������������������ �

/������&	&�2�����
������8������4�������� ��������������������� � 59:�=;��������� � 59:�=;����������� � ������������������ �

�&	&�2�����
������/�����������A

7
����
���/������������,��������*�������� 2,/�";	6 ��������������������� � "��9  ���������� � ������������������� � ������������������ �

7����������2��������/������������*�������� 2,/�";	6 ��������������������� � ;"�"!9���������� � ������������������� � ������������������ �

.�����0������8������8�����
 2,/�";	6 ��������������������� � :!�;""���������� � ������������������� � ������������������ �

/������&	&�2�����
������/����������� ��������������������� � "9=�!�;�������� � ������������������� � ������������������ �

�&	&�2�����
������*��������������	���
���)�������A

)����	����������*�������� 05 "  !#; "9)�	 ��������������������� � ��;  ������������ � ������������������� � #��!=:������������ �

)����	����������/��������	����)����� 05 "  !#; "9)�	 ��������������������� � !9�"9=���������� � ������������������� � !9�"9=������������ �

/������&	&�2�����
������*���������� ��������������������� � !:�=9=���������� � ������������������� � "":�5�9���������� �

�&	&�2�����
�����������������	��������.��������A

0���$���	������ 0���$���	������ ��������������������� � ";� ;;���������� � ������������������� � ������������������ �

���������������	�

���� 2�	.�: ��������������������� � � �   ���������� � ������������������� � ������������������ �

2����������7����
�����*������������	����
���)������A

	�

�����������.�����������.����������)������ 	�������E;:=9 ��������������������� � " �   ���������� � ������������������� � !�= !�������������� �

/������&	&�2�����
�����������������	��������.�������� ��������������������� � 9;� ;;���������� � ������������������� � !�= !�������������� �

�&	&�2����������G�����M��*������

G�����M��)�������8�����
 "5���"!""	5 ��������������������� � !�!";������������ � ������������������� � "":�99 ���������� �

/������&	&�2����������G�����M��*������ ��������������������� � !�!";������������ � ������������������� � "":�99 ���������� �

�&	&�,���������)���������������'����
��

0���<����0��� 0����E!9=! ��������������������� � 9 �   ���������� � ������������������� � ������������������ �

/������&	&�,���������)���������������'����
�� ��������������������� � 9 �   ���������� � ������������������� � ������������������ �

/�����)�����*$���� ��������������������� � "�!!!�=;:������ 9=�� 5:���������� � 5;:���=���������� �

/�����<����������)�����*$���� ��"5#�!=:H�������� � "�5=;�5#�H���� 9=�� 5:H�������� � "�: �� :�H������

" 6

121719 BCC Meeting

160



#�(�&'����&)(*+�)��(,�����-�)�
��,$.&-$����$="$).�(&�$�����$.$��-��).��(�($��#��.�

�����
��*���$	����>�	��:4+�3456

)���������
����
���������$8��	������������������	���������		�����1���2

"&�����������8���������A

!&��)�

�������)���������*������8�������

�&�	����������8�����
�A

/��������$�������������������������	�2�����
������@���������@�
��)����������������������������������������������������1����
�����������A

)������K���	�����	���

<������	�������*������

5&��������8��
����4�������������)������

8�����
�/���� 	<2*�

��& <������ )����

)�������)�����
��������������8�����
�������
��4�������	������ ������ �H���������������������������������������������� �H�������������5 #�9#9�

/�
�������*�������������������<�
����� �	���
 ��������������������������������������:�;9 � ������������������������������

*�������*�������� �	���� �����������������������������������": ��� � ������������������55�"#;�

<������	������/�����4G�7 �	���
 ������������������������������������������������� ������������������#�� #9�

'�������*���������8�����
 �	���
 ������������������������������!!�;�#�="9� �����������""�:5#�5:5�

	������M��@������4�������8�����
 �	���� ��������������������������������"�!!!�5;!� ������������������������������

	�������������)��������*������ �� ������������������������������������������������� ����������������"=9�;�;�

)�����O�	�����)�������*���������������
 �� ������������������������������������������������� ����������������"=5��!9�

�H���������������������������!5� :"�"9=� �H��������"!�=5;���"�

/�� ����
������������� �� �-��������� �� ������� �� )���� �$���� >)7<)*? ������� ��� ������� �� )���� �$��� �������� �� ������� 	���� ���� ��� ������
� �� ��� ������� �����
�� ��

��� )���� �� ����� 	������ ��� ��� ���� ���� ��� � � ! "#& /�� ����
���� � ���� )7<)* �� �������� � ��������� $��� ��� ��1����
��� �� /���� ! () 	��� �� <������ .��������� 8��� !  �

Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards �� ��� )���� )���� *���� 4
���
������ *��& ������� ��� )������� ������� ��� � ��������

�����������������������������������	�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������$�������������	����&

7-��������� �������� � ��� )7<)* ��� �������� � ��� 
�������������� ����� �� ��������& )��� �-��������� ��� ������K�� �����$�� ��� ���� ���������������� � (����
0������� $�����

������ ����� �� �-��������� ��� �� ����$������ ��� ��
������ �� ���
�����
��& /��������� ��
� �
���� �������� � ���� �������� 
�� ������ ���
 �
���� �������� �� ���� � ��� ���������� ��

��� ����� ������� �����
���& ������ ���
��� ��� ���� �������� �� ��������� �� ��� �� ������� � ��� 	����M� ����� ������� �����
���& @�$����� ��� �� ��� 	����M� ������
�� �

�����
������������������������������������<��������$������������	�����������������������������������&

/�� �
���� ������ ����$ $��� ���� �������� �� ������������������ �� ��� )���� ���
 ������� �� )���� 
����& 	���� ������� ��� �������

$��� ������ �������� ���
����� ����������������
������ ���� ����� ������ ���
��� �� �� ������ �� ��� )����& /���� �
���� �������� ����

��������� ��� �� 	���� ��������� ���� �� �� ������ � ��� ����� ������� �����
��� ������� ���� ��� �� ������� �� �-��������� �� ���

	����&

" 7

121719 BCC Meeting

161



Blank Page 
 
 

121719 BCC Meeting

162



AGENDA ITEM 6: 

APPALACHIAN STATE REQUEST TO BUILD STRUCTURE ON LEASED LANDFILL 
PROPERTY 

MANAGER’S COMMENTS:   
 
In August, the Board approved a lease renewal with Appalachian State University for the 
greenhouse located at the Watauga County Landfill.  The University is now requesting 
permission to create an outdoor classroom with the construction of a deck around the existing 
building.  Per the lease, Board approval is required for the University to make alterations to the 
property. 
 
Board action is required to approve the University’s request.   
 
  

121719 BCC Meeting

163



121719 BCC Meeting

164

County Manager Geouque 
814 West King St. 
Suite 205 
Boone, NC 28607 

December 6, 2019 

Dear Mr. Geouque, 

--- ------ --

Department of Sust..'linable Technology 
and the Built Environment 

K .. 'ltherine Harper Hall 
397 Rivers Street 

ASU Box 3110 
Boone, NC 28608 

(828) 262-3110 
Fex' (828) 265-8696 

tec.appstate.cdu 

My name is Jeremy Ferrell and I am one of the principal investigators with the Nexus project at 
Appalachian housed in the Department of Sustainable Technology and the Built Environment. We 
currently hold a 3 year lease on approximately 1 acre at the Watauga landfill as a site for sustainable 
energy research. The site has been a tremendous resource for our group and has brought prominence 
to our sustainability work at Appalachian bringing in over $400k of extemal grant funding through 
20 plus projects while training more than one hundred students. 

We are interested in building an "outdoor classroom", a 12' x 24' wooden deck, to be located at the 
site adjacent to the greenhouse. This structure would provide a meeting space and work space for 
faculty and students that use the facility. Ioncon Engineering has designed the structure and has 
provided a stamped plan set. We have also identified a licensed contractor to apply for a 
building permit. 

Per the lease, this construction project would constitute an "Alteration" and requires the County's 
prior written consent. To that end, I would like to ask that you review this request and consider its 
approval. Please let me know if you have any questions. 

Attached documents include the following: 1) Current lease, 2) Stamped Engineering plan set, and 3) 
Building permit application. 

Thank you for your consideration, 

f1WM\; (, 1~·~ 
Cleremy C. Ferrell, Ph.D 
Assistant Professor & 
Program Director of Sustainable Technology 
Dept. of Sustainable Technology & the Built Environment 
Appalachian State University 
Phone: 828-262-8818 
Email: ferrelljc@appstate.edu 

A IIIEMBER INSTITUTIO::-J OF THE UNI\'ERS!TY OF :\TORTI-I CAROLINA AI\ EQCAL OPPORTUI\ITY EMPLOYER 



121719 BCC Meeting

165

COMMERCIAL LEASE AGREEMENT 

THIS LEASE, made this 1st day ofMay2019, by and between Watauga County, a body politic of 
the State of North Carolina (hereinafter referred to as "Landlord" and/or "County") whose 
principle place of business is 814 West King Street, Suite 205, Boone, North Carolina 28607, and 
Appalachian State University, a constituent institution of The University of North Carolina 
(hereinafter referred to as "Tenant" and/or "Appalachian"), whose principle place of business is 
438 Academy Street, Boone, North Carolina 28608. 

WHEREAS, Appalachian desires to lease space adjacent to the County's Methane Flare 
Stations to establish a greenhouse and research facility for use by its faculty members and students 
for training, workshops, public tours, research and other educational activities; and 

WHEREAS, the County desires to lease property to Appalachian for the above stated 
purpose, subject to the following terms and conditions. 

WITNESSETH: 

I. LEASED PREMISES 

The County, for and in consideration of the rents, covenants, agreements, and stipulations 
hereinafter mentioned, provided for and covenanted to be paid, kept and performed by 
Appalachian, leases and rents unto Appalachian, and Appalachian hereby leases and takes upon 
the terms and conditions which hereinafter appear, the following described property (hereinafter 
called the "Premises") further described and depicted in the attached Exhibit A, to wit: 

Beginning at a point 2 feet from Landfill Rd. directly south of the power pole providing 
service to the Watauga County Animal Control Office, proceeding east along Landfill Rd. 
for a total of360 feet and heading due south from those two points to the Watauga County 
property line. 

2. TERM. 

Appalachian shall have and hold the Premises for a term of three (3) years beginning on the I" 
day of May 2019, and ending on the 30th day of April2022, at midnight, unless sooner terminated 
as hereinafter provided. 

3. RENTAL 

Appalachian agrees to pay the County, without deduction or set off, an annual rental of One Dollar 
($1.00) per year, payable on the date of this Lease and each annual anniversary of that date during 
the term hereof. Upon execution of this Lease, Appalachian shall pay to the County the first year's 



121719 BCC Meeting

166

rent due hereunder. Rental for any period during the term hereof which is less than one year shall 
be the pro-rated portion of the annual rental due. 

4. UTILITIES 

(a) Appalachian shall pay the following utilities: Electric and any other utility 
associated with Appalachian • s use of the property. 

(b) The County shall pay the following utilities: None 

Responsibility to pay for a utility service shall include all metering, hook -up fees or other 
miscellaneous charges associated with the installation and maintenance of such utility in said 
party's name. 

5. COMMON AREA RULES AND REGULATIONS 

Appalachian shall be subject to Rules and Regulations for the common areas of the County 
property as may be made from time to time by the County. 

6. USE OF PREMISES 

The Premises shall be used to: operate a prototype greenhouse and to conduct research on biogas 
and biofuel production, solar electricity and solar hot water production, biochar production, 
greenhouse heating methods, aquaculture and associated technologies. The Premises shall not be 
used for any illegal purposes, nor in any manner to create any nuisance or trespass, nor in any 
manner to vitiate the insurance or increase the rate of insurance on the Premises. In the event 
Appalachian's use of the Premises results in an increase in the rate of insurance on the Premises, 
Appalachian shall pay to the County, upon demand and as additional rental, the amount of any 
such increase. 

7. LIABILITY; INSURANCE 

Appalachian will be responsible for the negligent conduct of its officers and employees arising out 
of the performance of this Agreement to the extent permitted by the laws of North Carolina, 
including the North Carolina Tort Claims Act, the Defense of State Employees Act, and the excess 
liability insurance policy administered through the North Carolina Department of Insurance, 
subject to the availability of appropriations and in proportion to and to the extent that such liability 
for damages is caused by or results from the acts of Appalachian or its employees. Appalachian 
shall, during the term of this Lease and any extension or renewal thereof, and at Appalachian's 
expense, maintain in full force and effect self-insurance with limits of at least One Million Dollars 
($1,000,000.00) per person under the North Carolina Tort Claims Act (N.C.G.S. § 143-291 et seq.) 
and excess liability insurance for its employees. 

---·----------------------



121719 BCC Meeting

167

8. REPAIRS BY THE COUNTY 

The premises are being rented "as is" and the County shall have no obligation to repair any 
improvements thereon during the term of this lease. 

9. REPAIRS BY APPALACHIAN 

Appalachian accepts the Premises in their present condition and as suited for the uses intended by 
Appalachian. Appalachian shall, throughout the initial term of this Lease, and any extension or 
renewal thereof, at its expense, maintain in good order and repair the Premises. 

10. ALTERATIONS 

Appalachian shall not make any alterations, additions, or improvements to the Premises without 
the County's prior written consent. Appalachian shall promptly remove any alterations, additions, 
or improvements constructed in violation of this Paragraph upon the County's written request. All 
approved alterations, additions, and improvements will be accomplished in a good and 
workmanlike manner; in conformity with all applicable laws and regulations, free of any liens or 
encumbrances. The County may require Appalachian to remove any alterations, additions or 
improvements (whether or not made with the County's consent) at the termination of the Lease and 
to restore the Premises to its prior condition, all at Appalachian's expense. All alterations, 
additions and improvements which the County has not required Appalachian to remove shall 
become the County's property and shall be surrendered to the County upon the termination of this 
Lease, except that Appalachian may remove any of Appalachian's machinery, trade fixtures or 
equipment which can be removed without material damage to the Premises. Appalachian shall 
repair, at Appalachian's expense, any damage to the Premises caused by the removal of any such 
machinery, trade fixtures or equipment. 

11. REMOVAL OF FIXTURES 

Appalachian may (if not in default hereunder) prior to the expiration of this Lease, or any extension 
or renewal thereof, remove all fixtures and equipment which it has placed in the Premises, provided 
Appalachian repairs all damage to the Premises caused by such removal. 

12. GOVERNMENTAL ORDERS 

Appalachian agrees, at its own expense, to comply promptly with all requirements of any legally 
constituted public authority made necessary by reason of Appalachian's occupancy of the 
Premises. The County agrees to comply promptly with any such requirements if not made 
necessary by reason of Appalachian's occupancy. It is mutually agreed, however, between the 
County and Appalachian, that if in order to comply with such requirements, the cost to the County 
or Appalachian, as the case may be, shall exceed a sum which the respective party desires to pay, 
then the County or Appalachian, whichever is obligated to comply with such requirements, may 
terminate this Lease by giving written notice of termination to the other party by registered mail, 
which termination shall become effective ninety (90) days after receipt of such notice and which 



121719 BCC Meeting

168

notice shall eliminate the necessity of compliance with such requirements by giving such notice. 

13. ASSIGNMENT AND SUBLETTING 

Appalachian shall not, without the prior written consent of the County, which shall not be 
unreasonably withheld, assign this Lease or any interest hereunder, or sublet the Premises or any 
part thereof, or permit the use of the Premises by any party other than Appalachian. Consent to 
any assignment or sublease shall not impair this provision and all later assignments or subleases 
shall be made likewise only on the prior written consent of the County. The Assignee of 
Appalachian, at option of the County, shall become directly liable to the County for all obligations 
of Appalachian hereunder, but no sublease or assignment by Appalachian shall relieve 
Appalachian of any liability hereunder. 

14. EVENTS OF DEFAULT 

The happening of any one or more of the following events (hereinafter any one of which may be 
referred to as an "Event of Default") during the term of this Lease, or any renewal or extension 
thereof, shall constitute a breach of this Lease on the part of Appalachian: (a) Appalachian fails to 
pay the rental as provided for herein; (b) Appalachian abandons or vacates the Premises; and/or 
(c) Appalachian fails to comply with or abide by and perform any other obligation imposed upon 
Appalachian under this Lease. 

15. REMEDIES UPON DEFAULT 

Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default, the County may pursue any one or more of the 
following remedies separately or concurrently, without prejudice to any other remedy herein 
provided or provided by law; (a) if the Event of Default involves nonpayment of rental and 
Appalachian fails to cure such default with five (5) days after receipt of written notice thereof from 
the County, or if the Event of Default involves a default in performing any of the terms or 
provisions of this Lease other than the payment of rental and Appalachian fails to cure such default 
within thirty (30) days after receipt of written notice of default from the County, the County may 
terminate this Lease by giving written notice to Appalachian and upon such termination shall be 
entitled to recover from Appalachian damages as may be permitted under applicable law; or (b) if 
the Event of Default involves any matter other than those set forth in item (a) of this paragraph, 
the County may terminate this Lease by giving written notice to Appalachian. 

16. EXTERIOR SIGNS 

Appalachian shall place no signs on the Premises, except with the express written consent of the 
County. Any and all signs placed on the Premises by Appalachian shall be maintained in 
compliance with governmental rules and regulations governing such signs and Appalachian shall 
be responsible to the County for any damage caused by installation, use or maintenance of said 
signs, and all damage incident to removal thereof. 

17. THE COUNTY'S ENTRY OF PREMISES 



121719 BCC Meeting

169

The County may enter the Premises for any reasonable and necessary purpose, provided it is during 
reasonable hours. 

18. WAIVER OF RIGHTS 

No failure of the County to exercise any power given the County hereunder or to insist upon strict 
compliance by Appalachian of its obligations hereunder and no custom or practice of the parties 
at variance with the terms hereof shall constitute a waiver of the County's right to demand exact 
compliance with the terms hereof. 

19. ENVIRONMENTAL LAWS 

(a) Appalachian shall not bring onto the Premises any Hazardous Materials (as dermed 
below) without the prior written approval by the County. Any approval must be preceded by 
submission to the County of appropriate Material Safety Data Sheets (MSD Sheets). In the event 
of approval by the County, Appalachian covenants that it will (I) comply with all requirements of 
any constituted public authority and all federal, state, and local codes, statutes ordinances, rules 
and regulations, and laws, whether now in force or hereafter adopted, relating to Appalachian's 
use of the Premises, or relating to the storage, use, disposal, processing, distribution, shipping or 
sales of any hazardous, flammable, toxic, or dangerous materials, waste or substance, the presence 
of which is regulated by a federal, state, or local law, ruling, rule or regulation (hereafter 
collectively referred to as "Hazardous Materials"); (2) comply with any reasonable 
recommendations by the insurance carrier of either the County or Appalachian relating to the use 
by Appalachian on the Premises of such Hazardous Materials; (3) refrain from unlawfully 
disposing of or allowing the disposal of any Hazardous Materials upon, within, about or under the 
Premises; and ( 4) remove all Hazardous Materials from the Premises, either after their use by 
Appalachian or upon the expiration or earlier termination of this lease, in compliance with all 
applicable laws. 

(b) Appalachian shall be responsible for obtaining all necessary permits in connection 
with its use, storage and disposal of Hazardous Materials, and shall develop and maintain, and 
where necessary file with the appropriate authorities, all reports, receipts, manifest, filings, lists 
and invoices covering those Hazardous Materials and Appalachian shall provide the County with 
copies of all such items upon request. Appalachian shall provide, within five (5) days after receipt 
thereof, copies of all notices, orders, claims or other correspondence from any federal, state or 
local government or agency alleging any violation of any environmental law or regulation by 
Appalachian, or related in any manner to Hazardous Materials. In addition, Appalachian shall 
provide the County with copies of all responses to such correspondence at the time of the response. 

(c) If Appalachian fails to comply with the Covenants to be performed hereunder with 
respect to Hazardous materials, or if an environmental protection lien is filed against the premises 
as a result of the actions of Appalachian, its agents, employees or invitees, then the occurrence of 
any such events shall be considered a default hereunder. 



121719 BCC Meeting

170

(d) Appalachian will give the County prompt notice of any release of Hazardous 
Materials, reportable or non-reportable, to federal, state or local authorities, of any fire, or any 
damage occurring on or to the Premises. 

(e) Appalachian will use and occupy the Premises and conduct its business in such a 
manner that the Premises are neat, clean and orderly at all times with all chemicals or Hazardous 
Materials marked for easy identification and stored according to all codes as outlined above. 

(f) The warranties and indemnities contained in this Paragraph shall survive the 
termination of this Lease. 

20. ABANDONMENT 

Appalachian shall not abandon the Premises at any time during the Lease term. If Appalachian 
shall abandon the premises or be dispossessed by process of law, any Personal Property belonging 
to Appalachian and left on the Premises shall, at the option of the County, be deemed abandoned, 
and available to the County to use or sell to offset any rent due or any expenses incurred by 
removing same and restoring the Premises. 

21. DEFINITIONS 

The "County" as used in this Lease shall include the undersigned, its representatives, assigns and 
successors in title to the Premises. "Agent" as used in this Lease shall mean the party designated 
as same in Paragraph 22, its representatives, assigns and successors. "Appalachian" shall include 
the undersigned and its representatives, assigns and successors, and if this lease shall be validly 
assigned or sublet, shall include also Appalachian's assignees or sublessees as to the Premises 
covered by such assignment or sublease. The "County", "Appalachian", and "Agent" include male 
and female, singular and plural, corporation, partnership or individual, as may fit the particular 
parties. 

22. NOTICES 

All notices required or permitted under this Lease shall be in writing and shall be personally 
delivered or sent by U.S. certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid. Notices to 
Appalachian shall be delivered or sent to the address shown at the beginning of this Lease, with a 
copy to Office of General Counsel, Appalachian State University, ASU Box 32126, Boone, NC 
28608. Notices to the County shall be delivered or sent to the address shown at the beginning of 
this Lease and notices to Agent, if any, shall be delivered or sent to the address set forth in 
Paragraph 3 hereof. 

All notices shall be effective upon delivery. Any party may change its notice address upon writien 
notice to the other parties, given as provided herein. 



121719 BCC Meeting

171

23. ENTIRE AGREEMENT 

This Lease contains the entire agreement of the parties hereto, and no representations, 
inducements, promises or agreements, oral or otherwise, between the parties, not embodied herein 
shall be of any force or effect. This Lease may not be modified except by a writing signed by all 
the parties hereto. 

24. AUTHORIZED LEASE EXECUTION 

Each individual executing this Lease as director, officer or agent of a party hereto represents and 
warrants that he/she is duly authorized to execute and deliver this Lease on behalf of such party. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have hereunto set their hands and seals, the 
date and year first above written. 

LANDLORD: 

WATAUGA COUNTY: 

Date: 2·'21 ·l.ol Cj 
--~~~~~----------

TENANT: 

APPALACHIAN STATE UNIVERSITY: 

By: _../)__j( L...___ (SEAL) 
Title: Sheri Everts, Chancellor 

Date: q · ~ · \ '1 
Office of General Counsel 
Reviewed/approved as to form. 

Initials~ 

This instrument has been pre-audited in the manner required by the Local Government Budget 

~:;;;;~;:c_ 
MistY{jV!?tson, Watauga County Finance Officer 

------------~~---



121719 BCC Meeting

172

Exhibit A: Property Description/Diagram 

Greenhouse/Bioshelter research site at Watauga County landfill 

Estimate of leased area : 50,000 ff 

June 3, 2016 



121719 B
C

C
 M

eeting

173

~-~-<> 
"f 

(1'q 

G) SITE PLAN 
SCALE:NTS 

--------------- EXISTING SEPTIC PIPE 

EXISTING FIRE HYDRANT 

PROPOSED 4" SEPTIC DRAIN PIPE OR AS 
REQUIRED FOR CONNECTION TO NEW ADDITION 

NORTH CAROLINA FORESTRY SERVICE BUILDING 

POWER POLE ANtJ IINF 

CLEAN OUT FOR SEPTIC LINE 

COMMUNICATIONS UNDERGROUND LINE 

PROPOSED WATER LINE 

PROPOSED GRID TIE POWER LINES 

PROPOSED RESTROOM I T"'-·-r ?' I 
AND ENTRY ADDITION 

EXISTING OPEN STORAGE ------o 
WITH SHED ROOF 

EXISTING GREENHOUSE 

EXISTING STORAGE BUILDING 

SCHEDULE OF VALUES 

DESIGN LOADS 
ELEVATION: 3346 AMSL 
WIND ZONE: 110 MPH 
SEISMIC DESIGN CATEGORY: C 
FLOOR LIVE LOAD: 40 PSF 
FLOOR DEAD LOAD: 75 PSF 
GROUND SNOW LOAD: 35 PSF 
ROOF DEAD LOAD INCLUDING SOLAR PANELS: 15 PSF 
DESIGN FROST DEPTH: 24 INCHES 

MATERIALS 
CONVENTIONAL LUMBER: SPF OR SYP, #2 OR BETTER 
BOLTS: ASTM A307 OR BETTER 
CONCRETE: 3000 PSI AT 28 DAYS 
REINFORCEMENT REBAR: 60KSI 
EPOXY: SIMPSON SET EPOXY OR EQUAL 
WELD ROD: E70XX 
PLATE STEEL: ASTM A36 
HARDWARE: SIMPSON STRONG-TIE OR EQUAL 
DRAINAGE PIPE: MEET ASTM F405 
DRAINAGE STONE: #57 TYPICAL 
MASONRY: 8x8x16 CMU BLOCK. 

NOTES 
1. ALL CONSTRUCTION TO MEET 2012 NORTH CAROLINA STATE 

BUILDING CODE: COMMERCIAL CODE. 
2. ALL HARDWARE AND FASTENERS CONTACTING PRESSURE 

TREATED MATERIAL SHOULD BE APPROVED FOR USE WITH 
CORRESPONDING WOOD TREATMENT. 

3. ALL LUMBER CONTACTING CONCRETE TO BE PT. 
4. CONTRACTOR TO FIELD VERIFY ALL DIMENSIONS, DRAWINGS 

REPRESENT TYPICAL CONDITIONS. AS-BUILT CONDITIONS MAY 
EXIST. 

5. BATHROOM ADDITION AND FIXTURES TO ADHERE TO ADA AND ANSI 
117.1 REQUIREMENTS FOR ACCESSIBILITY. 

6. ENGINEER NOT RESPONSIBLE FOR UN-COMPACTED FILL 
7. FLASHING, COUNTER-FLASHING AND WATERPROOFING BY OTHERS. 

'''''""" ,,,,,, 
~~..:.~···!~'~ 
~~ ~. ~ 

~!~l ll}:.c~ 
;;.~ .... 0 ~"' ~·~u. • ;:: 
'1i· • •• '1.. .... ~ ~lllflt\\\\'i: 

~ 
8 

•"' 
Z"~ z " • :ii ~ ~1(1 

•~~ ~!:!~~ 
~~ l:':,;'i7:5 

u;s "i""~ 
Z

;, ~<~, 
~g ~8~ ~ 
~ 0 ~zo:Z . 

• 
,8- Q2;2;~ 
..: . "' ~o 
~-;;: ';;: 0 

-~~ 0.. "' 

w 

~ m 
~ ~ * ~ 
~ ~ ~ y.! ~ 
>c,U.~I- <( 
~ w ~I z 
i5 to ~ ~ :5 
wW~Z n. 
w rn w u::: • w 
~<Czorn 1-

~ij~~Q (ij 

~~§ti:~ 
~~~~(] 
~w~<Cw 
,2~g:J~ zo 
o(l) rnu. 
w (.'j v.i [fi 0 j:::: 

~~i5U)~ 8 
~~l=~w <(o 

-c~~[i o::(3f3 
~~su:::m ~n::re 
~ w ~ ~" (I)IC~ UJ-'0 
(.'}1--'0 :cU:::Z 
z··!!!u.~ wo · 
~ffiu.ou oz~ 
~-~~~ ;n~o 
c~~tJu; w~&\ 
*~/3~w ~ 
~c.~ 13 ~ ~ 
o~!i!~/2 !t 
::lw*G:::J <( n.r:J;!o;:z 
ZDn.wO 
8~~~!!! 
Q ~ 12 ~ ~ 167002 
1-u:.Cm 6 (/) ~ iii ~ 06·01-2016 
o:fflzZZ 
fL f!5 p ~ ~ AS SHOWN 
8 (i! ~ ~ ~ SHEET:G1 

OF: 3 SHEE 



~
4

5
'
-
0

"

INDEX OF SHEETS:

COV - APPENDIX B INFORMATION

S-101- STRUCTURAL PLANS

S-201- ELEVATIONS AND DETAILS

NEXUS RESEARCH LAB

FREESTANDING DECK ADDITION

B/CLASSROOM>12TH GRADE OCCUPANCY

649 LANDFILL RD, BOONE NC 28607

PARCEL: 2920482773000

2018 APPENDIX "B"

BUILDING CODE SUMMARY

FOR ALL COMMERCIAL PROJECTS

(EXCEPT 1 & 2-FAMILY DWELLINGS AND TOWNHOUSES)

NAME OF PROJECT: NEXUS LAB COVERED DECK

ADDRESS: 649 LANDFILL RD, BOONE NC 28607   PARCEL: 2920482773000

PROPOSED USE: B BUSINESS (EDUCATIONAL FOR STUDENTS OVER 12TH GRADE)

OWNER/AUTHORIZED AGENT: JEREMY FERRELL TELEPHONE:  (828)-262-8818 EMAIL: FERRELLJC@APPSTATE.EDU

OWNED BY: WATAUGA COUNTY CITY/COUNTY PRIVATE STATE

CODE ENFORCEMENT JURISDICTION: CITY: COUNTY: WATAUGA STATE

LEAD DESIGN PROFESSIONAL: PATRICK A. BEVILLE PE LEED AP

DESIGNER FIRM NAME LICENSE # TELEPHONE # EMAIL

GENERAL              IONCON, PLLC PATRICK A. BEVILLE NC 023045 (828) 264-8500      PATRICK@GOIONCON.COM

CIVIL

ELECTRICAL

FIRE ALARM

PLUMBING

MECHANICAL

SPRINKLER-STANDPIPE

STRUCTURAL IONCON, PLLC PATRICK A. BEVILLE NC 023045 (828) 264-8500      PATRICK@GOIONCON.COM

RETAINING WALLS >5' HIGH

OTHER:

2018 EDITION OF NC CODE FOR: NEW CONSTRUCTION ADDITION UPFIT

EXISTING: RECONSTRUCTION ALTERATION LVL: REPAIR RENOVATION

CONSTRUCTED: ORIGINAL USE(S) (CH. 3):

RENOVATED: CURRENT USE(S) (CH.3): BUSINESS PROPOSED USE(S) (CH. 3): BUSINESS

RISK CATEGORY (TABLE 1604.5):    CURRENT:  2          PROPOSED: 2

BASIC BUILDING DATA

CONSTRUCTION TYPE: I-A II-A III-A IV V-A

(CHECK ALL THAT APPLY) I-B II-B III-B V-B

SPRINKLERS: NO PARTIAL YES NFPA 13 NFPA 13R NFPA 13D

STANDPIPES: NO YES CLASS I II III WET DRY

FIRE DISTRICT: NO YES (PRIMARY) FLOOD HAZARD AREA: NO YES

BUILDING HEIGHT: 14'-10" TO ROOF PEAK

GROSS BUILDING AREA:

FLOOR EXISTING (SQ FT) NEW (SQFT) SUB-TOTAL

6TH FLOOR

5TH FLOOR

4TH FLOOR

ROOF DECK

THIRD LEVEL

SECOND LEVEL

MAIN LEVEL ADD 288SQFT DECK

LOWER LEVEL

TOTAL 288SQFT

ALLOWABLE AREA

OCCUPANCY:

BUSINESS

ACCESSORY OCCUPANCIES: NONE

INCIDENTAL USES (TABLE 508.2.5):  NONE

SPECIAL USES: NONE

SPECIAL PROVISIONS: NONE 509.2 509.3 509.4 509.5 509.6 509.7 509.8 509.9

MIXED OCCUPANCY: NO YES SEPARATION: NO EXCEPTION: N/A

STORY NO.

(A)

BUILDING AREA

PER STORY

(ACTUAL)

DESCRIPTION

AND USE

(B)

TABLE 503

5

AREA

(C)

AREA FOR

FRONTAGE

INCREASE

1

(D)

AREA FOR

SPRINKLER

INCREASE

2

(E)

ALLOWABLE

AREA OR

UNLIMITED

3

(F)

MAXIMUM

BUILDING

AREA

4

1

 FRONTAGE AREA INCREASES FROM SECTION 506.2 ARE COMPUTED THUS:

A. PERIMETER WHICH FRONTS A PUBLIC WAY OR OPEN SPACE HAVING 20 FEET MINIMUM WIDTH = __ = __72__(F)

B. TOTAL BUILDING PERIMETER = ___72___(P)

C. RATIO (F/P) = ____1__ (F/P)

D. W = MINIMUM WIDTH OF PUBLIC WAY = __30____ (W)

E. PERCENT OF FRONTAGE INCREASE I

F

 = 100 [F/P - 0.25] X W/30     = __75____(%)

2

 THE SPRINKLER INCREASE PER SECTION 506.3 IS AS FOLLOWS:

A. MULTI-STORY BUILDINGS I

S

 = 200 PERCENT

B. SINGLE-STORY BUILDING I

S

 = 300 PERCENT

3

 UNLIMITED AREA APPLICABLE UNDER CONDITIONS OF SECTION 507.

4

 MAXIMUM BUILDING AREA = TOTAL NUMBER OF STORIES IN THE BUILDING X E (506.4).

5

 THE MAXIMUM AREA OF OPEN PARKING GARAGES MUST COMPLY WITH TABLE 406.3.5. THE MAXIMUM AREA OF AIR TRAFFIC

CONTROL TOWERS MUST COMPLY WITH TABLE 412.1.2.

LOWER LEVEL
15,750 FT²

MAIN LEVEL

THIRD LEVEL

ROOF DECK

288FT² 9000 FT² 75%=6,750 0 FT²
15,750 FT²

SECOND LEVEL

BUSINESS

SHOWN ON PLANS

ALLOWABLE HEIGHT

ALLOWABLE

(TABLE 503)

INCREASE FOR SPRINKLERS CODE REFERENCE

BUILDING HEIGHT IN FEET

BUILDING HEIGHT IN STORIES 1 1

14'-10" SECTION 602.3

FIRE

SEPARATION

DISTANCE

(FEET)

ROOF CONSTRUCTION

INCLUDING SUPPORTING

BEAMS AND JOISTS

FIRE PROTECTION REQUIREMENTS

NOTE: TYPE 5B UNPROTECTED/NO-SPRINKLER

RATING

DETAIL #

AND

SHEET #

BUILDING ELEMENT

REQ'D
PROVIDED

(W/________*

REDUCTION)

DESIGN #

FOR

RATED

ASSEMBLY

DESIGN # FOR

RATED

PENETRATION

DESIGN #

FOR

RATED

JOINTS

STRUCTURAL FRAME,

INCLUDING COLUMNS,

GIRDERS, TRUSSES

BEARING WALLS

EXTERIOR

NORTH

EAST

WEST

SOUTH

INTERIOR

NONBEARING WALLS AND

PARTITIONS

EXTERIOR WALLS

NORTH

EAST

WEST

SOUTH

INTERIOR WALLS AND 

PARTITIONS

FLOOR CONSTRUCTION

INCLUDING SUPPORTING

BEAMS AND JOISTS

SHAFT ENCLOSURES - EXIT

SHAFT ENCLOSURES - OTHER

CORRIDOR SEPARATION

OCCUPANCY SEPARATION

PARTY/FIRE WALL SEPARATION

SMOKE BARRIER SEPARATION

TENANT SEPARATION

INCIDENTAL USE SEPARATION

*INDICATE SECTION NUMBER PERMITTING REDUCTION

LIFE SAFETY SYSTEM REQUIREMENTS

NOTE: REQ FOR AREAS WITH 2 EXITS OR >50 OCCUPANCY

EMERGENCY LIGHTING 1006 NO YES

EXIT SIGNS1011 NO YES

FIRE ALARM  907 NO YES

SMOKE DETECT SYSTEMS 907 NO YES PARTIAL

PANIC HARDWARE 1008.1.10 NO YES

TOTAL

UNITS

LIFE SAFETY PLAN REQUIREMENTS

LIFE SAFETY PLAN SHEET:  N/A

FIRE AND/OR SMOKE RATED WALL LOCATIONS (CHAPTER 7) : N/A

ASSUMED AND REAL PROPERTY LINE LOCATIONS : YES, SEE THIS SHEET.

EXTERIOR WALL OPENING AREA WITH RESPECT TO DISTANCE TO ASSUMED PROPERTY LINES (705.8) : N/A, NO WALLS.

EXISTING STRUCTURES WITHIN 30' OF THE PROPOSED BUILDING : 15' TO STORAGE SHED.

OCCUPANCY TYPES FOR EACH AREA AS IT RELATES TO OCCUPANT LOAD CALCULATION (TABLE 1004.1.1) : ALL CLASSROOM.

OCCUPANT LOADS FOR EACH AREA : ALL CLASSROOM, 15 OCCUPANTS.

EXIT ACCESS TRAVEL DISTANCES (1016) : <50'

COMMON PATH OF TRAVEL DISTANCES (1014.3 & 1028.8) : N/A

DEAD END LENGTHS (1018.4) : N/A.

CLEAR EXIT WIDTHS FOR EACH EXIT DOOR : N/A, NO DOORS.

MAXIMUM CALCULATED OCCUPANT LOAD CAPACITY EACH EXIT DOOR CAN ACCOMMODATE BASED ON EGRESS WIDTH (1005.1) : N/A

ACTUAL OCCUPANT LOAD FOR EACH EXIT DOOR : N/A, NO DOORS.

A SEPARATE SCHEMATIC PLAN INDICATING WHERE FIRE RATED FLOOR/CEILING AND/OR ROOF STRUCTURE IS PROVIDED FOR

PURPOSES OF OCCUPANCY SEPARATION : N/A, NO SEPARATION.

LOCATION OF DOORS WITH PANIC HARDWARE (1008.1.10) : N/A, NO DOORS.

LOCATION OF DOORS WITH DELAYED EGRESS LOCKS AND THE AMOUNT OF DELAY (1008.1.9.7) : N/A, NO DOORS.

LOCATION OF DOORS WITH ELECTROMAGNETIC EGRESS LOCKS (1008.1.9.8) : N/A, NO DOORS.

LOCATION OF DOORS EQUIPPED WITH HOLD-OPEN DEVICES : N/A, NO DOORS.

LOCATION OF EMERGENCY ESCAPE WINDOWS (1029) : N/A, NO WINDOWS.

THE SQUARE FOOTAGE OF EACH FIRE AREA (902) : 288 SQFT

THE SQUARE FOOTAGE OF EACH SMOKE COMPARTMENT (407.4) : N/A

NOTE ANY CODE EXCEPTIONS OR TABLE NOTES THAT MAY HAVE BEEN UTILIZED REGARDING THE ITEMS ABOVE : N/A

TYPE A

UNITS

PROVIDED

ACCESSIBLE DWELLING UNITS

(SECTION 1107) N/A NO DWELLING UNITS

TYPE B

UNITS

PROVIDED

0

TYPE B

UNITS

REQUIRED

0

TYPE A

UNITS

REQUIRED

TOTAL

ACCESSIBLE UNITS

PROVIDED

ACCESSIBLE

UNITS PROVIDED

ACCESSIBLE

UNITS REQUIRED

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

ACCESSIBLE PARKING

(SECTION 1106): N/A NO HEATED SPACE INCREASE. EXISTING SHOWN.

TOTAL # OF PARKING SPACES

TOTAL # ACCESSIBLE

PROVIDED

LOT OR PARKING

AREA

# OF ACCESSIBLE SPACES PROVIDED

REQUIRED    PROVIDED
REGULAR WITH

5' ACCESS

AISLE

VAN SPACES WITH

132" ACCESS

AISLE

8' ACCESS

AISLE

STRUCTURAL DESIGN:

SPACE

USE

EXISTING

PLUMBING FIXTURE REQUIREMENTS (TABLE 2902.1)

N/A NO ATTACHED HEATED SPACE INCREASE. ADA BATHROOM LOCATED IN ADJACENT BUILDING.

WATERCLOSETS

MALE FEMALE

NEW

REQUIRED

URINALS LAVATORIES

MALE FEMALE

SHOWERS/

TUBS

DRINKING FOUNTAINS

REGULAR ACCESSIBLE

SPECIAL APPROVALS: N/A

SPECIAL APPROVAL: (LOCAL JURISDICTION, DEPARTMENT OF INSURANCE, OSC, DPI, DHHS, ICC, ETC., DESCRIBE BELOW

1 1
000

1

0

0
1

0

0

0

ENERGY SUMMARY

CLIMATE ZONE 5

N/A NO HEATED SQUARE FOOTAGE ADDED

MECHANICAL SUMMARY

N/A NO HEATED SQUARE FOOTAGE ADDED

END OF APPENDIX B

0

0HR0HR

0

0

0

0

GRAVEL

0 5
1

1

0 0 0 0 0

40 N/A

PERCENTAGE OF WALL OPENINGS CALCULATIONS

FIRE SEPARATION DISTANCE

(FEET) FROM PROPERTY LINES

DEGREE OF OPENINGS

PROTECTION (TABLE 705.8)

ALLOWABLE AREA (%) ACTUAL SHOWN ON PLANS (%)

ELECTRICAL SUMMARY

N/A NO ELECTRICAL ADDED OR MODIFIED

30+

30+

30+

30+

30+

30+

30+

30+

30+

30+

30+

30+

30+

30+

30+

30+

30+

30+

N/A

30+FT NO LIMIT NO LIMIT

Scale: NTS

PROPERTY LINE

3

288SQFT/20NET CLASSROOM

 = 15 OCCUPANTS

SITE AT TOP OF LANDFILL RD.

Scale: NTS

LOCATION MAP

1

0

X

LIVE LOADS:

ROOF: 20 PSF

FLOOR: 100 PSF

GROUND SNOW LOAD: 30 PSF

FROST DEPTH: 24"

IMPORTANCE FACTORS:

WIND: 1

SNOW: 1

SEISMIC: 1

SOIL BEARING CAPACITY: 2000

PSF (PRESCRIPTIVE)

LATERAL DESIGN

CONTROL: WIND

SPECIAL INSPECTIONS

REQUIRED: NO

WIND LOAD:

WIND ZONE: 130 MPH

EXPOSURE CATEGORY: C

NEW DECK LOCATED BETWEEN EXISTING

BUILDING.

MATERIALS

CONVENTIONAL LUMBER: SPF OR SYP, #2 OR BETTER

ENGINEERED LUMBER: LVL: Fb=3100PSI, E=2000KSI, OR

BETTER

BOLTS: ASTM A307 OR BETTER

CONCRETE: 3000 PSI AT 28 DAYS

REINFORCEMENT REBAR: 60KSI

EPOXY: SIMPSON SET EPOXY OR EQUAL

WELD ROD: E70XX

PLATE STEEL: ASTM A36

HARDWARE: SIMPSON STRONG-TIE OR EQUAL

DRAINAGE PIPE: MEET ASTM F405

DRAINAGE STONE: #57 TYPICAL

MASONRY: 12x8x16 CMU BLOCK.

NOTES

1. ALL CONSTRUCTION TO MEET 2018 NORTH

CAROLINA STATE BUILDING CODE: BUILDING CODE.

2. ALL HARDWARE AND FASTENERS CONTACTING

PRESSURE TREATED MATERIAL SHOULD BE

APPROVED FOR USE WITH CORRESPONDING WOOD

TREATMENT.

3. ALL LUMBER CONTACTING CONCRETE TO BE PT.

4. ALL WOOD CONNECTORS SHALL BE INSTALLED PER

MANUFACTURER'S SPECIFICATIONS UNLESS

OTHERWISE NOTED.

5. CONTRACTOR TO FIELD VERIFY ALL DIMENSIONS,

DRAWINGS REPRESENT TYPICAL CONDITIONS.

AS-BUILT CONDITIONS MAY EXIST.

6. ENGINEER NOT RESPONSIBLE FOR UN-COMPACTED

FILL.

7. FLASHING, COUNTER-FLASHING AND

WATERPROOFING BY OTHERS.

8. IONCON ENGINEERING IS ONLY RESPONSIBLE FOR

THE STRUCTURAL ASPECTS AS REFERENCED

HEREIN.

L
A

N
D

F
IL

L
 R

D
.

L

A

N

D

F

I

L

L

 

R

D

.

NORTH CAROLINA FORESTRY SERVICE BUILDING

POWER POLE AND LINE

COMMUNICATIONS UNDERGROUND LINE

EXISTING OPEN STORAGE

WITH SHED ROOF

EXISTING STORAGE BUILDING

EXISTING GREENHOUSE

RESTROOM @ EXISTING BUILDING

CLEAN OUT FOR SEPTIC LINE

PROPOSED DECK

01 SITE PLAN
1" = 30'-0"

J
.
 
F

E
R

R
E

L
L

AS SHOWN

SCALE

DATE

R
E

V
I
S

E
D

D
R

A
W

N
 
B

Y
A

P
P

R
O

V
E

D

A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

P
A

B

JOB NUMBER

C
O

N
T

A
C

T

G
T

K

C
O

V
E

R

A
S

U
 
N

E
X

U
S

 
F

A
C

I
L
I
T

Y

194010

10-23-2019

(
8

2
8

)
 
2

6
2

-
8

8
1

8

C
O

P
Y

R
I
G

H
T

 
I
O

N
C

O
N

,
 
P

L
L

C
,
 
T

H
E

S
E

 
D

R
A

W
I
N

G
S

 
A

R
E

 
I
N

T
E

N
D

E
D

 
F

O
R

 
A

 
S

I
N

G
L

E
 
U

S
E

 
O

N
L

Y
 
A

T
 
T

H
E

 
A

D
D

R
E

S
S

 
S

P
E

C
I
F

I
E

D
 
H

E
R

E
I
N

.
 
D

I
S

C
L

A
I
M

E
R

:
 
T

H
E

S
E

 
D

R
A

W
I
N

G
S

 
A

R
E

 
M

A
D

E
 
O

N
 
A

 
B

E
S

T
 
E

F
F

O
R

T
S

 
B

A
S

I
S

 
A

N
D

 
I
N

T
E

N
D

 
T

O
 
R

E
P

R
E

S
E

N
T

 
A

C
C

U
R

A
T

E
 
F

I
E

L
D

 
C

O
N

D
I
T

I
O

N
S

.

C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

O
R

/
I
N

S
T

A
L

L
E

R
 
I
S

 
R

E
S

P
O

N
S

I
B

L
E

 
T

O
 
V

E
R

I
F

Y
 
A

C
C

U
R

A
C

Y
 
A

N
D

 
F

O
R

 
F

I
N

A
L

 
A

S
S

E
M

B
L

Y
 
A

N
D

 
F

I
T

 
A

N
D

 
F

I
N

I
S

H
.
 
T

H
E

S
E

 
D

R
A

W
I
N

G
S

 
R

E
L

A
T

E
 
O

N
L

Y
 
T

O
 
T

H
E

 
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
A

L
 
E

L
E

M
E

N
T

S
 
O

F
 
T

H
E

 
G

I
V

E
N

 
J
O

B
.

5
9

1
 
L

A
N

D
F

I
L

L
 
R

D

B
O

O
N

E
,
 
N

C
 
2

8
6

0
7

P
A

T
R

I
C

K
 
A

.
 
B

E
V

I
L
L
E

,
 
P

E
 
L
E

E
D

 
A

P

I
O

N
C

O
N

,
 
P

L
L
C

 
P

-
0
8
2
0

2
5
5
4
 
H

W
Y

 
1
0
5

B
O

O
N

E
,
 
N

O
R

T
H

 
C

A
R

O
L
I
N

A
 
2
8
6
0
7

P
H

O
N

E
:
 
8
2
8
-
2
6
4
-
8
5
0
0

COV

SHEET:

TOTAL:

1

OF: 3

OF:

3

>
4

5
'
-
0

"

T
O

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

L
I
N

E

121719 BCC Meeting

174



11'-8 1/2"

1
1
'
-
5
"

11'-8 1/2"

23'-1/2"

PROJECTION OF ROOF

BIGFOOT BF-28 CONCRETE

FORM, TYPICAL

DECK OUTER BAND

12" SONOTUBE CONCRETE

FORM, TYPICAL

6X6 PT SYP POST, TYPICAL

26'-0"

1
4
'
-
0
"

COMPOSITE BEAM,

PLIES FASTENED WITH 10d NAILS 8"

STAGGER PATTERN, MOUNT TO 6X6

WITH (2) 5/8" Ø GALV THRU BOLTS,

SEE DETAIL 5 S-201, TYPICAL

(1) H2.5 CLIP AT EACH TRUSS

CONNECTION

5/8"Ø GALV. THRU BOLT WITH

NUT AND WASHER, TYPICAL

1
1
'
-
6
"

TRUSS 2'-0" O.C. TO BE

DESIGNED BY OTHER, TYPICAL

11'-6 1/4"

23'-6"

11'-6 1/4"

1
1

'
-
1

0
 
1

/
2

"

PT SYP 2x10

16" O.C. TYPICAL

1'-4"

(2) 5/8"Ø X 10" DECK PLUS COATED

BOLT, OR EQUAL, AT EACH OUTER

BAND TO 6X6 CONNECTION, TYPICAL

2-PLY PT SYP 2x12 OUTER BAND,

FASTEN WITH 10d NAILS 16" O.C.

STAGGER PATTERN, TYPICAL

PT SYP 2X10 BLOCKING, TYPICAL

USP 2x10 18 GAUGE TRIPLE ZINC

FACE MOUNT JOIST HANGER, TYPICAL

23'-6"
PT SYP 6X6 POST, NOTCHED

TO RECEIVE DECK OUTER BAND,

SEE DETAIL 4 S-201, TYPICAL

PROJECTION OF ROOF

AS SHOWN

SCALE

DATE

R
E

V
I
S

E
D

D
R

A
W

N
 
B

Y
A

P
P

R
O

V
E

D

A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

P
A

B

JOB NUMBER

C
O

N
T

A
C

T
:

G
T

K

F
O

U
N

D
A

T
I
O

N
 
A

N
D

 
F

R
A

M
I
N

G
 
P

L
A

N
S

A
S

U
 
N

E
X

U
S

 
F

A
C

I
L
I
T

Y

194010

10-23-2019

J
.
 
F

E
R

R
E

L
L

(
8
2
8
)
 
2
6
2
-
8
8
1
8

C
O

P
Y

R
I
G

H
T

 
I
O

N
C

O
N

,
 
P

L
L
C

,
 
T

H
E

S
E

 
D

R
A

W
I
N

G
S

 
A

R
E

 
I
N

T
E

N
D

E
D

 
F

O
R

 
A

 
S

I
N

G
L
E

 
U

S
E

 
O

N
L
Y

 
A

T
 
T

H
E

 
A

D
D

R
E

S
S

 
S

P
E

C
I
F

I
E

D
 
H

E
R

E
I
N

.
 
D

I
S

C
L
A

I
M

E
R

:
 
T

H
E

S
E

 
D

R
A

W
I
N

G
S

 
A

R
E

 
M

A
D

E
 
O

N
 
A

 
B

E
S

T
 
E

F
F

O
R

T
S

 
B

A
S

I
S

 
A

N
D

 
I
N

T
E

N
D

 
T

O
 
R

E
P

R
E

S
E

N
T

 
A

C
C

U
R

A
T

E
 
F

I
E

L
D

 
C

O
N

D
I
T

I
O

N
S

.

C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

O
R

/
I
N

S
T

A
L
L
E

R
 
I
S

 
R

E
S

P
O

N
S

I
B

L
E

 
T

O
 
V

E
R

I
F

Y
 
A

C
C

U
R

A
C

Y
 
A

N
D

 
F

O
R

 
F

I
N

A
L
 
A

S
S

E
M

B
L
Y

 
A

N
D

 
F

I
T

 
A

N
D

 
F

I
N

I
S

H
.
 
T

H
E

S
E

 
D

R
A

W
I
N

G
S

 
R

E
L
A

T
E

 
O

N
L
Y

 
T

O
 
T

H
E

 
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
A

L
 
E

L
E

M
E

N
T

S
 
O

F
 
T

H
E

 
G

I
V

E
N

 
J
O

B
.

5
9
1
 
L
A

N
D

F
I
L
L
 
R

D

B
O

O
N

E
,
 
N

C
 
2
8
6
0
7

P
A

T
R

I
C

K
 
A

.
 
B

E
V

I
L
L
E

,
 
P

E
 
L
E

E
D

 
A

P

I
O

N
C

O
N

,
 
P

L
L
C

 
P

-
0
8
2
0

2
5
5
4
 
H

W
Y

 
1
0
5

B
O

O
N

E
,
 
N

O
R

T
H

 
C

A
R

O
L
I
N

A
 
2
8
6
0
7

P
H

O
N

E
:
 
8
2
8
-
2
6
4
-
8
5
0
0

S-101

SHEET:

TOTAL:

2

OF: 3

OF:

3

Scale: 3/8":1'-0"

FOUNDATION PLAN

1

Scale: 1/2":1'-0"

ROOF FRAMING PLAN

3

Scale: 1/2":1'-0"

DECK FRAMING PLAN

2

121719 BCC Meeting

175



4
 
5

/
8

"

2 1/2"

1
1

 
1

/
4

"

2
'
-
0

"

7
 
1

/
4

"

TOP CHORD OF TRUSS,

DESIGN BY OTHER

BOTTOM CHORD OF TRUSS,

DESIGN BY OTHER

(2) 5/8" Ø GALV. THRU BOLTS

WITH NUT AND WASHERS, TO

FASTEN BEAM TO 6X6 POST

COMPOSITE BEAM COMPOSED

OF 2X8 PT BETWEEN (2) 2X12 PT

MEMBERS, PLIES FASTENED WITH

10d NAILS 8" O.C. STAGGER PATTERN

5/8" Ø GALV. THRU BOLT WITH NUT

AND WASHER TO FASTEN SHOULDER

CUT 4X4 TO COMPOSITE BEAM

4X4 PT KNEE BRACE AT 45° ANGLE,

SHOULDER CUT TO FIT INTO TRUSS BEARING

BEAM, AFFIX TO BEAM AND 6X6 POST WITH

5/8" Ø GALV. THRU BOLT WITH NUT

AND WASHER

6X6 PT POST, SHOULDER CUT TO RECEIVE

COMPOSITE BEAM

4
"

2"

8
"

7 1/2"

3
"

3
"

BIGFOOT BF-28 CONCRETE

FORM, LOCATE BOTTOM OF

FORM MIN. 24" BELOW GRADE

12" SONOTUBE CONCRETE FORM

#3 REBAR HOOPS 8" O.C. TYPICAL

(4) #4 REBAR, MAINTAIN

3" CLEAR COVER TOP AND

BOTTOM,

2"
2"

PT SYP 6X6 POST

SIMPSON ABU66Z

5/8"Ø X10" GALV. ANCHOR BOLT WITH

ASTM A563 GRADE A NUT AND USS

FLAT WASHER

3"

1
1
 
1
/
4
"

2
 
1
/
2
"

2-PLY PT SYP 2X12 DECK

OUTER BAND, FASTENED

TO 6X6 POST WITH (2) 5/8" Ø

GALV. THRU BOLTS WITH NUTS

AND WASHERS, TYPICAL

6X6 PT SYP POST,

NOTCHED TO RECEIVE

2-PLY DECK OUTER BAND

5/8"Ø GALV. THRU

BOLT, WITH NUT

AND WASHER, TYPICAL

2"

4
"

2
'
-
0
"

4X4 PT SYP KNEE BRACE

AT 45°. SHOULDER CUT

TO RECEIVE DECK OUTER

BAND, FASTEN TO 6X6 AND

DECK OUTER BAND WITH

5/8" Ø GALV. THRU BOLT

WITH NUT AND WASHER,

TYPICAL

5/8"Ø GALV. THRU

BOLT, WITH NUT

AND WASHER, TYPICAL

2 1/2"

1
1

 
1

/
4

"

7
 
1

/
4

"

TOP CHORD OF TRUSS,

DESIGN BY OTHER

BOTTOM CHORD OF TRUSS,

DESIGN BY OTHER

(2) 5/8" Ø GALV. THRU BOLTS

WITH NUT AND WASHERS, TO

FASTEN BEAM TO 6X6 POST

COMPOSITE BEAM COMPOSED

OF 2X8 PT BETWEEN (2) 2X12 PT

MEMBERS, PLIES FASTENED WITH

10d NAILS 8" O.C. STAGGER PATTERN

6X6 PT POST, SHOULDER CUT TO RECEIVE

TRUSS BEARING BEAM

4
"

1 1/2"1 1/2"

1/8", 7X19, GRADE 304 VINYL COATED SS CABLE, TYPICAL

-2'-10"
B.O. FOOTER

6'-10"
T.O. DECKING

10'-10"
T.O. RAILING

0'-0"
FINISH GRADE

4

5

°

14'-10"
B.O. ROOF

17'-10"
T.O. ROOF

RIDGE CAP

24 GAUGE METAL ROOFING

SIMPSON ABU66Z 6X6 ADJUSTABLE POST BASE,

TYPICAL

12" SONOTUBE CONCRETE FORM, TYPICAL

5/8"Ø X10" GALV. ANCHOR BOLT WITH

ASTM A563 GRADE A NUT AND USS FLAT WASHER,

TYPICAL

4
"

5/8" Ø GALV. THRU BOLT, TYPICAL

4
'
-
0
"

5
'
-
3

3

4

"

2
'
-
0
"

PT SYP 6X6 POST SHOULDER CUT FOR TRUSS BEARING BEAM

AND DECK OUTER BAND, SEE DETAILS 4 AND 5 S-201, TYPICAL

COMPOSITE BEAM, EACH

TRUSS FASTENED WITH (1) H2.5 CLIP PER SIDE

ICE CLEATS, TYPICAL

8
'
-
0
"

23'-6"

OZCO IRONWOOD 4X4 POST BASE KIT, TYPICAL

13'-2 1/8"

4

5

°

1'-7 7/8"

BIGFOOT CONCRETE FOOTING FORM BF-28, TYPICAL

PT SYP 4X4 KNEE BRACE @45°, TYPICAL

PT SYP 4X4 POST FOR RAILING, TYPICAL

2-PLY PT SYP 2X12 DECK OUTER BAND, FASTEN WITH 10d

NAILS 16" STAGGER PATTERN

2
'
-
0
"

2'-0"

2'-0"

BIGFOOT CONCRETE FOOTING FORM BF-28,

TYPICAL

12" SONOTUBE CONCRETE FORM, TYPICAL

1/8", 7X19, GRADE 304 VINYL COATED SS CABLE,

TYPICAL

SIMPSON ABU66Z 6X6 ADJUSTABLE POST BASE,

TYPICAL

#57 WASHED STONE WITH

4"Ø PERFORATED PIPE

WITH SILT SOCK, RUN PIPE TO DAYLIGHT

5

12

0'-0"
T.O. DECK

4'-0"
T.O. RAILING

8'-0"
B.O. ROOF

11'-0"
T.O. ROOF

RAKE TRIM

5/8"Ø X10" GALV. ANCHOR BOLT WITH

ASTM A563 GRADE A NUT AND USS FLAT WASHER,

TYPICAL

SHOULDER CUT 4X4, SEE DETAIL 4 S-201, TYPICAL

6X6 PT POST, NOTCHED TO RECEIVE

DECK OUTER BAND AND COMPOSITE BEAM,

TYPICAL, SEE DETAILS 4 AND 5 ON S-201

ICE CLEATS, TYPICAL

11'-6"

OZCO IRONWOOD 4X4 POST BASE KIT

PT SYP 2X8 GRAVEL DAM WITH 2X BRACING AS NEEDED

TO RETAIN GRAVEL

RAILING TO COMPLY WITH 2018 NORTH CAROLINA

STATE BUILDING CODE

AS SHOWN

SCALE

DATE

R
E

V
I
S

E
D

D
R

A
W

N
 
B

Y
A

P
P

R
O

V
E

D

A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

P
A

B

JOB NUMBER

C
O

N
T

A
C

T
:

G
T

K

E
L
E

V
A

T
I
O

N
S

 
A

N
D

 
D

E
T

A
I
L
S

A
S

U
 
N

E
X

U
S

 
F

A
C

I
L
I
T

Y

194010

10-23-2019

J
.
 
F

E
R

R
E

L
L

(
8
2
8
)
 
2
6
2
-
8
8
1
8

C
O

P
Y

R
I
G

H
T

 
I
O

N
C

O
N

,
 
P

L
L
C

,
 
T

H
E

S
E

 
D

R
A

W
I
N

G
S

 
A

R
E

 
I
N

T
E

N
D

E
D

 
F

O
R

 
A

 
S

I
N

G
L
E

 
U

S
E

 
O

N
L
Y

 
A

T
 
T

H
E

 
A

D
D

R
E

S
S

 
S

P
E

C
I
F

I
E

D
 
H

E
R

E
I
N

.
 
D

I
S

C
L
A

I
M

E
R

:
 
T

H
E

S
E

 
D

R
A

W
I
N

G
S

 
A

R
E

 
M

A
D

E
 
O

N
 
A

 
B

E
S

T
 
E

F
F

O
R

T
S

 
B

A
S

I
S

 
A

N
D

 
I
N

T
E

N
D

 
T

O
 
R

E
P

R
E

S
E

N
T

 
A

C
C

U
R

A
T

E
 
F

I
E

L
D

 
C

O
N

D
I
T

I
O

N
S

.

C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

O
R

/
I
N

S
T

A
L
L
E

R
 
I
S

 
R

E
S

P
O

N
S

I
B

L
E

 
T

O
 
V

E
R

I
F

Y
 
A

C
C

U
R

A
C

Y
 
A

N
D

 
F

O
R

 
F

I
N

A
L
 
A

S
S

E
M

B
L
Y

 
A

N
D

 
F

I
T

 
A

N
D

 
F

I
N

I
S

H
.
 
T

H
E

S
E

 
D

R
A

W
I
N

G
S

 
R

E
L
A

T
E

 
O

N
L
Y

 
T

O
 
T

H
E

 
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
A

L
 
E

L
E

M
E

N
T

S
 
O

F
 
T

H
E

 
G

I
V

E
N

 
J
O

B
.

5
9
1
 
L
A

N
D

F
I
L
L
 
R

D

B
O

O
N

E
,
 
N

C
 
2
8
6
0
7

P
A

T
R

I
C

K
 
A

.
 
B

E
V

I
L
L
E

,
 
P

E
 
L
E

E
D

 
A

P

I
O

N
C

O
N

,
 
P

L
L
C

 
P

-
0
8
2
0

2
5
5
4
 
H

W
Y

 
1
0
5

B
O

O
N

E
,
 
N

O
R

T
H

 
C

A
R

O
L
I
N

A
 
2
8
6
0
7

P
H

O
N

E
:
 
8
2
8
-
2
6
4
-
8
5
0
0

S-201

SHEET:

TOTAL:

3

OF: 3

OF:

3

Scale: 1":1'-0"

6X6 - UPPER KNEE BRACE ATTACHMENT

6

Scale: 1":1'-0"

FOOTING REINFORCEMENT

3

Scale: 1":1'-0"

6X6 NOTCH AND LOWER KNEE BRACE

4

Scale: 1":1'-0"

6X6 - COMPOSITE BEAM DETAIL

5

Scale: 1/2":1'-0"

WEST ELEVATION

2

Scale: 3/8":1'-0"

SOUTH ELEVATION

1

121719 BCC Meeting

176



121719 BCC Meeting

177

Tax Parcel No. 7~ 01 /_ 0 i r L 7 7 -~ 0Q 0 

Owner 

Subdivision Name lot# Acreage Zoning District 
---------- ----------------------

Is proposed structure near a river/stream? 1•10 If yes, distance from Name of river /stream? 

Does driveway cross river/ stream? tJo Proposed grading (area disturbed) 'Sb ++ 1· 

Is proposed structure located adjacent to the Blue Ridge Parkway or Park Service land? 

length of Driveway 

---------------------General Contractor 

Address l & 5 
Contact Person 

Electrical Contractor 

Plumbing Contractor 

license No. ( ( },Jj Q 

Phone 

Telephone 

Cell Phone 

--------------------------------------------------------
Heating & Air Contractor 

------------------------------------------------------
Gas Contractor 

Grading Contractor Telephone --- -------------- --Power Company: Blue Ridge Electric 1 New River Light & Power 1 Mountain Electric 

Sewer System: 11 Septic Permit# _____________ 1 Community p( Public 1 Existing (Setbacks Verified) 

Water System: I I Private Well Permit# ________ I Community v{Public n Spring I Existing (Setbacks Verified) ---------------------
Permit Type: 1 Single Family 0 Duplex 1 Townhouse 1 Storage 1 Garage p(commercial 1 Other 

Type of Work: f?"'New I Addition I Remodel r Repair I Demolit ion I Change of Use I Other 

TypeofConstruction: I Arame I Modular I l og I Timber Frame r Other 

Type of Foundation : t •· '\ r.r-..,(.... ~~ h ·'H) Type of Siding: N A- Type of Heat: __ ____,1_\l.:..t;-L--_____ _ 

No. Stories: Height of Proposed Structure From Top of Foundation: \b' 
------------

No. of Bedrooms: N/~ No. of Full Baths: No. of Half Baths: 1"/+ ------
Heated Sq .Ft. Unheated Sq.Ft. 

3rd Floor 

2nd Floor 

1st Floor 

Bsmt. 

Garage 

Total 

Total Estimated Cost: $ 

1 1 Mail Permit yrP'ickup Permit 

"'Sk:ich Structur~dis;'s f~m:ProPertvlin~op:rtY'iinesfcorner~ b:-
clearly marked in field. 

s·.u. e.;r, ~c ., <X/1·-r--·'A") '9/ ~ -~ vd" l od1-o.cA~ 

If Subdivision lot : I certify that all structures, measured from the eaves, comply with setback 
requirements found in Section 72.017 of the Ordinance to Govern Subdivisions & Multi-Unit 
Structures or other applicable ordinances. 

r- - ~gryWJr~ -
OFFiCE u"SE o"Ntv-

TOTAL$ 
--, 

FEEs: 
The undersigned agrees to conform to all applicable laws of the County I 

Heated Date Paid of Watauga and the State of North Carolina; and further states all 
statements made hereon are true. ± 

lA eli~ R fr-~...__......-=-=-

I 
Recovery Fd 

Unheated Zoning/WS 
I 

Postage Floodplai n WS/Zoning I 
Permit# .-.---------------



Blank Page 
 
 

121719 BCC Meeting

178



AGENDA ITEM 7: 

BID AWARD FOR WIRELESS NETWORK SYSTEM AT THE NEW COMMUNITY 
RECREATION CENTER 

MANAGER’S COMMENTS:   
 
Mr. Drew Eggers, IT Director, will request the Board to award the wireless network bid for the 
new community recreation center.  The county received three (3) bids with SpartanTec being the 
lowest responsive bidder in the amount of $44,492.29.   
 
Board action is required to award the bid to SpartanTec in the amount $44,492.29 for the 
wireless network at the new community recreation center.   
 
  

121719 BCC Meeting

179



 

WATAUGA COUNTY Information Technologies 
 Courthouse, Suite 4  842 West King Street  Boone, North Carolina 28607  Phone (828) 265-8015 

                    FAX   (828) 265-8076 
                   TDD 1-800-735-2962 
                   Voice 1-800-735-8262 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 
TO:  Watauga County Board of Commissioners 
  Deron Geouque, County Manager 
 
FROM:  Drew Eggers, Information Technologies Director 
 
SUBJECT: Wireless Network Installation (Wifi)  
 
DATE:  December 10, 2019 
 
 
We have requested proposals for the equipment and installation of a wireless network 
system (Wifi) for the Recreation Center. 
 
We requested quotes for a fully designed system for our public wireless access. All 
design, installation, and configuration were to be done by the vendor. Wireless access 
point locations were provided by the architect, and County Maintenance would be pulling 
the (CAT6) network cables to access point locations. 
 
We received three bids on the system. We are recommending the lowest bidder whose 
quote was for $44,492.29 which includes three years of support. 
 
Thank you for your consideration of this request. 

121719 BCC Meeting

180



 Quotation
 Quote #: SM-20191120-WC

Quote Date: November 25, 2019

800 25th Ave S North Myrtle Beach, SC 29582 Quote Valid Until: December 31, 2019

Phone:  843-418-4792

  
End User Contact Information  

Name: Drew Eggers

Company : Watauga County

Address : 842 West King St Suite 4

City/St/Zip : Boone, NC 28607

Email: drew.eggers@watgov.org   

Phone #: 828.265.8015

Fax #:   

Item Qty Part # Description List Price Extended

A 1 FG-30E
FortiGate-30E, 5 x GE RJ45 ports (Including 1 x WAN port, 4 x Switch ports), Max managed 

FortiAPs (Total / Tunnel) 2 / 2
$430.00 $279.00

B 1 FC-10-0030E-247-02-36 FortiCare Contract - FortiGate-30E 3 Year 24x7 $258.00 $168.00

C 1
FS-248E-FPOE FortiSwitch-248E-FPOE, Layer 2/3 FortiGate switch controller compatible PoE+ switch with 48 x 

GE RJ45 ports, 4 x GE SFP, with automatic Max 740W POE output limit
$2,500.00 $1,625.00

D 1 FortiCare Contract - FortiSwitch-248E-FPOE 3 Year 24x7 $750.00 $487.00

E 47 Universal Indoor wireless AP - dual radio (Radio1-3x3 MIMO 2.4/5GHz 802.11 a/b/g/n @ $37,553.00 $24,409.45

450Mbps (600Mbps turbo), Radio-2 3x3 MU-MIMO 5GHz 802.11a/n/ac wave2 @ 1300Mbps 

 with TX Beam-forming and 3rd BLE radio, 2 high availability GbE RJ45 802.3at PoE ports, 

 Internal antennas, Ceiling/wall mount kit included, Power adapter not included. For Gigabit PoE 

injector order: GPI-115(limited TX power) or GPI-130 preferred or SP-FAP200-PA
F 47 FC-10-PU321-247-02-12 FortiCare Contract - FortiAP-U321EV 3 Year 24x7 $11,265.90 $7,322.84

G 6 SpartanTec Onsite Implementation (includes knowledge transfer & T/E) - 6 Days* $10,200.00 $10,200.00

*Estimate of Professional Services, Customer is billed for actually time used 

SumTotal $44,492.29

**NC Statewide IT Contract 204X, Bid/File number: IFT-40027**

 

Authorized By:

  

SpartanTec, Incorporated Scott McClung

P O Box 132 SpartanTec, Incorporated

Longs, SC  29568 Phone: 843-418-4792 x7018

Fax: 800-325-1867 Email: smcclung@spartantec.com

  

FC-10-W248E-247-02-12

FAP-U321EV-A

SPAR-CONS

Please mail all purchase orders to:

Purchase Order Terms and Conditions:

An authorized purchase order must be submitted before orders will be processed. Standard payment terms are Net 15 from the date of invoice, however all Clients are subject to a credit check and 

SpartanTec, Incorporated reserves the right to change these terms at its discretion, if credit information, amount of order, or payment history indicate that other terms would be appropriate. Pricing above 

does not include any applicable taxes, shipping charges, travel expenses, if any, and will be added and invoiced. A late payment charge of 1.5% per month will be added to any amount past due until paid in 

full. For all onsite services, Client must execute Spartan's Consulting Services Agreement and Scope of Work before services are performed.

Thank you for this opportunity to submit our quotation for your review.  We hope to be favored by your order.

121719 BCC Meeting

181

mailto:drew.eggers@watgov.org


Blank Page 
 
 

121719 BCC Meeting

182



AGENDA ITEM 8: 

TAX MATTERS  
A. Monthly Collections Report 
  

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Mr. Larry Warren, Tax Administrator, will present the Monthly Collections Report and be 
available for questions and discussion. 
 
The report is for information only; therefore, no action is required. 
 

  

121719 BCC Meeting

183



121719 BCC Meeting

184

Month!v Collections Report 

Watauga County 

Bank deposits of the following amounts have been made and credited to the account of Watauga County. The 
reported 

totals do not include small shortages and overages reported to the Watauga County Finance Officer 

Monthly Report November 2019 

Current Month Current Month Current F}:: Current FY Previous FY 
Collections Percentaze Collectiom Percenta&e Percenta&e 

General Counn: 
Taxes 2019 8,152,852.43 31.63% 18,072,442.54 50.62% 55.27% 
Prior Year Taxes 15,688.53 166,005.77 
Solid Waste User Fees 622,964.53 32.01% 1,284,169.61 48.86% 53.75% 
Green Box Fees 57.20 NA 2,809.71 NA NA 

Total County Funds $8,791,562.69 $19,525,427.63 

Fire Districts 
Foscoe Fire 112,544.34 35.46% 262,813.17 56.01% 60.02% 
Boone Fire 233,792.03 35.56% 463,768.04 52.15% 57.26% 
Fall Creek Service Dist. 2,571.35 34.31% 4,693.67 48.88% 55.19% 
Beaver Dam Fire 19,047.38 26.74% 49,847.85 48.45% 54.15% 
Stewart Simmons Fire 44,130.43 25.19% 105,584.35 44.53% 48.68% 
Zionville Fire 26,720.34 33.50% 59,582.19 52.78% 58.31% 
Cove Creek Fire 62,011.16 36.59% 131,911.37 54.76% 59.16% 
Shawneehaw Fire 22,567.06 34.25% 57,344.85 56.53% 61.59% 
Meat Camp Fire 50,409.14 33.78% 107,268.94 51.51% 60.20% 
Deep Gap Fire 44,581.68 32.62% 94,209.33 50.26% 56.17% 
Todd Fire 16,037.13 37.86% 34,933.00 56.81% 60.34% 
Blowing Rock Fire 113,500.62 34.81% 272,830.50 56.17% 61.64% 
M.C. Creston Fire 1,698.99 35.53% 2,920.20 48.48% 58.99% 
Foscoe Service District 24,890.37 45.08% 43,998.72 59.00% 61.18% 
Beech Mtn. Service Dist. 5.68 0.48% 449.37 27.05% 8.48% 
Cove Creek Service Dist. 79.00 25.32% 91.20 28.14% 28.14% 
Shawneehaw Service Disl 1,413.12 27.51% 3,379.94 48.43% 55.27% 

$773,428.47 $1,690,933.02 

Towns 
Boone 1,026,868.95 21.90% 2,270,820.38 38.22% 41.49% 
Municipal Services 11,824.75 11.11% 40,222.28 29.57% 37.64% 
BooneMV Fee NA NA NA NA NA 
Blowing Rock NA NA NA NA NA 
Seven Devils NA NA NA NA NA 
Beech Mountain NA NA NA NA NA 

Total Town Taxes $1,038,693.70 $2,311,042.66 

Total Amount Collected $10,603,684.86 $23,527,403.31 

¢1;./(k!t Tax Collections Director 

~~ Tax Administrator 



AGENDA ITEM 8: 

TAX MATTERS  
B. Refunds and Releases 
 

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Mr. Warren will present the Refunds and Releases Reports.  Board action is required to accept 
the Refunds and Releases Reports. 
 
  

121719 BCC Meeting

185



 

11/27/2019 14:57    |WATAUGA COUNTY |P      1
Larry.Warren        |RELEASES - 11/01/2019 TO 11/27/2019 |tncrarpt

 
CAT YEAR BILL EFF DATE VALUE
PROPERTY JUR

OWNER NAME AND ADDRESS REASON REF NO CHARGE AMOUNT
___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
 

  1150705 BELLSOUTH TELECOMMUNICATIONS IN         PP 2019  1000029 11/27/2019          27,602 G01                      111.24
AT&T PROPERTY TAX GROUP                 3170                    C03 
PO BOX 7207                             TAX RELEASES                  7075
BEDMINSTER, NJ 7921                     RECEIVED AN UPDATED CERTIFICATION OF    
                                        PUBLIC UTILITIES FROM NCDOR             

 
  1150705 BELLSOUTH TELECOMMUNICATIONS IN         PP 2019  1000030 11/27/2019          40,095 C02                      164.39

AT&T PROPERTY TAX GROUP                 3171                    C02 G01                      161.58
PO BOX 7207                             TAX RELEASES                  7076 _______________
BEDMINSTER, NJ 7921                     RECEIVED AN UPDATED PUBLIC UTILITY               325.97
                                        CERTIFICATION FROM NC DOR               

 
  1150705 BELLSOUTH TELECOMMUNICATIONS IN         PP 2019  1000031 11/27/2019           1,913 G01                        7.71

AT&T PROPERTY TAX GROUP                 3172                    MS1 MS1                        4.02
PO BOX 7207                             TAX RELEASES                  7077 _______________
BEDMINSTER, NJ 7921                     RECEIVED AN UPDATED PUBLIC UTILITY                11.73
                                        CERTIFICATION FROM NCDOR                

 
  1150705 BELLSOUTH TELECOMMUNICATIONS IN         PP 2019  1000032 11/27/2019             353 F12                         .18

AT&T PROPERTY TAX GROUP                 3173                    C04 G01                        1.42
PO BOX 7207                             TAX RELEASES                  7078 _______________
BEDMINSTER, NJ 7921                     RECEIVED AN UPDATED PUBLIC UTILITY                 1.60
                                        CERTIFICATION FROM NCDOR                

 
  1150705 BELLSOUTH TELECOMMUNICATIONS IN         PP 2019  1000033 11/27/2019           3,021 F02                        1.81

AT&T PROPERTY TAX GROUP                 3175                    F02 G01                       12.17
PO BOX 7207                             TAX RELEASES                  7079 _______________
BEDMINSTER, NJ 7921                     RECEIVED AN UPDATED PUBLIC UTILITY                13.98
                                        CERTIFICATION FROM NCDOR                

 
  1150705 BELLSOUTH TELECOMMUNICATIONS IN         PP 2019  1000034 11/27/2019           2,911 F10                        1.46

AT&T PROPERTY TAX GROUP                 3176                    F10 G01                       11.73
PO BOX 7207                             TAX RELEASES                  7080 _______________
BEDMINSTER, NJ 7921                     RECEIVED AN UPDATED PUBLIC UTILITY                13.19
                                        CERTIFICATION FROM NCDOR                

 
  1150705 BELLSOUTH TELECOMMUNICATIONS IN         PP 2019  1000035 11/27/2019             176 F01                         .09

AT&T PROPERTY TAX GROUP                 3177                    F01 G01                         .71
PO BOX 7207                             TAX RELEASES                  7081 _______________
BEDMINSTER, NJ 7921                     RECEIVED AN UPDATED PUBLIC UTILITY                  .80
                                        CERTIFICATION FROM NCDOR                

 
  1589567 BROWN, JASON KENNETH                    PP 2019     3227 11/27/2019               0 G01                       30.43

179 SMITH ISAACS RD                     589567999               F06 F06                        3.78
                                        TAX RELEASES                  7086 G01L                       3.04
ZIONVILLE, NC 28698-9003                sold boat 8/15/2018                     F06L                        .38
                                                                                _______________

          37.63
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

121719 BCC Meeting

186



 

11/27/2019 14:57    |WATAUGA COUNTY |P      2
Larry.Warren        |RELEASES - 11/01/2019 TO 11/27/2019 |tncrarpt

 
CAT YEAR BILL EFF DATE VALUE
PROPERTY JUR

OWNER NAME AND ADDRESS REASON REF NO CHARGE AMOUNT
___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
 

  1764364 CLARENCE DONALD BUNN FAMILY TRUST       RE 2019  1000144 11/27/2019               0 F07                       99.80
BUNN, CLARENCE DONALD                   1982-81-0584-000        F07 G01                      704.59
100 HICKORY ST W                        TAX RELEASES                  7082 _______________
403                                     PROPERTY TRANSFERRED TO RELATIVE AND             804.39
GREENVILLE, NC 27858                    NEW APPLICATION NOT NEEDED FOR P/U      

 
  1764364 CLARENCE DONALD BUNN FAMILY TRUST       RE 2019  1000145 11/27/2019               0 F07                       99.80

BUNN, CLARENCE DONALD                   1982-81-0584-000        F07 G01                      704.59
100 HICKORY ST W                        TAX RELEASES                  7083 _______________
403                                     PROPERTY TRANSFERRED TO RELATIVE AND             804.39
GREENVILLE, NC 27858                    NEW APPLICATION NOT NEEDED FOR P/U      

 
  1764364 CLARENCE DONALD BUNN FAMILY TRUST       RE 2019  1000146 11/27/2019               0 F07                       99.80

BUNN, CLARENCE DONALD                   1982-81-0584-000        F07 G01                      624.75
100 HICKORY ST W                        TAX RELEASES                  7084 _______________
403                                     PROPERTY TRANSFERRED TO RELATIVE AND             724.55
GREENVILLE, NC 27858                    NEW APPLICATION NOT NEEDED FOR P/U      

 
  1791743 CONNER, DAVID                           PP 2019     1369 11/27/2019               0 F12                        1.05

CONNER, DONNA                           2948                    F12 G01                        8.46
6910 DOLPHIN CT                         TAX RELEASES                  7089 SWF                       80.00
                                        BILLED ON ACCOUNT 1576131               _______________
SHERRILLS FORD, NC 28673                                                                  89.51

 
  1513290 DEER VALLEY RACQUET CLUB                PP 2019     2487 11/27/2019               0 G01                       64.00

P O BOX 2626                            513290999               C02 C02                       65.11
                                        TAX RELEASES                  7100 _______________
BOONE, NC 286072626                     SOLD TO DJS ASSOCIATES                           129.11

 
  1799330 GENEVA CAPITAL LLC                      PP 2019     1513 11/27/2019               0 F02                        8.44

630 N CENTRAL EXPY STE A                3105                    F02 G01                       56.66
                                        REFUND RELEASE                7099 _______________
PLANO, TX 75074-6897                    COMPANY REQUEST BILLING TO LESSEE                 65.10

 
  1644078 LUNSFORD, BRUCE JAMES                   PP 2019     1419 11/27/2019           5,090 F05                        4.33

LUNSFORD, DONNA D                       3002                    F05 G01                       20.51
22 BROOKSIDE CIR APT 3                  TAX RELEASES                  7096 SWF                      160.00
                                        MH STORAGE ONLY-3 MH BILLED ON ANOTHER  _______________
CANDLER, NC 28715                       ACCOUNT                                          184.84

 
  1591690 MARTIN, ELIZABETH                       RE 2019    38213 11/27/2019               0 FX9                         .50

MARTIN, LINDA ANNE                      2905-63-2074-000        FX9 G01                        4.03
820 MERRIE RD                           TAX RELEASES                  7090 _______________
                                        CLERICAL ERROR                                     4.53
RALEIGH, NC 27606-2704                                                          

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

121719 BCC Meeting

187



 

11/27/2019 14:57    |WATAUGA COUNTY |P      3
Larry.Warren        |RELEASES - 11/01/2019 TO 11/27/2019 |tncrarpt

 
CAT YEAR BILL EFF DATE VALUE
PROPERTY JUR

OWNER NAME AND ADDRESS REASON REF NO CHARGE AMOUNT
___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
 

  1581229 MCMAHON, ROBERT EDWARD                  RE 2019    30864 11/27/2019          72,700 F02                       43.62
926 FRIENDSHIP CHURCH RD                2829-54-6514-000        F02 G01                      292.98
                                        TAX RELEASES                  7097 _______________
BOONE, NC 28607                         INCORRECT NEIGHBORHOOD CODE                      336.60

 
  1552568 NYE, THEODORE S                         RE 2019    14453 11/27/2019               0 F08                       27.25

PO BOX 2320                             1960-06-5239-000        F08 G01                      219.64
                                        TAX RELEASES                  7091 _______________
BANNER ELK, NC 28604                    PROPERTY WAS COMBINED AND BILLED UNDER           246.89
                                        NEW PARCEL NUMBERS                      

 
  1552568 NYE, THEODORE S                         RE 2019    14455 11/27/2019               0 F08                         .25

PO BOX 2320                             1960-06-6194-000        F08 G01                        2.02
                                        TAX RELEASES                  7093 _______________
BANNER ELK, NC 28604                    PROPERTY WAS COMBINED AND BILLED UNDER             2.27
                                        NEW PARCEL NUMBERS                      

 
  1552568 NYE, THEODORE S                         RE 2019    14457 11/27/2019               0 F08                        7.95

PO BOX 2320                             1960-06-7289-000        F08 G01                       64.08
                                        TAX RELEASES                  7094 _______________
BANNER ELK, NC 28604                    PROPERTY WAS COMBINED AND BILLED UNDER            72.03
                                        NEW PARCEL NUMBERS                      

 
  1552568 NYE, THEODORE S                         RE 2019    14458 11/27/2019               0 F08                       20.15

PO BOX 2320                             1960-06-8126-000        F08 G01                      162.41
                                        TAX RELEASES                  7092 _______________
BANNER ELK, NC 28604                    PROPERTY WAS COMBINED AND BILLED UNDER           182.56
                                        NEW PARCEL NUMBERS                      

 
  1791233 SUDDRETH, MELANIE DAVIS                 RE 2019  1000143 11/27/2019               0 F07                       99.80

DAVIS, MICHAEL ROLAND                   1982-81-0584-000        F07 G01                      804.39
10207 BENS WAY                          TAX RELEASES                  7085 _______________
                                        PROPERTY TRANSFERRED TO RELATIVE AND             904.19
MANASSAS, VA 20110                      NEW APPLICATION NOT NEEDED FOR P/U      

 
  1158401 TENNANT, JAMES                          PP 2019     2141 11/27/2019               0 G01                        2.02

201 DEVONSHIRE LANE                     343061400               F09 F09                         .25
                                        TAX RELEASES                  7087 SWF                       80.00
GREENVILLE, SC 29617                    REMOVED MOBILE HOME 2016                G01L                        .20
                                                                                F09L                        .03

_______________
          82.50

 
DETAIL SUMMARY COUNT: 23    RELEASES - TOTAL         153,861        5,149.60

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

121719 BCC Meeting

188



 

11/27/2019 14:57    |WATAUGA COUNTY |P      4
Larry.Warren        |RELEASES - 11/01/2019 TO 11/27/2019 |tncrarpt

 
   RELEASES - CHARGE SUMMARY FOR ALL CLERKS

 
YEAR CAT CHARGE AMOUNT

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 

2019 RE F02   BOONE FIRE RE                           43.62
2019 RE F07   COVE CREEK FIRE RE                     399.20
2019 RE F08   SHAWNEEHAW FIRE RE                      55.60
2019 RE FX9   MEAT CAMP/CRESTON SERV DIST RE             .50
2019 RE G01   WATAUGA COUNTY RE                    3,583.48
2019 PP C02   BOONE PP                               229.50
2019 PP F01   FOSCOE FIRE PP                            .09
2019 PP F02   BOONE FIRE PP                           10.25
2019 PP F05   STEWART SIMMONS FIRE PP                  4.33
2019 PP F06   ZIONVILLE FIRE PP                        3.78
2019 PP F06L  ZIONVILLE FIRE LATE LIST                  .38
2019 PP F09   MEAT CAMP FIRE PP                         .25
2019 PP F09L  MEAT CAMP FIRE LATE LIST                  .03
2019 PP F10   DEEP GAP FIRE PP                         1.46
2019 PP F12   BLOWING ROCK FIRE PP                     1.23
2019 PP G01   WATAUGA COUNTY PP                      488.64
2019 PP G01L  WATAUGA COUNTY LATE LIST                 3.24
2019 PP MS1   BOONE MUNICIPAL SERV DIST PP             4.02
2019 PP SWF   SANITATION USER FEE                    320.00

_______________
2019 TOTAL        5,149.60

 
SUMMARY TOTAL        5,149.60

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

121719 BCC Meeting

189



 

11/27/2019 14:57    |WATAUGA COUNTY |P      5
Larry.Warren        |RELEASES - 11/01/2019 TO 11/27/2019 |tncrarpt

 
   RELEASES - JURISDICTION SUMMARY FOR ALL CLERKS

 
JUR  YEAR CHARGE AMOUNT

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 

C02 2019 C02   BOONE PP                               229.50
C02 2019 G01   WATAUGA COUNTY PP                      225.58

_______________
C02 TOTAL          455.08

 
C03 2019 G01   WATAUGA COUNTY PP                      111.24

_______________
C03 TOTAL          111.24

 
C04 2019 F12   BLOWING ROCK FIRE PP                      .18
C04 2019 G01   WATAUGA COUNTY PP                        1.42

_______________
C04 TOTAL            1.60

 
F01 2019 F01   FOSCOE FIRE PP                            .09
F01 2019 G01   WATAUGA COUNTY PP                         .71

_______________
F01 TOTAL             .80

 
F02 2019 F02   BOONE FIRE PP                           53.87
F02 2019 G01   WATAUGA COUNTY PP                      361.81

_______________
F02 TOTAL          415.68

 
F05 2019 F05   STEWART SIMMONS FIRE PP                  4.33
F05 2019 G01   WATAUGA COUNTY PP                       20.51
F05 2019 SWF   SANITATION USER FEE                    160.00

_______________
F05 TOTAL          184.84

 
F06 2019 F06   ZIONVILLE FIRE PP                        3.78
F06 2019 F06L  ZIONVILLE FIRE LATE LIST                  .38
F06 2019 G01   WATAUGA COUNTY PP                       30.43
F06 2019 G01L  WATAUGA COUNTY LATE LIST                 3.04

_______________
F06 TOTAL           37.63

 
F07 2019 F07   COVE CREEK FIRE RE                     399.20
F07 2019 G01   WATAUGA COUNTY RE                    2,838.32

_______________
F07 TOTAL        3,237.52

 
F08 2019 F08   SHAWNEEHAW FIRE RE                      55.60
F08 2019 G01   WATAUGA COUNTY RE                      448.15

_______________
F08 TOTAL          503.75

 
F09 2019 F09   MEAT CAMP FIRE PP                         .25
F09 2019 F09L  MEAT CAMP FIRE LATE LIST                  .03
F09 2019 G01   WATAUGA COUNTY PP                        2.02
F09 2019 G01L  WATAUGA COUNTY LATE LIST                  .20
F09 2019 SWF   SANITATION USER FEE                     80.00

_______________
F09 TOTAL           82.50

 
F10 2019 F10   DEEP GAP FIRE PP                         1.46

121719 BCC Meeting

190



 

11/27/2019 14:57    |WATAUGA COUNTY |P      6
Larry.Warren        |RELEASES - 11/01/2019 TO 11/27/2019 |tncrarpt

 
   RELEASES - JURISDICTION SUMMARY FOR ALL CLERKS

 
JUR  YEAR CHARGE AMOUNT

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 

F10 2019 G01   WATAUGA COUNTY PP                       11.73
_______________

F10 TOTAL           13.19
 

F12 2019 F12   BLOWING ROCK FIRE PP                     1.05
F12 2019 G01   WATAUGA COUNTY PP                        8.46
F12 2019 SWF   SANITATION USER FEE                     80.00

_______________
F12 TOTAL           89.51

 
FX9 2019 FX9   MEAT CAMP/CRESTON SERV DIST RE            .50
FX9 2019 G01   WATAUGA COUNTY RE                        4.03

_______________
FX9 TOTAL            4.53

 
MS1 2019 G01   WATAUGA COUNTY PP                        7.71
MS1 2019 MS1   BOONE MUNICIPAL SERV DIST PP             4.02

_______________
MS1 TOTAL           11.73

 
SUMMARY TOTAL        5,149.60

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

121719 BCC Meeting

191



Blank Page 
 
 

121719 BCC Meeting

192



AGENDA ITEM 9: 

PROPOSED CONTRACT FOR DESIGN BUILD SERVICES FOR THE ADMINISTRATION 
AND COURTHOUSE ROOFS 

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
The Board approved staff to enter into a contract with Muter Construction Company for design-
build services for the new roofs on the Administration and Courthouse facilities.  The County 
Attorney has reviewed the contract and has forwarded his changes; therefore, the draft contract 
will be in final format on Monday, December 16, 2019.   Staff will email once the contract is 
received.  The reason for the addition is due to the January 7, 2019 meeting cancellation.  Mr. 
Marsh, Maintenance Director, will present the contract for design of the facilities in the amount 
of $72,051.  Upon completion of the design; Muter Construction will be required to build the 
roof replacements within the budgeted amount of $907,737.  If they are unable to bring the 
project within the budget the County will bid the project out with the plans created by Muter 
Construction.   
 
Board action will be requested to approve the contract with Muter Construction Company in the 
amount of $72,051 for design services.  An amendment to the contract for the construction phase 
of the project will be forthcoming upon both parties agreeing to the preliminary design work and 
project budget. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

121719 BCC Meeting

193



121719 BCC Meeting

194

TO: 

FROM: 

DATE: 

RE: 

WATAUGA COUNTY 
MAINTENANCE DEPARTMENT 

274 Winklers Creek Road, Suite B, Boone, NC 28607 - Phone (828) 264- 1430 
Fax (828) 264-1473 

Deron Geouque, County Manager 

Robert Marsh, Maintenance Director 

December 13, 2019 

Com1house and Administration Roof Replacement Project 

BACKGROUND 
On October 1, 2019, the Watauga County Board of County Commissioners awarded 
Muter Construction Company the contract for providing Design-Build (DB) services for 
roof replacements at the Courthouse and Administration buildings pending review and 
approval of the form of contract. The County Attorney and staff have reviewed the 
agreement, and their concerns have been incorporated into the document. 

CONTRACT SUMMARY 
The DB agreement assigns responsibility to the DB firm, Muter Construction, for design 
and construction of a metal sloped roof for the Com1house and a metal roof replacement 
for the Administration Building. The DB firm will produce a preliminary design based 
upon the County' s description of the scope of work and the contractor's research into 
existing building conditions, materials and project budget. A final working drawing will 
be made provided all pat1ies are in agreement with the preliminary design work. The DB 
contractor will submit a GMP, project schedule and construction agreement using the 
Design-Build Amendment referenced in the agreement for the Board's approval in early 
2020. The County will be responsible to compensate the DB firm $72,051 plus 
reimbursables should the County desire to not enter the construction phase of the project. 

RECOMMENDATION 
Staff has reviewed and recommends the County enter into the Design-Build agreement 
with Muter Construction. If approved, Muter will begin design and project completion is 
scheduled for fall 2020. 



AGENDA ITEM 10: 

PROPOSED AMENDMENT TO AUDIT CONTRACT 

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Attached is a copy of a contract amendment to the fiscal year 2019 audit with Gould Killian CPA 
Group, PA.  The amendment is due to the audit manager being out on paternity leave and not 
being able to meet the LGC’s deadline.    
  
Board approval is requested for an amended contract to extend the due date to January 15, 2020. 
 

  

121719 BCC Meeting

195



                 W A T A U G A   C O U N T Y 
                               FINANCE OFFICE 
 814 West King St., Room 216 - Boone, NC  28607  - Phone (828) 265-8007  Fax (828) 265-8006 
 
 
 
M E M O R A N D U M     
 
 
 TO:  Deron Geouque, County Manager 
 FROM: Misty Watson, Finance Director 
 SUBJECT: Gould Gillian CPA Group, PA Contract for FY 2019  
 DATE: December 11, 2019 
 
 
Attached is a copy of a contract amendment to the fiscal year 2019 audit with Gould 
Killian CPA Group, PA.  The amendment is due to the audit manager being out on 
paternity leave and not being able to meet the LGC’s deadline.   
 
Board approval is requested for an amended contract to extend the due date to January 
15, 2020. 

121719 BCC Meeting

196



121719 BCC Meeting

197

LGC-205 Amendment AMENDMENT TO CONTRACT TO AUDIT ACCOUNTS 

Whereas Primary Government Unit 

Watauga County 
and Discretely Presented Component Unit (DPCU) (if applicable) 

and Auditor 

Gould Killian CPA Group, P.A. 

Rev. 7/2019 

entered into a contract in which the Auditor agreed to audit the accounts of the Primary 
Government Unit and DPCU (if applicable) 

for 
I 

Fiscal Year Ending 

06/30/19 and originally due on 
Audit Report Due Date 

10/31/19 

hereby agree that it is now necessary that the contract be modified as follows. 

[ZJ Modification to due date: 
Original due date Modified due date 

10/31/19 01/15/20 
Original fee Modified fee 

D Modification to fee: 

EXPLANATION OF MODIFIED CONTRACT TERMS 

. . Please provide an explanation for the modification to due date and/or fees . 

Extension of due date necessary due to paternity leave taken by Audit Manager in mid-October. 

If the amendment is submitted to extend the due date, please indicate the steps the unit 
and auditor will take to prevent late filing of audits in subsequent years. 

Will not be a recurring issue. 

By their signatures on the following pages, the Auditor, the Primary Government Unit, and 
the DPCU (if applicable), agree to these modified terms. 

Page 1 of 3 



121719 BCC Meeting

198

LGC-205 Amended AMENDMENT TO CONTRACT TO AUDIT ACCOUNTS 

SIGNATURE PAGE 

AUDIT FIRM 

Audit Firm* 
Gould Killian CPA Group, P.A. 

Authorized Firm Representative* (typed or printed) Signature* 
Daniel R. Mullinix ""11/:'~'7 

Date* 
12/11/19 

ss 
dmullinix@ gk -cpa. com 

GOVERNMENTAL UNIT 

Governmental Unit* 
Watauga County 

Date Primary Government Unit Governing Board Approved 
Amended Audit Contract* (If required by governing board policy) 

Mayor/Chairperson* (typed or printed) Signature* 

Date Email Address 

Chair of Audit ~ommittee (typed or printed, or "NA") Signature 

0 A-
Date Email Address 

GOVERNMENTAL UNIT- PRE-AUDIT CERTIFICATE 

Rev. 7/2019 

*ONLY REQUIRED IF FEES ARE MODIFIED IN THE AMENDED CONTRACT* 
(Pre-audit certificate not required for charter schools or hospitals) 

Required by G.S. 159-28(a1) or G.S. 115C-441(a1) 

This instrument has been pre-audited in the manner required by The Local Government 
Budget and Fiscal Control Act or by the School Budget and Fisca/Control Act. 

Page 2 of 3 



121719 BCC Meeting

199

LGC-205 Amended AMENDMENT TO CONTRACT TO AUDIT ACCOUNTS 

DPCU tJ(A-

SIGNATURE PAGE- DPCU 
(complete only if applicable) 

DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNIT 

Date DPCU Governing Board Approved 
Amended Audit Contract (If required by governing board policy) 

DPCU Chairperson (typed or printed) Signature 

Date Email Address 

Chair of Audit Committee (typed or printed, or "NA") Signature 

Date Email Address 

DPCU -PRE-AUDIT CERTIFICATE 

Rev. 7/2019 

*ONLY REQUIRED IF FEES ARE MODIFIED IN THE AMENDED CONTRACT* 
(Pre-audit certificate not required for charter schools or h9spitals) 

Required by G.S. 159-28(a1) or G.S. 115C-441 (a1) 

This instrument has been pre-audited in the manner required by The Local Government 
Budget and Fiscal Control Act or by the School Budget and Fiscal Control Act. 

DPCU Finance Officer (typed or printed) Signature 

Date of Pre-Audit Certificate Email Address 

Page 3 of 3 



Blank Page 
 
 

121719 BCC Meeting

200



AGENDA ITEM 11: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
A. Cove Creek Preservation and Development (CCP&D) Request to Remove Trees at Old 
Cove Creek School 
 

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
The Cove Creek Preservation and Development Association is requesting permission from the 
Board to remove the trees at the Old Cove Creek School.  They have contacted an arborist to 
examine the trees and his recommendation is to remove the trees.  Per the lease with the County, 
approval from the Board of Commissioners is required before any trees over the diameter of 6 
inches can be removed.  The arborist’s report is attached. 
 
Staff seeks direction from the Board.   
 
 
 
  

121719 BCC Meeting

201



0F.HH�7UHH�6HUYLFH�,1&
�����2OG�%HHFK�0RXQWDLQ�5RDG
(ON�3DUN�1&������
������������

��������

'DYLG�7\QHU
&RYH�&UHHN�3�DQG�'
32�%R[����
6XJDU�*URYH�1&������

'HDU�'DYLG�7\QHU

5HFHQWO\�,�PHHW�ZLWK�\RX�DW�WKH�ROG�&RYH�&UHHN�6FKRRO�FRPSOH[���'XULQJ�WKLV�PHHWLQJ�ZH�
VSRNH�DERXW�WKH�WZR�PDSOH�WUHHV�LQ�IURQW�RI�WKH�EXLOGLQJ���,�UHFRPPHQG�WKH�UHPRYDO�RI�WKHVH�
WUHHV�GXH�WR�WKH�IDFW�WKDW�WKHVH�WUHHV�SRVH�D�JUHDWHU�OLDELOLW\�WKHQ�DQ�DVVHW�WR�WKH�FRPSOH[���
7KHVH�PDSOH�WUHHV�KDYH�EHHQ�LPSURSHUO\�SUXQHG�RYHU�WKH�ODVW�WZHQW\�SOXV�\HDUV�

7KH�PDSOH�WUHHV�KDYH�EHHQ�FRQWLQXRXVO\�WRSSHG�ZKLFK�ILUVW�FXWV�WKH�H[SHFWHG�WUHHV�OLIH�LQ�
KDOI���7KH�WRSSLQJ�RI�WKHVH�WUHHV�KDV�EHHQ�GRQH�DW�OHDVW�IRXU�WLPHV�WKDW�,�FDQ�VHH���:KHQ�D�
WUHH�LV�WRSSHG�WKH�WUHH�UHDFWV�E\�SURGXFLQJ�ZDWHU�VSURXWV��WKHVH�ZDWHU�VSURXWV�JURZ�DW�D�
IDVWHU�UDWH�WKHQ�WKH�QRUPDO�EUDQFK�GXH�WR�WKH�WUHH�WU\LQJ�WR�FUHDWH�PRUH�SODFHV�IRU�OHDI�
SURGXFWLRQ��7KHVH�IDVWHU�JURZLQJ�EUDQFKHV�DUH�QRW�DV�VWURQJ�DV�QRUPDO�EUDQFKHV�DV�ZHOO���
$QRWKHU�LVVXH�WKDW�LV�FUHDWHG�ZLWK�WRSSLQJ�RI�WKHVH�WUHHV�LV�WKDW�QRW�DOO�RI�WKH�SUHYLRXV�
WRSSLQJ�FXWV�KHDOHG�SURSHUO\���7KHVH�LPSURSHU�KHDOLQJ�RI�WRSSLQJ�FXWV�OHDG�WR�GHFD\�ZLWKLQ�
WKH�VWHP�RI�WKH�WUHH���7KLV�GHFD\�LV�VRPHWLPHV�KDUG�WR�VHH�XQWLO�D�OHDG�RU�EUDQFK�KDV�IDOOLQJ�
RXW�WKH�WUHH�

7KHVH�WUHHV�DUH�EHDXWLIXO�EXW�DIWHU�IXUWKHU�LQVSHFWLRQ�WKHVH�WUHHV�FRXOG�FDXVH�LQMXU\�WR�DQ�
REMHFW�RU�HYHQ�D�SHUVRQ�

6LQFHUHO\��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
6HDQ�0F.HH�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
3UHVLGHQW��0F.HH�7UHH�6HUYLFH�,6$�&HUWLILHG�$UERULVW������$����

121719 BCC Meeting

202



121719 BCC Meeting

203



121719 BCC Meeting

204

required by Article 12 of Chapter 160A of the General Statutes ofNorth Carolina; and 

WHEREAS, the parties hereto wish to amend the Lease Agreement to incorporate 
the extension of the lease term for a period often (10) years through, and including, May 
6, 2029. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and of the mutual 
covenants and benefits contained herein and recited in the Lease Agreement, as amended, 
as stated herein, the Lessor and Lessee agree as follows: 

1. The lease term shall be extended for a period often (10) years commencing 
on May 7, 2019 and ending on May 6, 2029. 

2. Section 16 of the lease regarding "notice" is amended as follows: 

Lessee: 

Lessor: 

Cove Creek Preservation and Development, Inc. 
253 William Iffiftiy ~fast R:ead Po 8o )( 31./ 'I 
Sugar Grove, NC 28679 

Watauga County Manager 
Watauga County Administration Building 
814 W. King Street, Room 205 
Boone, NC 28607 

Section 19 is hereby added to the lease. 

No Cutting of Trees: The Lessee shall not cut, trim or remove any trees of a 
diameter of six ( 6) inches or more without the prior written consent of the 
Lessor. 

3. Except as amended herein, the Lease Agreement and amendments as stated 
herein, remain in full force and effect. 

REMAINDER OF TIDS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

Prepared by: di Santi Watson Capua Wilson & Garrett, PLLC 
P. 0. Box 193, Boone, NC 28607 



AGENDA ITEM 11: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
B. Request to Surplus Turner Property House 
 

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
The County advertised the sale of the Turner house and outbuilding located at 136 N. Water 
Street, PIN #2900-79-8884-000.  Bids were accepted until Tuesday, October 29, 2019; however 
no bids were received for the house and outbuilding.  Staff has obtained a demolition permit 
from the Town of Boone.  Demolition would occur after the Turner Law Office vacates the 
premises in April.  The building needs to be surplused for demolition or any future sale.    
 
Board direction is requested to surplus the buildings and property located at 136 North Water 
Street. 
 
 
  

121719 BCC Meeting

205



 1 

REQUEST FOR BIDS – HOUSE 
(MUST BE REMOVED FROM PROPERTY) 

 
 
 The Watauga County Board of Commissioners will be accepting sealed bids for 

the sale of a house and outbuilding located at 136 N. Water Street, Boone, NC, PIN 

#2900798884000.   Each bid shall be accompanied by a bid deposit of five percent (5%) 

of the amount of the bid.  A bid deposit may take the form of cash, a cashier’s check, or a 

certified check.  The County will return the deposit on any bid not accepted, and will 

return the deposit on an offer subject to upset if a qualifying higher bid is received.  If the 

bidder refuses at any time to close the sale, the deposit will be forfeited to the County.  

The County will return the deposit of the final bidder at closing.  If a bid is accepted by 

the Board as the initial offer it shall be subject to the upset bid process.   

  The successful bidder will be responsible for removing this house from the 

property by April 30, 2020.  All cost for demolition and removal of the structures will be 

the responsibility of the bidder. 

 The Watauga County Board of Commissioners in its sole discretion, reserves the 

right to reject any or all bids received at any time for the property or to negotiate with one 

or more bidders. 

 All bids shall be addressed to the Watauga County Board of Commissioners at 

814 West King Street, Boone, NC 28607.  Bids shall be marked, “136 N. Water Street 

Property.”  Bids will be accepted until 5:00 p.m., Tuesday, October 29, 2019.    

 This property will be open for inspection 1:00 p.m. – 4:00 p.m., October 17 and 

18, 2019.  For additional information contact Deron Geouque, Watauga County Manager, 

at 828-265-8000. 

121719 BCC Meeting

206



AGENDA ITEM 11: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
C. Sheriff’s Office Vehicle Purchase Request 
 

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
In August, the Board approved auto bids from Ross Automotive for five (5) new 2020 Dodge 
Durango AWD SUVs for $28,859 per unit; two (2) 2020 Dodge Chargers AWD sedans for 
$23,971 per unit; and one (1) 2020 Jeep Grand Cherokee AWD SUV for $26,392 per unit.  The 
Sheriff’s Office recently received details that the two (2) 2020 Dodge Chargers AWD sedans 
were not available due to Ross Automotive’s failure to place the order and the vehicles no longer 
being available.  However, due to their error Ross Automotive has agreed to supply at a $542 
reduction from the original contracted price two (2) new 2020 Dodge Durango AWD SUVs in 
lieu of the sedans.   
 
Board action is required to approve the purchase of two (2) new 2020 Dodge Durango AWD 
SUVs in the amount of $28,317 in lieu of the sedans.   
 
  

121719 BCC Meeting

207



121719 BCC Meeting

208

WATAUGA CouNTY SHERIFF's OFFICE 

184 HODGES GAP ROAD 
BOONE, NORTH CAROLINA 28607 

(828) 264-3761 • FAX (828) 263-5345 

, -, ', ~ 

To: Deron Geouque- Watauga County Manager 

LEN D. HAGAMAN, JR. 
SHERIFF 

From: Major Kelly Redmon DEC 1 0 2019 

Ref: Vehicle purchase approval 

On August 20, 2019 the Watauga County Commissioners approved the purchase of Law Enforcement 

vehicles from Ross Automotive of Boone, NC. 

The approval was for 1 Jeep Grand Cherokee, 5 Dodge Durangos, and 2 Dodge Chargers. 

The order was place via a purchase order with Ross Automotive on August 26, 2019. As the vehicles 

were being delivered it was discovered that Ross Automotive had failed to order the Dodge Charger 

sedans. 

Due to a shortage of Dodge sedan production components, there are none available; and the ability to 

place an order for these vehicles has been cut off. We have searched other dealerships around NC as 

well as other states; there are no sedans available for purchase. 

WCSO request board approval cancel the order of the sedans, and request approval to purchase 2 

Dodge Durangos in place of the Dodge sedans that were approved in August from Ross Automotive. 

Ross Automotive has reduced the price of each of the Durangos by $542 .00 each as a small concession 

for the oversight on their part. 

The price of the Durangos quoted by Ross is $28,317.00 each . There is funding in the FY 2019-20 budget 

for the purchase of these vehicles. 



121719 BCC Meeting

209

Kelly Redmon 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 
Attachments: 

Hey Mr. Redmon, 

Josh Ward < rossautojosh@gmail.com > 

Wednesday, December 04, 2019 2:29 PM 

Kelly Redmon 
Durango Quotes 
Watauga Quote.pdf 

In this email I attached the build sheets and sample purchase order quotes for one DB Black and one Destroyer 
Grey Durango. Both quotes match state contract pricing, but to sweeten the deal I am going to cover the cost of 
installing rear vinyl seats on both vehicles. With the additional discounts and free vinyl you will save an 
additional $542.00 on each Durango over the last purchase. Please let me know if you have any questions. 

Josh Ward 

1 



121719 BCC Meeting

210

DATE: ______ ________ _ 

STK#---------------

SALESPERSON: ____________ _ 

PURCHASER / LESSEE DL# - -------

PURCHASE OR LEASE 

RU~~ 
AUTOMOTIVE 

2282 HI GHWAY JOSS 
BOONE, NC 28607 

828.264 .3626 

PHONE (H) _ ____________ _ 

PHONE (B) _____________ _ 

SOURCE ______________ _ 

PURCHASER / LESSEE DLII _______ __ _ 

EMAIL ADDRESS 

Purchaser I Lessee --------------------006 ______ _ SS# ------------

Co-Purchaser I Lessee ---- --------------- 006 _______ SS# ------------

Physical Address ______________________________ County ________ __ _ 

PO.Box _____ -r~~-------------=---------- · 
Year '2 0 2 0 Make _,])~o~J..':..C:J-'I-"-'-=-----Model~])~u"-'r'-'<V!=..,p1>1L_ ____ Body_LG........._-'-'/ ,,_· C<.....~;E:.~- Cyl_ b _ 

Color B /c.. c..-/( Trim Color _£'-"--, luv"'t"-'r'---_ __ VIn_~);-fF"-"l.c.~.C_...:V.=.~'-'dl=!l'-'r:.._ _______ Miles ______ _ 

Trade-In Uen Holder (1) Trade-In Uon Holder (2) MSRP Before Discount ~t: .'36S. ~ 
Lender Lender Discount 

-
Address Address MSRP 

Dealer-Installed Equipment; - -· 
Acct. II Acct. # 

Phone# Phone# 

Pay Off Amt. Pay Off Ami. 1/:_, .. t ir...- )e&.•~ I' I' t.r_ 

GoodTh~h Good Through Total Cash Price Q..g, /04. . ~ 
Dally Rate Daily Rate Trade Allowance 

Talked W/ Talked W/ Difference 

Date: 'llme: Date: lime: Sales Tax 

Special Directions: I Cancellallons: Adm. Fee 499.00 

Inspection Fee /J.~ 
Tag Fee I Transfer 

(Tag# /Inspection Fee 

The Accessories end/or Service Sub Total 
Agreements listed below are Non Mopar 

products and are not warranlied by Payoff on Trade 

Chrysler Corporation: Rebate Type: --
Sub Total 

I UNDERSTAND THAT IF THE ACTUAL Depos~ 

UEN PAYOFF IS GREATER THAN THE 

AMOUNT ESTIMATED, I WILL BE -· 
RESPONSIBLE FOR PAYING THE Cash on Delivery (Chk# l28'J/7.~i) 
DIFFERENCE. -

Note: Dale Due 

X X Amount to be Fine. I Loase 

(Customer Sfgnsturo) (Customer S/gnsture) 

TRADE INFORMATION 2nd TRADE INFORMATION 

YEAR MAKE MODEL 

COLOR TRIM COLOR 

VIN 

MILES 

INSURANCE CO: 

POL# 

AGENT: 

ADDRESS: 

COL. OED: COMP. OED: 

EFF. DATE: EXP. DATE: PHONE: 

TALKED WI: DATE: TIME: BY: 

YEAR MAKE MODEL 

COLOR TRIM COLOR 

VIN 

MILES 

THE ONLY WARRANTIES APPLYING TO THIS VEHICLE ARE THOSE OFFERED 

BY THE MANUFACTUREil . THE SELLING DEALER HEREBY EXPRESSLY 

DISCLAIMS ALL WARRANTIES, EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING 

ANY IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A 

PARTICULAR PURPOSE, AND NEITHER ASSUMES NOR AUTHORIZES ANY 

OTHER PERSON TO ASSUME FOR IT ANY LIABILITY IN CONNECTION WITH 

THE SALE OF THIS VEHICLE. BUYER SHALL NOT BE ENTITLED TO RECOVER 

FROM THE SELLING DEALER ANY CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES, DAMAGES 

TO PROPERTY, DAMAGES FOR LOSS OF USE, LOSS OF TIME, LOSS OF 

PROFITS, OR INCOME, OR ANY OTHER INCIDENTAL DAMAGES. 

THE MANUFACTURER'S WARRANTY HAS BEEN FULLY EXPLAINED TO ME, 

AND I FULlY UNDERSTAND THIS WARRANTY. 

Purchaser ag1eea that this Order Include& all of the term' and conditloos on both tho fac11 and rovorao ha,col. that tnls Ordo1 cancels and supe1aedes MY o!he1 agreemen1 and as ol U1e dote he1eol 
comprlseo the oomplete and eKclualva atatement of the agreement relaUng to the subjocl matte1s cove1ed hereby, anothat th\5 Order shal not become bind;,..g untl1 accepled by the Deeter or his authorized 
representative. In the avant olal!me ule, Oaaler aha II not be obligated lo soli uniQ approval ol the lt'llms he1eol Is given by a bank or fin anti! company williflg to rurchose a retail installment ccntract between 
the patttes helelo baaed on euch torms, Pu,cheser, by execullon of this Order, cor1111es that ho/she Is ol tegal age to execute binding conl!acts In lhis Slate ;~;nd ::u.lmowledyes \hal he/she has read lis terms 
and condltloni and has received a 1/ue copy olthl& Order. 

X X 
Oeeler J AuUlOJtzed RepreUinlatlvo Date P'Ui"Ch.isa1 /lessao Signature (s) Dale 



121719 BCC Meeting

211

DATE: ______________ _ KU~S PHONE (H) 
STK# ______________ _ 

AU'lf' O~.II:O'l'iVJE PHONE (B) 

SALESPERSON: ____________ _ 
2282!-I IGHWAY lOSS SOURCE 

PURCHASER I LESSEE DL# ________ _ BOONE, NC 28607 PURCHASER I LESSEE DL# 
828.264.3626 

EMAIL ADDRESS PURCHASE OR LEASE 

Purchaser I Lessee --------------------OOB SS# 

Co-Purchaser I Lessee------------------- 008 SS# 

Physical Address _____________________________ _ County 

Uvrg-:~.'ja 
P.O.Box ______ ~--------------.~----------

Year 1 P'). 0 Make ~P.JL.!.o"'cJ~r~£-==-:=------ Model ?o/'re Body 

Vin S'::>ec. Dreier Miles 
I 

colorVcf-fro1 f r G ,d'{frim Color _.5:'-<:..LI-"Cv..::f_,_/" ___ _ 

-t---"'-'"--'-""'--- Cyl __£ 

Trade-In Uan Holder (1) Trada-ln Uan Holdor (2) MSRP Before Discount ~b,3b5'~ 
l ander Lender Discount 

Address Address MSRP ---- -
Dealer·lnstalled Equipment: 

Acct. # Acct. # 

Phone# Phone# 

Pay Off Ami . Pay Off Amt. V :/"1 1.1 I Ktc.r .S: .1... r~ /t1J' . 

Good Through Good Through Total Cash Pr16e 1_ g / DL( :!!2 
Dally Rate Daily Rate Trade Allowance 

Talked W/ Talked W/ Difference 

Date: lime: Date: Time: Sales Tax 

Special Dlrecllons: I Cancellallons: Adm. Fee 499.00 
Inspection Fee j_3_~ 
Tag Fee I Transfer 

(Tag# I Inspection Fee 

The Accessories and/or Service Sub Total 
Agreements listed below are Non Mopar 

products and are not warrantied by Payoff on Trade 

Chrysler CorporaUon : Rebate Type: 

Sub Total 

I UNDERSTAND THAT IF THE ACTUAL Deposit 
LIEN PAYOFF IS GREATER THAN THE 

AMO U NT ESTIMATED, I Will BE 

RESPONSIBLE FOR PAYING T HE Cash on Delivery (Chk# l23' '3 /7 
0 

DIFFERENCE. 
Note: Dato Due 

X X Amount to be Fine. /lease 

(Customer Signature) (Customer Signature) 

TRADE INFORMATION 2nd TRADE INFORMATION 

YEAR MAKE MODEL 

COLOR TRIM COLOR 

VJN 

MILES 

INSURANCE CO: 

POL# 

AGENT: 

ADDRESS: 

COL. DED: COMP. DED: 

EFF. DATE: EXP. DATE: PHONE: 

TALKED W/ : DATE: TIME: BY: 

YEAR MAKE MODEL 

COLOR TRIM COLOR 

VIN 

MILES 

THE ~NLY WARRANTIES APPLYING TO THIS VEH ICLE ARE THOSE OFFERED 

BY THE MANUFACTURER. THE SELLING DEALER HEREBY EXPRESSLY 

DISCLAIMS ALL WARRANTIES, EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING 

ANY IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A 

PARTICULAR PURPOSE, AND NEITHER ASSUMES NOR AUTHORIZES ANY 

OTHER PERSON TO ASSUME FOR IT ANY LIABILITY IN CONNECTION WITH 

THE SALE OF THIS VEHICLE. BUYER SHALL NOT BE ENTITLED TO RECOVER 

FROM THE SELLING DEALER ANY CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES, DAMAGES 

TO PROPERTY, DAMAGES FOR LOSS OF USE, LOSS OF TIME, LOSS OF 

PROFITS, OR INCOME, OR ANY OTHER INCIDENTAL DAMAGES. 

THE MANUFACTURER'S WARRANTY HAS BEEN FULLY EXPLAINED TO ME, 

AND I FULLY UNDERSTAND THIS WARRANTY. 

Purchaser ag1eea that this Otder Include& all oltha terms and condillans on both lhe taco and rovers& hereof. !hat this 01der cancels antJ suporsodes any othor ag•eemon\ and as ot !he date he•eot 
comprises the comploto and oxcluslvo &talemonl a! the agroomenl reloUng lo lho subject mutters covered hereby, and I hat I his 01dor .sha~ not be~ome binding unm accepled by the Deeter or his authorized 
repfesenlallve. In the even! of a time &ala, Dealer s hall not be obligated to sell unl!l approval or the terms hereol Is given by a ba~k ~' finante compa~y willing to purchase a retail fnslallmenl contract ~ot».·ean 
lhe parties horoto buod on ouch lerms. Purchaser, by oxecullon of this Order, cer1tnes thai he/she Js o!logel ego to executa btnd1ng contracts In lhrs Stale and acknowledgos that he/she has read rls te1ms 
and condlltons and has received a \Jue copy o lth!s 01der. 

X X 
Ooaler I Authorlzed Aeprosenlallve O~ le Purchnser /lessee S!gnature(s) Data 

.. 



Blank Page 
 
 

121719 BCC Meeting

212



AGENDA ITEM 11: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
D. Boards and Commissions 
 

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Juvenile Crime Prevention Council (JCPC) 
Mr. Adam Zebzda submitted a Volunteer Application requesting to serve on the JCPC.  The 
JCPC recommends Mr. Zebzda be appointed to the Council.  This is a first reading. 
 
 
 
  

121719 BCC Meeting

213



121719 BCC Meeting

214

Volunteer Application 
Watauga County Boards And Commissions 

If you are a Watauga County resident, at least 18 years old, and willing to volunteer your time and 
expertise to your community, please complete the application below and click on Print Form. 
Please sign and mail or fax to: 

Watauga County Commissioners' Offlce 
814 West King Street, Suite 205 

Boone, NC 28607 
Phone: (828) 2~8000 
Fax: (828) 264-3230 

! ' 

DEC - Lj 

Name: Adam J. Zebzda 

HomeAddress: 342 Stadium Heights Drive 

City: Boone, NC Zip: 28608 

Telephone: (H)3369342266 (W)3369342266 (Fax) 
--------

Email: zebzdaa@ appstate. edu 

Place of Employment: Unem played 
---~~--------------------

Job Title: Unemployed 

In Order To Assure County wide Representation Please Indicate Your Township Of Residence: 

{)Bald Mountain Ostony Fork ()watauga 

()New River ()Brushy Fork ()Cove Creek 

{)Beaver Dam QMeat Camp ()Shawneehaw 

()Blue Ridge ()Blowing Rock ()Laurel Creek 

{)Elk ()North Fori< 0Boone 

In addition, Please Indicate If You Live In One Of The Following Areas: 

0 Foscoe-Grandfather Community 0 Valle Crucis Historic District 

0 Howards Creek Watershed 0 Wlnklers Creek Watershed 

Qsouth Fork New River Watershed 0 Extraterritorial Area 

We Ask Your Help In Assuring Diversity Of Membership By Age, Gender, And Race, By Answering The 
Following Questions 

Gender 

®Male 

{)Female 

Ethnic: Background 

()African American 0 Hispanic 

®caucasian ()other 
QNative American 

Please List (In Order Of Preference) The Boards/Commissions On Which You Would Be Willing To Serve. 

1.!Juvenile Crime Prevention Council (Jcpc)Juvenile Crime Prevention cEJ 
2.j 

3. 

1. !l \' 
. 1' 

2019 . 
' / 

•. J 



121719 BCC Meeting

215

Work 
Expet1ence: 

Volunteer 
Experience: 

Other 
Experience: 

Other 
Comments: 

Volunteer Application 
Watauga County Boards And Commissions 

(Continued) 

Please list any work, volunteer, and/or other experience you would like to have considered In the review of your application. 

Intern, Dept. of Human Relations for the City of Winston-Salem: 2019 
Intern, Dept. of Community Development for the City of Winston-Salem: 2019 
Councilman, Juvenile Crime Prevention Council for Forsyth County: June-October 
2019 

The Appalachian, Appalachian State Univerity: Current 
Frank/Belk Hall Council President, Appalachian State University: Current 

As an Appalachain State Univerity student and former Councilman for Forsyth 
County's JCPC, I know how crucial it is for local government to balance the needs of 
young people while ensuring good public policy. I aim to ensure Watauga County 
continues to serve its young residents with the respect, care, and dignity they 
deserved. With this application, you will find a copy of my resume. 

Print Form Reset Form 



121719 BCC Meeting

216

ADAM ZEBZDA 
ASU Box 1 1908, Boone, NC 28608 · (336) 934-2266 

adamzebz01 @gmail.com 

A hardworking and self-driven undergraduate student emolled at Appalachian State University majming in Political 
Science and minoring in Criminal Justice, seeking employment and experience in related fields. 

EXPERIENCE 

JUNE 2018- NOVEMBER 2018 
INTERN, DD ADAMS FOR CONGRESS CAMPAIGN 
Planned community events, coordinated media communications, conducted phone-banking , registered voters and 
acted as a point of contact for community members and leaders. 

JUNE 2019- AUGUST 2019 
INTERN, CITY OF WINSTON SALEM DEPT. OF HUMAN RELATIONS 
Educated, provided , facilitated , promoted, studied, and recommended programs, projects, and feedback for the 
elimination of discrimination in all fields of human relationships. Collaborated with other departments to create 
plans to combat the impacts of gentrification while also investigating fair housing violations. 

JUNE 2019- OCTOBER 2019 
COUNCILMAN, FORSYTH COUNTY JUVENILE CRIME PREVENTION COUNCIL 
Reviewed the needs of juveniles in Forsyth County who are at risk of delinquency, reviewed resources available to 
address those needs, prioritized community risk factors and determined services needed to address problem areas , 
worked with various community leaders while developing strategies to intervein , respond to , and treat the needs of 
juveniles at risk of delinquency. 

EDUCATION 

AUGUST 2015- JUNE 2019 
HIGH SCHOOL DIPLOMA, MOUNT TABOR HIGH SCHOOL, WINSTON SALEM, NC 
Took numerous Honors level courses along with five Advanced Placement courses concentrated in Social Sciences 
and History, including American and European History, while maintaining a 3.8 GPA 

AUGUST 2019- CURRENT 
ENROLLED IN APPALACHIAN STATE UNIVERSITY, BOONE, NC 

SKILLS 

Skills include: Communication , research , professional writing, public speaking and presentation , social media 
management, crisis managament, and cultural adaptability. 

ACTIVITIES 

Balanced course work, employment, and extracurricular activities while volunteering on local and federal campaigns, 
municipal departments , and other organizations striving to attempt to better the lives of community members. 



AGENDA ITEM 11: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
E.  Announcements 
 

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
The January 7, 2020, Regular meeting of the Board of Commissioners has been cancelled.  The 
next regular meeting of the Board will be on Tuesday, January 21, 2020, at 5:30 P.M. 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
  

121719 BCC Meeting

217



Blank Page 
 
 

121719 BCC Meeting

218



AGENDA ITEM 12: 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM 13: 

BREAK 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM 14: 

CLOSED SESSION 
Attorney/Client Matters – G. S. 143-318.11(a)(3) 

121719 BCC Meeting

219


	Tentative Agenda and Meeting Notice
	Approval of Minutes
	Approval of the December 17, 2019, Agenda
	North Carolina Department of Justice Opioid Awareness Presentation
	Presentation of FY 2019 Audit 
	Appalachian State Request to Build Structure on Leased Landfill Property
	Bid Award for Wireless Network System at the New Community Recreation Center
	Tax Matters
	A.  Monthly Collections Report
	B.  Refunds and Releases

	Proposed Contract for Design Build Services for the Administration and Courthouse Roofs
	Proposed Amendment to Audit Contract
	Miscellaneous Administrative Matters
	A.  Cove Creek Preservation and Development (CCP&D) Request to Remove Trees at Old Cove Creek School
	B.  Request to Surplus Turner Property House
	C.  Sheriff's Office Vehicle Purchase Request
	D.  Boards and Commissions
	E.  Announcements

	Public Comment
	Break
	Closed Session



